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mEWER
Consolidated Income Statement
EHZE2019F 12 B31 HIEFEE Year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
it AR¥Fr AR FIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Uk & Revenue 6 61,978,158 60,685,645
Fizk=J DN Cost of sales (42,218,703) (41,958,429)
EF Gross profit 19,759,455 18,727,216
H e Other revenue 7 541,222 348,388
H b g A Other net income 1,544,223 803,974
Pal =1 %N Distribution costs (13,258,980) (11,817,315)
THER Administrative expenses (2,375,436) (2,267,636)
Hibiea & A Other operating expenses (619,395) (1,465,191)
758 R Finance costs 9 (413,652) (421,682)
JE(GEE A ERBFEE Share of results of an associate 21,22
and joint ventures 234,159 71,580
BR B ATE R Profit before taxation 9 5,411,596 3,979,334
AL Taxation 11 (1,693,374) (1,250,565)
R Ea F Profit for the year 3,718,222 2,728,769
FEARRF Profit attributable to:
PIN/NE) L §3 Owners of the Company 3,330,981 2,463,321
DR R ELS Non-controlling interests 387,241 265,448
EEERF Profit for the year 3,718,222 2,728,769
FRER Earnings per share 13
FHA Basic RMB59.25 cents RMB43.85 cents
BE Diluted RMB59.20 cents  RMB43.77 cents

132 EWEERERAE

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



AeZERER

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
HZ=2019F 12 A31 BLEFE Year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
AR¥TFTT ABREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
76 B a F Profit for the year 3,718,222 2,728,769
Ha2mE(EFE) W - Other comprehensive (loss) income:
TE2ELEE Items that will not be reclassified to
B Ay IH A profit or loss:
ARERNEEZEHE Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (74,877) (40,003)
B A BB R RE Fair value changes in equity instruments
E th 2 [ U 5 R B 722 Y designated as at fair value through
EmTARAEEZE other comprehensive income 3,199 (16,265)
(71,678) (56,268)
BALAEARESTIRE Items that are or may be reclassified
Bz R iy IE H subsequently to profit or loss:
fEHZ=% Exchange differences on consolidation (131,046) (379,686)
(131,046) (379,686)
AEEHMEZEER Other comprehensive loss for the year (202,724) (435,954)
AEEZTHEHKZEE Total comprehensive income for the year 3,515,498 2,292,815
EiEEEKE : Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
ViN/NET 323 Owners of the Company 3,135,740 2,061,011
DERE R AE Non-controlling interests 379,758 231,804
3,515,498 2,292,815
BRAREER
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

HZE2019F 12 A31 HIEFE At 31 December 2019

2019 2018
st AR¥FT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BE ASSETS
RBEE Non-current assets
KEMEEME Investment properties 14 1,771,500 1,119,000
W - R REE Property, plant and equipment 15 23,013,991 24,927,630
FREEE Right-of-use assets 16 4,025,124 —
TH A RE Prepaid lease payments 17 — 3,570,367
| EE Intangible assets 18 183,409 186,458
Bk Goodwill 19 97,910 97,910
BN A s Interest in an associate 21 139,537 127,725
B ENR)ER Interest in joint ventures 22 889,065 698,743
BRARBEYERE Financial assets at fair value through
BRREENeRmEE profit or loss 23 1,153,541 448,121
BERAABEYRLE  Equity instruments designated as at fair value
Hth 2 WS BR AR 12 through other comprehensive income
Rt T A 23 115,614 114,018
Hi3Eme&EE Other non-current assets 24 — 375,964
BRI IAE E Deferred tax assets 36 407,171 429,262
REGEEGER Long-term time deposits 28 725,000 —
32,521,862 32,095,198
RBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 25 3,445,075 2,651,740
JE U BR K Trade receivables 26 1,669,525 1,715,471
Al U B F7 18 Tax recoverable 40,349 30,150
FE B R A EUFRTE  Prepayments and other receivables 27 2,852,469 2,669,689
HEIRIRITIER Pledged bank deposits 28 32,830 32,458
RITHEBNIE S Bank balances and cash 28 17,397,557 13,807,963
25,437,805 20,907,471
REE Total assets 57,959,667 53,002,669
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HZE2019%12 A31 BILEFE At 31 December 2019

2019 2018
ok=3 AR¥ T AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BRREZEREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
B A R 4 Capital and reserves
BEITIRAR Issued capital 29 235,401 235,204
& 17 5 B Share premium 30 724,384 664,400
fE Reserves 31 18,618,789 18,753,872
AR BRREEBREIR Total capital and reserves attributable
iR to owners of the Company 19,578,574 19,653,476
DEBRRER Non-controlling interests 20 3,467,533 3,958,955
IRRERBE Total equity 23,046,107 23,612,431
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
WARBEYRKEEEZ  Financial liabilities at fair value
FREMNS/RAE through profit or loss 33 9,674 9,862
REIBEEREE Long-term interest-bearing borrowings 34 4,920,078 4,372,723
HEAE Lease liabilities 16 287,892 —
HEMIEmBEE Other non-current liabilities 41 40,000 40,000
ETREMNEE Employee benefit obligations 35 157,066 115,436
BEFIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 36 1,191,422 967,682
6,606,132 5,505,703
BRAREER
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HZ2019F12 A31 HILEFE At 31 December 2019

2019 2018
it AR FT ARETF T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
RBEE Current liabilities
FETBRFR Trade payables 37 7,678,035 6,953,961
HEEMAZIERE YIRS Other payables and deposits received 38 10,761,450 8,522,996
BEEEZEVEEHD Current portion of
interest-bearing borrowings 34 7,454,381 6,461,785
HEAE Lease liabilities 16 199,664 —
EPMENFHIE Advance payments from customers 42 1,809,935 1,678,782
TIE Taxation 403,963 267,011
28,307,428 23,884,535
waes Total liabilities 34,913,560 29,390,238
BREZREEHASE Total equity and liabilities 57,959,667 53,002,669
FRBEE(EE) Net current assets (liabilities) (2,869,623) (2,977,064)
BEERRBAEE Total assets less current liabilities 29,652,239 29,118,134

FINEINEZHAVERREAES
EMN2020F3A3AMER RS
THUATALTRREE

These consolidated financial statements on pages 132 to 301 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23
March 2020 and signed on its behalf by

H A% —EB Junichiro Ida
3 Director

$i% % WEI Hong-Ming
B Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2019F 12 A31BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2019

KRERRER
Attributable to owners of the Company
FAREE JukEER e
kA R Total Non- EalE
lssued Share B aptland  controlling Total
capital premium Reserves reserves interests equity
ARBFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFr  AREFL
RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RIMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
R20185 1816 At 1 January 2018 235,053 611,736 17,565,290 18412079 3,881,965 22,294,044
KERER Profit for the year - - e33 24633 265448 2,728,769
B2 ERE Other comprehensive loss
REBHNELZEME Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations - - (37,562) (37,562) (2.441) (40,003)
EERLABERR Fair value changes in equity instruments
A2 ENERRE designated as at fair value through other
MESTAZS comprehensive income - - (16,265) (16,265) — (16,265)
ERER Exchange differences on consolidation - - (348,483) (348,483) (31,03) (379,686
2 AERLE Total other comprehensive loss - - (4023100 (402310) (33644)  (43595)
FEER2ENEAR Total comprehensive income for the year - — 2,061,011 2,061,011 B1804 2,292,815
HANRRRZRS Transactions with owners of the Company:
REEST Contributions and distribution
ERfEROTHZZE Equity settled share-based transactions - - 32,799 32,799 - 32,799
REBRESERT2RG  Sharesissued under share option scheme 151 52,664 (13,025) 39,790 — 39,790
2017 ERERE 2017 fina dhidend approved - —09539)  (009539) (167478 (1077,017)
151 52,664 (889,765) (836,950) (167.478)  (1,004,428)
BHEE Changes in ownership interests
EEYNSIHIENNELR  Change in ownership interest in a subsidiary
hERE without change in control - - 17,336 17,336 12,664 30,000
- - 17336 17336 12,664 30,000
BALNARRZRSEH Total transactions with owners of the Company 151 52,664 (872,429) (819,614) (154,814) (974,428)
R2018E12 8318 At 31 December 2018 235,204 664,400 18,753,872 19,653,476 3,958,955 23,612,431
BRAEER
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EZE 2019512 A31 HIEHE Year ended 31 December 2019

ARTIRRER
Attributable to owners of the Company
BrREs HURRER B&
Yika Riva® Total Non- BRAE
Issued Share i cpitaland  controlling Total
capital premium Reserves eserves interests equity

ABBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETZ  ARETZ  ARETZ
RMB0O)  RMBUO)  RMBUO)  RMBUO)  RMBUO)  AMBUOD

R19E1518 At 1 January 2019 235,204 664,400 18,753,812 19,653,476 3,958,955 23,612,431
RERRT Profit for the year = = 3,330,981 3,330,981 387,241 318
A2 E(5E) s Other comprehensive (loss) income
REBHEMZEREWHZ35)  Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations (Mot 35 - - (65,490) (65,490) (9,387) (14.877)
KERDABESIBRELM2E  Fairvalue changes in equity instruments
WEERENERIA designated as at fai value through other
ArEBEZERW250) comprehensive income (Aote 23(2) = = 3,199 3,199 = 3,199
EiZE Bichange differences on consolidation = = (132,950) (132,950) 1,904 (131,046)
Ht2EFRAR Total other comprehensive loss = = (195,241) (195,241) (7.483) (202,724)
REERENEAE Total comprehensive income for the year = = 3,135,740 3,135,740 379,758 3,515,498
BANRRRZRA Transactions with owners of the Company:
REETT Contrbutions and distrbution
EREERNIN IR Equity settled share-based transactions = = 24,504 24,504 = 20,504
RERRETSETZRD Shares issued under share option scheme Mote 29)
(#iit29) 197 59,984 (14,080) 46,101 = 46,101
BHERIEE 2018 REARIERIRE 2018 final and special dividend approved and paid
UGl Note 12) - - (2,463,321) (2,463,321) (123,646) (2,586,967)
197 59,984 (2,452,897) (2,392,716) (123,646) (2,516,362
#EEE Changes in ownershyp iterests
HE-FE2ENBLAFZ43) Disposal of anon-wholly owned subsidiary (Mot 43) = = - - (8,601) (8,601)
EERHBAHRONELT  Changein ownership interest in subsidiaries
BEERR(2N) without change in control ot 20) - - (817.926) (817.926) (738933)  (1,556,859)

- - (817,926) (817,926) (747534)  (1,565,460)

HANARRZRH4E Total transactions with owners of the Company 197 59,984 (327083)  (3210642) (871,180  (4,081.822)

R2019E12A31R At 31 December 2019 235,401 124,384 18,618,789 19,578,574 3,467,533 23,046,107
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EHZE2019F 12 A31 HIEFEE Year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
i3 AR¥FT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
REES OPERATING ACTIVITIES
REEKFEESE Cash generated from operations 39 9,591,258 8,947,083
B BREMRET The People’s Republic of China (“PRC")
enterprise income tax paid (1,343,821) (1,555,331)
EHEFE Interest paid (416,419) (423,863)
RETEBBESFEE Net cash from operating activities 7,831,018 6,967,889
REED INVESTING ACTIVITIES
B U F 8 Interest received 541,222 348,388
iR ETE HFER Increase in long-term time deposits 28 (725,000) —
B E & R AIIRF Dividend received from a joint venture 22 32,025 17,232
BHIRAAEEIIRR Dividend received from financial assets at
=R IE M fair value through profit or loss
TR E E A 3,253 6,500
HE—EBEA Proceeds from disposal of an associate 15(d) 195,107 —
HE—MEER Proceed from disposal of a joint venture 20(a) 225,408 —
HERADEBETIRR Proceeds from disposal of financial assets
riE=RRIER at fair value through profit or loss
TREEZMF 82,262 79,443
HEETHAREENE  Proceeds from disposal of equity
DaEHMEERZEERIE  instruments designated as at fair value
REmMEE TS through other comprehensive income 23(c) 3,578 8,521
fERERRE Redemption of debt investment — 900,000
BARAAEBEIER Purchase of financial assets at
HIESERERIEMNEEEE  fair value through profit or loss 23(a)(b) (740,033) (48,735)
BAELEE Purchase of intangible assets 18 (158) —
BAKREMEE Purchase of investment properties 14 (241,733) —
BAWE  HEREE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,788,104) (1,358,638)
BASLREEE Purchase of right-of-use assets 16 (42,386) —
W — Y E AT AT  Deposit paid for acquisition of a property 14 — (58,000)
BT T AH 895 B Prepaid lease payments — (23,706)
HEME, HERZER Proceeds from sale of property, plant and
FREEE MG equipment and right-of-use assets 280,439 42,263
HEWNBARBIESFE  Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries 43 836,581 437,438
JENE R 2 F & Net movement of loan receivables 27(a) (67,000) (153,000)
FEWRIMTEARZ Net movement of amount due
FE )R from former subsidiaries — 1,347,253
FTEEEEE AR MAE AR Capital refunded upon deregistration of
Fri 2 & 7R associates and joint ventures — 9,575
REFTE(FTA) B Net cash (used in) from investing
REeFE activities (1,404,539) 1,554,534
BRAREER
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TR ERER | Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HZ2019%12 A31 BILHFE Year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
i3 AR¥FT ARBFT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
& EE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
BARARRRIE Z S Dividends paid to owners of the Company (2,485,015) (928,370)
ENLEEEREEZRS ZKE  Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (115,827) (141,619)
BRI 2 Issue of shares under share option scheme
BT 2Rt 29 46,101 39,790
YTRHEEAE Payments of lease liabilities 39 (181,253) —
FIGIRITER Proceeds from bank borrowings 5,848,166 3,548,339
EERITREMER Repayments of bank and other borrowings (6,473,583) (5,529,936)
HiCEEE Z# S5  Net movement of other
short-term borrowings 2,052,129 (2,005,498)
TS D BAR SR e o Payment for acquisition of
non-controlling interests (1,539,523) —
e EE BT HIER  Proceeds from disposal of ownership
ME R AR 2 5 interests in a subsidiary that does not
result in a change of control — 15,000
RMETBHAREEE Net cash used in financing activities (2,848,805) (5,002,294)
REeRASEEYN Net increase in cash and
I8 0 cash equivalents 3,577,674 3,520,129
FNZ2EERREEEY  Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 13,840,421 10,284,889
ExEs 28 Effect on exchange rate changes 12,292 35,403
FRZESRRESEEY  Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year 28 17,430,387 13,840,421

140 EHEERERAE
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



e TR R MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2019F 12 A31HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019
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Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. The addresses of its principal place of
business are Suite 5607, 56th Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong and No. 1688, Wuzhong Road,
Minhang District, Shanghai, the PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of instant noodles and
beverages. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 49 to the consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless
otherwise indicated.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
a basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the
2018 consolidated financial statements except for the adoption
of the new/revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and
effective from the current year as detailed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements. A summary of the principal
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out in note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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SEIIEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2019F12 A31 HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

ERBEGEMBREE  REEHE In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the
H ERAEERBHAEERRED directors have carefully assessed the working capital and
& EMHE ARK2869623,000T financing requirements of the Group in the foreseeable future,
(2018%F :+ N R %2977 064,000 as the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
7T AnEEEEEFGAEEE RMB2,869,623,000 (2018: RMB2,977,064,000) at the end of the
ARARRCEEESRBMEFRK - reporting period.
EREANKEERBAEBAZRT Taking into account the existing banking facilities of the Group,
EENBRLT  REAEEHEAR the directors are satisfied that the Group has sufficient resources
1R Rt B IR 5T 2 H 3 B B RS to meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due in the
ot HMAMBERRIUNFEKR foreseeable future. Accordingly, these consolidated financial
B2 ERRE - statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
(a) HwBEE (a) Basis of measurement
R E MoK AREBEE The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
BEEZE BRIZEALEET consolidated financial statements is historical cost, except for
B REUREHE BRAAE investment properties, financial assets at fair value through
BIEREEREREN SR profit or loss, equity instruments designated as at fair value
BE - BERAABEYERK through other comprehensive income and financial liabilities
HEMEPERERREENES at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured at
TAREAAREBEIERKRERE fair value as explained in the accounting policies set out
mREESRARUAAEAE below.
STERN . FBEERTIZE
FTIR ©
(b) #HREEE (b) Basis of consolidation
BEMBHREBPERARFARE The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
MBARZHMBHREK - BT statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
NEFBREN2WEFERK financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
NEAR - EFTBERTER— the same reporting year as that of the Company using
B o consistent accounting policies.
AEBRNBERA ZEETR All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
SIMBHMBLER X5 W expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
IREZEHEHEN - MEA transactions are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries
Al A B AR S B EUS G are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
< BERREG OF - WHEAE S O control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
BAREZEHIEKRIEAE - such control ceases.
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S B HEERRMIZE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and within equity in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The non-controlling interests in
the acquiree, that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets in event of liquidation, are measured
initially either at fair value or at the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This choice of
measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are initially
measured at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
is attributed to the owners of the Company and the non-
controlling interest even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.

Changes in ownership interests

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
“transactions with non-controlling interests reserve” within
equity and attributed to the owners of the Company.
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SEIIEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2019F12 A31 HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2019
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(b)

(c)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
Changes in ownership interests (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
The amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Any investment retained in the former subsidiary and any
amounts owed by or to the former subsidiary are accounted
for as a financial asset or liability, interest in associate,
interest in joint venture or others as appropriate from the
date when control is lost.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business (including
the acquisition of joint control of a joint operation in which
the activity constitutes a business) is measured at the excess
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of
any previously held equity interest in the acquiree over the
acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed of the acquired business.

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, which is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment test and determination of gain or
loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units (“CGUs"). An impairment loss on goodwill is not
reversed.



(9]

(d)

LA BTTEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019
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(9]

(d)

Goodwill (Continued)

On the other hand, any excess of the acquisition date
amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed of the acquired business over the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree, if any,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as an income from bargain purchase.

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is not depreciated and stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. All other property, plant
and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress, over
their estimated useful lives as set out below from the date
on which they are available for use and after taking into
account their estimated residual values, using the straight-
line method. Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the costs of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis and depreciated separately.

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Machinery and equipment:

— Instant noodles 10 to 12 years
— Beverages
— Others

Electrical appliances and equipment

10 to 12 years
5to 10 years
5 years

Miscellaneous equipment 3to 10 years
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(d)

(e)

()

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in
the year in which the item is derecognised.

When property, plant and equipment becomes an
investment property, any difference at the date of change in
use between the carrying amount and the fair value of the
property is accounted for in the same way as a revaluation
in accordance with HKAS 16.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction or pending installation and
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes the costs of construction and acquisition
and capitalised borrowing costs. No depreciation is made
on construction in progress until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and ready for intended use. When
the assets concerned are available for use, the costs
are transferred to property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated in 3(d)
above.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and building that are held
by owner or lessee, to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include properties held for a currently
undetermined future use.
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Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties are stated at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Any gain or loss arising from a
change in fair value is recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value of investment property is based on a valuation by an
independent valuer who holds a recognised professional
qualification and has recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in profit or loss in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Intangible asset
Concession right

Concession right acquired in a business combination is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Concession
right has finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over its estimated useful life. Both the period and
method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Water resource license

The initial cost of acquiring water resource license is
capitalised. The water resource license has finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is provided on
the straight-line basis over its estimated useful lives.
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(h)

Prepaid lease payments

Before 1 January 2019, prepaid lease payments are up-front
payments to acquire fixed term interests in lessee-occupied
land that are classified as operating leases. The premiums
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses and are amortised over the
period of the lease on a straight-line basis. From 1 January
2019, those payments are accounted for as right-of-use
assets.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the elements of control.

In the Company's statement of financial position, which
is presented within these notes, an interest in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment loss. The carrying
amount of the interest in a subsidiary is reduced to its
recoverable amount on an individual basis, if it is higher
than the recoverable amount. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.



()

ri'!
W

BENANEELT

BERRDNASREREARE
ZER EAREREHRE
BTOMPBMELHRELHE
IREHVRER - B TR E I

S H RS -

BERRRTHAERH &
S 2 R A KR B A &
E%%?%%@éﬁ%ﬁ%

e aERhEREMITAEZT
%ﬁ CRERI 2 5 - KR
ﬂ%h&yfﬁﬁmﬁﬁil
HlE ZBE - KEEGIEEE AR
BEE ESRHFZ A IEFIEN

BEIEL—BUORERHIR  fid
BEEERBALRE( KK
EREHFEEEEAARE
U ARES RO EE
L ZBRELNE -

AEERBERRHEERF]

ZAES ISR R I - %
BREREBO WD BAFIED

BRI RIBHEZ L RER
MARAARR  AERRAEH
ERIRE QR FEERRSE
‘e KA RRE K TR
EBEEBRBEELAE - BRAKER
EEXEHEEE T EZW
BERAMEHNRES - B
EIEMW&EQﬂZ%EH
ERHEBEHERZBIRER
2%@@%’%*@%&@5
IR AEEgP L
RIIEIEEE -

S B HEERRMIZE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

@

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement. A joint arrangement is
an arrangement of which two or more parties have joint
control. Joint control is a contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control. The Group reassesses whether
it has joint control of an arrangement and whether the type
of joint arrangement in which it is involved has changed, if
facts and circumstances change.

The Group's interest in associate or joint venture is
accounted for under the equity method of accounting,
except when the investment or a portion thereof is classified
as held for sale. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for
the post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Except to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the investee, the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses when the Group's share of losses
of the investee equals or exceeds the carrying amount of
its interest in the investee, which includes any long term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the investee.
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@

(k)

Associates and joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the
investees, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments
Financial assets
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group's contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (ii) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain
control of the financial asset.

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised at
their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets. Such trade receivables are initially measured at their
transaction price.
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(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (i) debt instruments measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“Mandatory FVOCI"); (iii) equity instruments designated
as at fair value through other comprehensive income
("Designated FVOCI"); or (iv) measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL").

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing them, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first
day of the first annual reporting period following the change
in the business model.

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract in which a host
is an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated
from the host. Instead, the entire hybrid contract is assessed
for classification.

1) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

7)

2)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
(Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising
from impairment, derecognition or through the
amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost include
bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits, long-
term time deposits and trade and other receivables.

Mandatory FVOC]

A financial asset is measured at Mandatory FVOCI if
both of the following conditions are met and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and for sale; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

The financial asset is subsequently measured at
fair value. Interest calculated using the effective
interest method, impairment gains or losses and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss. Other gains or losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income until the financial
asset is derecognised. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss as a reclassification
adjustment.

The Group does not have financial assets at Mandatory
FVOCI.
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(k) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

3)

Designated FVOCI/

Upon initial recognition, the Group may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument that is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies
in other comprehensive income. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

These equity investments are subsequently measured
at fair value and are not subject to impairment.
Dividends are recognised in profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other gains or losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and shall
not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss is
transferred directly to retained profits.

The Group’s financial assets at Designated FVOCI
include unlisted equity securities as further detailed in
note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
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(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

4)

Financial assets at FVPL

These investments include financial assets that are
not measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, including
financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL, financial
assets resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 applies and financial assets that are otherwise
required to be measured at FVPL. They are carried at
fair value, with any resultant gain and loss recognised
in profit or loss, which does not include any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets. Dividend or
interest income is presented separately from fair value
gain or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

—
=

acquired principally for the purpose of selling it
in the near term;

(i)  part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and
for which there is evidence of a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking on initial
recognition; or

(i) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee
contract or not a designated and effective
hedging instrument.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

4)  Financial assets at FVPL (Continued)

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
as at FVPL only if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on
different bases.

The Group's financial assets at FVPL include investment
funds, listed equity securities, listed debt instruments
and unlisted equity securities as further detailed in
note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Financial liabilities
Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of
the financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, lease liabilities, interest-bearing borrowings and
other non-current liabilities. All financial liabilities, except
for financial liabilities at FVPL, are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method, unless the effect of
discounting would be insignificant, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial liabilities held
for trading, financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at FVPL and financial liabilities that are
contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 applies. They are carried at
fair value, with any resultant gain and loss excluding interest
expenses recognised in profit or loss, except for the portion
of fair value changes of financial liabilities designated at
FVPL that are attributable to the credit risk of the liabilities,
which is presented in other comprehensive income unless
such treatment would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. The amounts presented in other
comprehensive income shall not be subsequently transferred
to profit or loss. Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain
or loss is transferred directly to retained profits. Interest
expenses are presented separately from fair value gain or
loss.
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£WMIE(E) (k) Financial instruments (Continued)

THEEFE) Financial liabilities (Continued)

DR E(E) Classification and measurement (Continued)
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(ii)

recognising the gains or losses on them on different
bases; or

they are part of a group of financial liabilities or
financial assets and financial liabilities that are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management strategy; or
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(k) &€®MIAE) (k) Financial instruments (Continued)

THEMEE) Financial liabilities (Continued)

DEREE(E) Classification and measurement (Continued)
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(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECL") on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost to which the impairment requirements
apply in accordance with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific
treatments as detailed below, at each reporting date, the
Group measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at
an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on
that financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e.
the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life
of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due
to an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the
entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped on the following one or more
shared credit risk characteristics:

(i) past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(i) nature of collateral

(iv)  industry of debtors

(v)  geographical location of debtors
(vi)  external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the
loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial instrument, except in the
case of Mandatory FVOCI, the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve (recycling).

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes
as historical experience indicates that the Group may not
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full if the
financial instrument that meets any of the following criteria.

0) information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group);
or

(i)  there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty.
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(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In particular, the following information
is taken into account in the assessment:

o the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or
interest on the due dates;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating
(if available);

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and
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(k)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

o actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date.

Low crediit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if:

(i) it has a low risk of default;

(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(iiiy  adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations.

As detailed in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements, amounts due from an associate, joint ventures,
certain other receivables and related parties are determined
to have low credit risk.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables without a significant financing
components or otherwise for which the Group applies
the practical expedient not to account for the significant
financing components, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL. The Group recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date
and has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data
about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event.

() the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider.

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a
deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.
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(k)

0]

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(Continued)

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off the gross
carrying amount when the financial asset is 1 year past due
based on historical experience of recoveries of similar assets.
The Group expects no significant recovery from the amount
written off. However, financial assets that are written off
could still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due., taking
into account legal advice if appropriate. Any subsequent
recovery made is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, net of bank overdraft, if any.
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when the properties are let out and on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms while rental income from car parks are
recognised on an accrual basis.

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS
15

Nature of goods or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group is
manufacture and delivery of instant noodles, beverages and
instant food products.

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods
or services promised in a contract with a customer and
identifies as a performance obligation each promise to
transfer to the customer either:

(@ a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services)
that is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same and that have the same pattern
of transfer to the customer.
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Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS
15 (Continued)

Identification of performance obligations (Continued)

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct if
both of the following criteria are met:

(@)  the customer can benefit from the good or service
either on its own or together with other resources that
are readily available to the customer (i.e. the good or
service is capable of being distinct); and

(b) the Group's promise to transfer the good or service
to the customer is separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer
the good or service is distinct within the context of the
contract).

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or
service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred
when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over time
and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria
is met:

(@)  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as
the Group performs;

(b)  the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or
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(m) WEZ8RA(E) (m) Revenue recognition (Continued)
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Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS
15 (Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

(c) the Group’'s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the promised asset. In
determining when the transfer of control occurs, the Group
considers the concept of control and such indicators as
legal title, physical possession, right to payment, significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, and customer
acceptance.

Sales of instant noodles and beverages is recognised at a
point in time at which the customer obtains the control of
the promised asset, which generally coincides with the time
when the goods are delivered to customers and the title is
passed.

Service income of logistic services is recognised over time
when services are rendered.

For revenue recognised over time under HKFRS 15,
provided the outcome of the performance obligation can
be reasonably measured, the Group applies the output
method (i.e. based on the direct measurements of the value
to the customer of the goods or services transferred to
date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract) to measure the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation
because the method provides a faithful depiction of the
Group’s performance and reliable information is available
to the Group to apply the method. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised only to the extent of the costs incurred until
such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of
the performance obligation. The principal input applied in
the output method for transportation services to external
customers is based on the distance already travelled to date.
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(m) WEZH8RA(E) (m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

HEBBMBREENF 155
HNEFEHNKAE)

EANBEEEARERD (AE
FRAKEESREFPERE
SRS B SR E KRR E R
2)F > EEERZERE - K
SEeZReENKHEHERE
HEAGHEE  EABEXD
MPEEREEEFMHG K
AERBmEDBINIBRERT
FER A B WA E A B

AEEREBEANOTRIHONE
FEE A XML N EBEEE
ERFZEERERER SRR
RS ER R (B s B R
MRS EBRANIERNE
) BIOmBHE - AEEK
BENERAEEETFPHEM
HEEEERITER

AEBCEAEAMBREE
Bl 159 F 63T A 1T
BERE  WREHRAE—F
FAT - BT REARREK

DT ERHERE -

168 EEEERERAHE
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS
15 (Continued)

Transaction price: significant financing components

When the contract contains a significant financing
component (i.e. the customer or the Group is provided with
a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer), in determining the transaction
price, the Group adjusts the promised consideration for
the effects of the time value of money. The effect of the
significant financing component is recognised as an interest
income or interest expense separately from revenue from
contracts with customers in profit or loss.

The Group determines the interest rate that is
commensurate with the rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and
its customer at contract inception by reference to, where
appropriate, the interest rate implicit in the contract (i.e.
the interest rate that discounts the cash selling price of the
goods or services to the amount paid in advance or arrears),
the prevailing market interest rates, the Group’s borrowing
rates and other relevant creditworthiness information of the
customer of the Group.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for
the effect of the significant financing component if the
period of financing is one year or less.
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(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS
15 (Continued)

Variable consideration

If the consideration promised in a contract includes a variable
amount, the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
promised goods or services to a customer. The variable
consideration is estimated by using either the expected-
value or the most-likely-amount method whichever is better
to predict the entitled amount. The estimated variable
consideration is then included in the transaction price only
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised of
the contract will not occur when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

Variable consideration: volume-based rebates

The Group gives rebates to selected customers. The Group
estimates the volume rebates using the expected-value
method and assesses whether the estimated variable
consideration is constrained with reference to the customer’s
historical rebates entitlement and accumulated purchases to
date. Any significant estimation variances will be analysed
and taken into consideration in the current estimation and
assessment. Typically, the estimated consideration is not
constrained.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using
the effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost or Mandatory FVOCI that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount of the assets while it is applied to the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount net of loss
allowance) in case of credit-impaired financial assets.
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(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services
to a customer before the customer pays consideration
or before payment is due, the contract is presented as
a contract asset, excluding any amounts presented as a
receivable. Conversely, if a customer pays consideration, or
the Group has a right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional, before the Group transfers a good or service
to the customer, the contract is presented as advance
payments from customers when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is
the Group's right to consideration that is unconditional or
only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts,
either a net contract asset or a net advance payment from
customers is presented. Contract assets and advance
payments from customers of unrelated contracts are not
presented on a net basis.

It is common for the Group to receive from the customer
the whole or some of the contractual payments before the
goods are delivered (i.e. the timing of revenue recognition
for such transactions). The Group recognises an advance
payment from customers until it is recognised as revenue.
During that period, any significant financing components,
if applicable, will be included in the advance payment from
customers and will be expensed as accrued unless the
interest expense is eligible for capitalisation.
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(n)

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“functional currency”). The Company's functional currency
is United States Dollar (“US$") and majority of its subsidiaries
have Renminbi ("RMB") as their functional currency. The
consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Company’s presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss.

The results and financial position of all the Group’s
entities that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

(@)  Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the end of the reporting period;

(b) Income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at the weighted average exchange rates;

(©)  All resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group's
net investment in a foreign operation are recognised
as a separate component of equity;
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(n)

(o)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d)  On the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes
a disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, a partial disposal involving the loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest is no longer
equity-accounted for, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to the foreign operation
that is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the separate component of equity is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the gain
or loss on disposal is recognised.

(e)  On the partial disposal of the thee Group's interest in
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation which
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in the
separate component of equity is re-attributed to the
non-controlling interests in that foreign operation and
are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, costs of conversion and other costs
that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition, is calculated using
the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.
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(p)

(q)

Impairment of other assets, other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, right-of-use assets, interest
in an associate, and interest in joint ventures may be
impaired or impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may be reduced. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated, based on the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the smallest group of assets that generates cash
flows independently (i.e. a CGU).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or CGU that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversal of impairment losses is recognised as income
in profit or loss immediately.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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(r)

(s)

Government grants

Government grants represent incentive grants from the
relevant PRC authorities in respect of the running of
business by the Group in certain development zones and to
encourage the furtherance of such business.

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the years necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where
the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments.

Leases

Applicable from 1 January 2019

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term
leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments associated
with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease components
from lease components, and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component.
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(s)

Leases (Continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2019 (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

The Group accounts for each lease component within a
lease contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a
separate component are considered to be part of the total
consideration that is allocated to the separately identified
components of the contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises

(@) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

(¢) any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories.
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(s)

Leases (Continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2019 (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the right-of-use asset (unless the lease
transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by
the end of the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use
asset reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase option
— in which case depreciation is provided over the estimated
useful life of the underlying asset) as follows:

Properties 1 yearto 11 years

Land use right in respect of Over the leasehold period
leasehold land

Machinery and other equipment 1 year to 5 years

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date of the contract.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise the following payments for the right
to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date:

(@ fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate;

(c) amounts expected to be payable under residual value
guarantees;

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and
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Leases (Continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2019 (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

(e)  payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable,
the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate
when there are changes to the lease payments arising from
a change in the lease term or the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option.

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original
discount rate when there is a change in the residual value
guarantee, the in-substance fixed lease payments or the
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
a rate (other than floating interest rate). In case of a change
in future lease payments resulting from a change in floating
interest rates, the Group remeasures the lease liability using
a revised discount rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of
the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced
to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement
of the lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining
amount of the remeasurement in profit or loss.
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(s)

Leases (Continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2019 (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if

(a)

the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

When a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate

lease, at the effective date of the lease modification,

(a)

the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract on the basis of relative stand-alone price as
described above.

the Group determines the lease term of the modified
contract.

the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount
rate over the revised lease term.

for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the
lease, the Group accounts for the remeasurement of
the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease and recognising any gain or
loss relating to the partial or full termination of the
lease in profit or loss.

for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the remeasurement of the lease liability by making
a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
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Leases (Continued)

Applicable from 1 January 2019 (Continued)
As lessor

The Group classifies each of its leases as either a finance
lease or an operating lease at the inception date of the
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the underlying asset. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a lease
contract as a lease separately from non-lease components
of the contract. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each lease component on a relative stand-alone
price basis.

As lessor — operating lease

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment
requirements in HKFRS 9 to the operating lease receivables.

A modification to an operating lease is accounted for as
a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the
new lease.

Applicable before 1 January 2019

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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(s)

®

Leases (Continued)

Applicable before 1 January 2019 (Continued)
Operating leases

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee are classified as
operating leases. Rentals payable and receivables under
operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the lease term of the relevant lease. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the net consideration agreed for the use
of the leased asset. Contingent rentals are recognised
as expenses in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss as incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme prior the
contributions are vested fully in those employees. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund.

Defined benefit plans

The Group's obligation in respect of defined benefit plans
is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the
ultimate cost of benefit that employees have earned in
return for their services in the current and prior periods,
which is discounted to determine the present value of those
benefits.
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(®)

Employee benefits (Continued)
Defined benefit plans (Continued)

The calculation of the obligation is based on the
recommendations of the independent qualified actuaries
using the projected unit credit method annually. Service cost
and interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are
recognised in profit or loss. Current services cost is measured
as the increase in the present value of the defined benefit
liability resulting from employee service in the current period
or, where appropriate, the one used to remeasure the net
defined benefit liability upon plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement to the net defined benefit liability. The rate to
discount post-employment benefit obligation is the yield at
the end of the reporting period on government bonds that
have the currency and terms consistent with the currency
and estimated term of the obligations.

Gain or loss on settlement is measured as the difference
between a) the present value of the defined benefit
obligation being settled and b) any payments made by the
Group in connection with the settlement. It is recognised
when the settlement occurs.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement
plans are recognised in other comprehensive income and
are reflected in equity immediately. Remeasurements
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability (asset)) and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)).
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(u)

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost of such
transactions with employees is measured by reference to
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as a staff cost with a corresponding increase in
a share-based payment reserve within equity. The fair value
is determined using the binomial model taking into account
any market conditions and non-vesting conditions.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the entitlement of relevant
employees to the award is no longer conditional on the
satisfaction of any non-market vesting conditions ("vesting
date”). During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest ultimately is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior
periods is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of
review, with a corresponding adjustment to the reserve
within equity.
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(u) Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

(v)

Equity-settled transactions (Continued)

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve
will be transferred to share premium account. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Share-based payment transactions in which the Company
grants share options to subsidiaries’ employees are
accounted for as an increase in value of interest in
subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of financial position
which is eliminated on consolidation, with a corresponding
credit to the share-based payment reserve within equity.

Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arises from initial recognition
of goodwill, or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss is not recognised.
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(v)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax assets and
liabilities arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from such
investment properties are measured based on the expected
manner as to how the property will be recovered.

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on interest in subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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(w) Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the

Group:

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(iii)

Has control or joint control over the Group;

Has significant influence over the Group; or

Is @ member of the key management personnel
of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.
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(w) Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the Group
and include:

(@)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(¢)  dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.
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Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The Company’s executive directors, who
are responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, have been
identified as the chief operating decision-makers that make
strategic decisions.

Future changes in HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/
revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current
year, which the Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to HKASs 1 and 8  Definition of Material "

Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform "
HKFRSs 7 and 9

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business !

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts !

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture®

( Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2020

@ Effective for acquisitions that occur on or after the beginning
of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2020

Bl Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

@ The effective date to be determined

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
adoption of the new/revised HKFRSs in future periods
will have any material impact on the Group’s financial
information.
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Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of new/revised HKFRSs that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group.
Of these, the changes in accounting policy relevant to the
consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Annual Improvements Project - 2015-2017 Cycle

HKAS 12: Income tax consequences of payments on financial
instruments classified as equity

The amendments clarify that (a) the income tax consequences of
dividends are recognised in profit or loss, other comprehensive
income or equity according to where the past transactions or
events that generated the distributable profits were originally
recognised and (b) these requirements apply to all income tax
consequences of dividends as defined in HKFRS 9.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

HKAS 23: Borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation

The amendments clarify that (a) if a specific borrowing remains
outstanding after the related qualifying asset is ready for its
intended use or sale, it becomes part of the funds an entity
borrows generally and (b) funds borrowed specifically to obtain an
asset other than a qualifying asset are included as part of general
borrowings.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23: Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements in HKAS 12 Income
Taxes by specifying how to reflect the effects of uncertainty in
accounting for income taxes.

The adoption of the Interpretation does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 19: Employee Benefits

The amendments require the use of updated assumptions to
determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder
of the reporting period after a change is made to a plan.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9: Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial assets with
negative compensation can be measured at amortised cost or at
fair value through other comprehensive income instead of at FVPL
if specified conditions are met.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16: Leases

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 and related Interpretations for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. It significantly
changes, among others, the lessee accounting by replacing the
dual-model under HKAS 17 with a single model which requires a
lessee to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for the
rights and obligations created by all leases with a term of more
than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. For
lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the
lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases,
and to account for those two types of leases differently. HKFRS 16
also requires enhanced disclosures to be provided by lessees and
lessors.
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BN /R E R E %L Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs (Continued)

(&)

BB RIREEBE165  HE () HKFRS 16: Leases (Continued)

WIER TR EERE 165808 In accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group has
JEMEAE S - REER2019F1 A1 applied HKFRS 16 for the first time at 1 January 2019 (i.e. the date
HEN¥ R ER B H ) FEAKIEEITH of initial application, the “DIA") using the modified retrospective
BRI FE S B RS iR & R approach in which comparative information has not been restated.
F16% LREMLBEES - M8 Instead, the Group recognised the cumulative effect of initially
R REBRYIXFERBBRAR applying HKFRS 16 as an adjustment to the balance of retained
R THXRERNEFTZEEAR profits or other component of equity, where appropriate, at the
BN R - DIA.

REBNMRKAERA{TER A The Group also elected to use the transition practical expedient
REHRTEHEEONVIRERBEZ not to reassess whether a contract was, or contained, a lease at
LTEEHAE BAEERYEAE the DIA and the Group applied HKFRS 16 only to contracts that
AERBHBREEBNETRELR were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and to
HEMNEHRNIAERB L2 contracts entered into or changed on or after the DIA that are
BIEREEERELELE 16585 identified as leases applying HKFRS 16.

VSR EMBELREENEL -

TERATAN As lessee

RERWE BT REERFE 165 Before the adoption of HKFRS 16, lease contracts were classified
Bl - MEASLRYRERHBHAR as operating or finance lease in accordance with the Group's
EAREEEANSTHRSWER accounting policies applicable prior to the DIA.

REEHENRMEHE -

B EERRE ERE 165 A Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group accounted for the leases
B AEBeREBEEEVBREE in accordance with the transition provisions of HKFRS 16 and the
BII 25 16 5% /) 18 8 A& ST X 4700k e A Group's accounting policies applicable from the DIA.
HERAEEERN T HERT
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Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16: Leases (Continued)

As lessee - leases previously classified as operating leases

The Group recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for
leases previously classified as operating leases at the DIA, except
for leases for which the underlying asset is of low value, and the
Group applied the following practical expedients on a lease-by-
lease basis.

(@) Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics.

(b)  Adjusted the right-of-use assets at the DIA by the provision
for onerous leases recognised immediately before the DIA
by applying HKAS 37, as an alternative to performing an
impairment review at the DIA.

(c)  Did not recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities to
leases for which the lease term ends within 12 months of
the DIA.

(d)  Excluded initial direct costs from the measurement of the
right-of-use assets at the DIA.

(e) Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the
contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

At the DIA, except for those that were previously or will be
accounted for as investment property using the fair value model,
right-of-use assets were, on a lease-by-lease basis, measured at
an amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the lease
recognised immediately before the DIA.

Lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the
remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate at the DIA. The weighted average
incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities at the
DIA is 4.82%.
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BANER] BT R BRI REER Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs (Continued)
(&)
BB HEEREI65 HE(E) HKFRS 16: Leases (Continued)
TERAMA — R D BEREEHES As lessee - leases previously classified as operating leases
HE (&) (Continued)
TR -_ZFE-NF+Z-A Reconciliation of operating lease commitments disclosed applying
=t HERABBGEIFE 7R HKAS 17 at 31 December 2018 and lease liabilities recognised at
BT EAE RN ER B B HE the DIA is as follows.
EQEEL 2 FABEER
AREFT
RMB’000
RZZ-NF+A=+—Hz Operating lease commitments at 31 December 2018
HERERZ16) (Note 16) 841,810
R HEE R 2 A Less: Commitments exempt from capitalisation:
REEEENE THEER Leases of low value assets, short-term leases and
Hitngr THE R other leases with remaining lease term ending
RZBE-NF+=-A=+—H on or before 31 December 2019
A ZHE (289,473)
BERZZ—-N\F+=A Value-added tax including in operating lease
—t+—RzEEREREZ commitment at 31 December 2018
IEER (74,137)
m: BYIREABBEEITHEE Add: Liabilities for lease contracts signed subsequently to
SXHHMEENMG B DIA with the commencement date of the lease
REXERBH R - IR terms on or before the DIA which was not
RZE—N\F+ZA=+—H reflected in operating lease commitments at
ZHEAERBRZBE 31 December 2018 92,088
RZZE—NF—A—HZHBHEERME Gross lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 570,288
B RRFI BB A ERE Less: Total future interest expenses (61,697)
RZE-NF-RA—-—B¥ERZ Lease liabilities recognised at 1 January 2019
HERE 508,591
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Adoption of New/Revised HKFRSs (Continued)

HKFRS 16: Leases (Continued)
As lessee

At the DIA, all right-of-use assets were presented within the
line item “right-of-use assets” on the consolidated statement of
financial position. Besides, lease liabilities were shown separately
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

As a result, transfer was made at the DIA to reflect the changes in
presentation:

BREE - BREE -
BZ2018%F BZ2019%
12A31H1E 1A1H L
EREEET ERERME
ERIZ175 BB BREEAF 165
Carrying amount Carrying amount
on 31 December on 1 January
2018 under 2019 under
HKAS 17 Adjustments HKFRS 16
AREFT AREFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
EmEL)
Increase (Decrease)
HE Assets.
FREEE Right-of-use assets — 4,199,723 4,199,723
THELRE Prepaid lease payments 3,570,367 (3,570,367) —
FEAT R K E At TR IR Prepayments and
other receivables 2,669,689 (120,765) 2,548,924
6,240,056 508,591 6,748,647
g8 Liabilities
HERRE Lease liabilities — 508,591 508,591
TERHTA As lessor

EREBEAR  AEEEAHHEE

REBEETEMNRAE  M&xE

ERVIRERBMERTRBHH
EEAFE 165 °

The Group is not required to make any adjustments on transition
for leases in which it is a lessor and those leases are accounted for
by applying HKFRS 16 from the DIA.
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BEARKZEE RERZARHE T Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and judgements
HEREARREGEESVEMKREE are made by the management in the preparation of the
HeBEMar RERAGSH consolidated financial statements. They affect the application

NEBEHBKER BE - B of the Group's accounting policies, reported amounts of assets,

& WARRAZZ Eﬁiﬁ/j':\gﬁ LA K Ffr liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are

EHCBRBEKRKEE  TEFHER assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and

BB EAER=(2ERRERE relevant factors, including expectations of future events that

BRABATE 1é§/—\f¥2$1¢)%’$ are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where

iy o RIBER - @thstziEgslg appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in

wig uTHHFﬂ&EA%XHﬂFEﬁUW%} P the period of revision and future periods, in case the revision also

B A% M) MR o affects future periods.

() ERETBRNEZAMN (i) Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
INTAEARREZEENERS T The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
BEBEPMELH TG M involving estimations (see below), that the directors have
BHREkTERNESEAFEX made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
FEMNEZAECERERE policies and that have the most significant effect on
(RT3OBRIN) o the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.
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EREHBENEZHAEZ)

BAAHIRER &

RABERAREENGFEN
REUMFEHENELHRER
B ARBESFEEHNAKE
MREFRMEMES  AR/A
SENKREEFMET)EBA
FEREREMIIFEEHEERR
BREUERMETHNBRID K
EHENEBERAFE - B
o REFEAREREEF
ERRENIAR  NAARES
CEEERARERAFEN
REMEHENKEE/ZH
338 th B U E B R ER AR HEED
FTIA > REEEIW R BHEREH
REURFEREEFBEN T
BEEHNLIIEERERRE
LI B 55 3 B W SRR AT B IR
& 3 R E A U -

BEFBHRABETEREARSE
ERPERELEREESNR
DEFEz ERE - BZEF
MRA R RABHES WS
B o BT B EFIERE
B EMmERMTEI6HKE -

0]

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities arising
from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors have reviewed the Group's
investment property portfolio and concluded that the
Group's investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in measuring
the Group's deferred taxation on investment properties, the
directors have determined that the presumption that the
carrying amounts of investment properties measured using
the fair value model are recovered entirely through sale is
rebutted. As a result, the Group has not recognised deferred
taxes on land appreciation taxes in respect of changes in fair
value of investment properties situated in the PRC but has
recognised deferred tax on income tax on the assumption
that these investment properties will be recovered through
use.

Deferred tax liabilities have not been provided for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the undistributed
earnings of certain entities of the Group in the PRC as
those earnings are not expected to be distributable in
the foreseeable future. Details of deferred tax liabilities
are disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Lease terms of contracts with extension and/or
termination options — as lessor and lessee

Lease terms are determined as the non-cancellable period
of a lease, including periods covered by an option to extend
if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise the extension
option, and periods covered by an option to terminate if the
lessee is reasonably certain not to exercise the termination
option.

The Group has lease contracts that include extension and
termination options. In assessing whether the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease,
or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, the Group
applies judgement and considers all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to extend
or terminate the leases.

After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the
lease term upon the occurrence of a significant event or a
significant change in circumstances that is within the control
of the lessee and affects whether the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option or not to exercise a
termination option.

Identification of leases

At the inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease based on the requirements
of HKFRS 16 and all the relevant facts and circumstances.
In particular, the Group assesses whether the contract
involves the use of an identified asset by applying the
concept of substantive substitution right. Also, the Group
assesses whether the Group or the customer has the right
to direct the use of the identified asset with reference to
determination of which party has the decision-making
rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what
purpose the asset is used. In cases where such decisions
are predetermined, the right to operate the asset or the
incorporation of such decisions by means of designing the
asset are considered.
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(ii)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance for
trade receivables by using various inputs and assumptions
including risk of a default and expected loss rate. The
estimation involves high degree of estimation and uncertainty
which is based on the Group'’s historical information, existing
market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at
the end of each reporting period. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying amount of trade receivables. Details of
the key assumption and inputs used in estimating ECL are
set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

The directors review the residual value, useful lives and
depreciation/amortisation method of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets at the end of each
reporting period, through careful consideration with regards
to expected usage, wear-and-tear and potential technical
obsolescence to usage of the assets.

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the
directors have to assess whether an event has occurred that
may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset
value has not been in existence. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amounts of the asset would be determined
by reference to value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal. Value in use is determined using the discounted
cash flow method. Owing to inherent risk associated with
estimations in the timing and magnitude of the future cash
flows and fair value less costs of disposal, the estimated
recoverable amount of the asset may be different from
its actual recoverable amount and profit or loss could be
affected by accuracy of the estimations.

BRAEER
2019 Annual Report ¥

197



SEIIEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2019F12 A31 HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

(ii)

FEETTARERNRE (Z)
RAEE BRI THE

R & ﬁﬁﬁ%#ﬁ?EMTu£14ﬁﬂ46
A ETHE - SNER S T BLAR R =

&ﬁﬂ:zé?%%ﬁm%%
MEESEDGHERERER
B BREEERAAMB T
JSMEﬁi&EEEEmm
ERARAEE ZIER - R
LB =—BEZAARERBEEE
FREWEATBRE 2 TIHER
RFEL R - BENETHEF
BEREMBIRARANBE 2R

BEERE

AEBE)VEBFRERERS
ME - EFEMEFOREED
REeEEBUNEMREE- A
AEAEEFSEAEEERS
EAXBMNIEERSREETT
5t WEEBEAQBEOITREL
AAEEERERENEE - A
st BRI R El & 8 2 A5 1S
R M B MRME19 -

FTEHEREZTEE—FE
A

HREERS 2MEXAUE
T RSB BAE ARG E
ENEFRAKBEENK - &£
BEEMHEZRXE  A5E
& AT B AR B 2 M R AE 5 3%
B BEHAEY A AR
BRMNXUEFEHEESR

= o

198 EMEERERAHE

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

(i)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes

As described in notes 14 and 46 to the consolidated
financial statements, the valuation techniques applied by
various external parties for the level 2 and level 3 assets or
liabilities have been agreed with the management of the
Company. The management determined whether valuation
techniques and assumptions applied are appropriate to the
circumstances of the Group. The estimation of fair value of
level 3 assets included some assumptions not supported by
observable market prices or rates. Change in assumption
could affect the reported fair value of the assets and
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the
value in use of the CGU to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected cash flows from the CGU and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. Details of the estimates
used to calculate the recoverable amount are given in note
19 to the consolidated financial statements.

Discount rates for calculating lease liabilities — as
lessee

The Group uses the lessee’s incremental borrowing rates to
discount future lease payments since interest rates implicit in
the leases are not readily determinable. In determining the
discounts rates for its leases, the Group refers to a rate that
is readily observable as the starting point and then applies
judgement and adjusts such observable rate to determine
the incremental borrowing rate.
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The Company’s executive directors have been identified as
the chief operating decision-maker of the Group. The Group
has identified its operating segments and prepared segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the Company's executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group's business components
and review of these components’ performance. The Company’s
executive directors consider the business principally from a product
perspective which forms a basis for business segment information
as over 99% of the Group’s revenue and business are conducted
in the PRC from a geographical perspective. Business reportable
operating segments identified are instant noodles, beverages and
others. The segment of others includes instant food, investment
holding, properties investment for rental purpose, logistics and
supportive functions.

Starting from current year, the Group focuses on the operating
decisions and the performance evaluation of two reportable
segments which are Instant noodles and Beverages. Instant food
is no longer considered as a separate reportable segment and has
been included in others. As a result of the above re-alignment,
comparative figures presented have also been restated to conform
to current year’s presentation.

For the purposes of assessing the performance of the operating
segments and allocating resources between segments, the
executive directors assess the performance of reportable segments
based on profit for the year and profit before taxation, share of
results of an associate and joint ventures and unallocated income
(expenses), net.

Segment assets include all assets with the exception of interest
in an associate and joint ventures and unallocated assets which
include financial assets at FVPL and Designated FVOCI. Segment
liabilities include all liabilities with the exception of employee
benefit obligations.
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Inter-segment sales are priced at cost plus profit margin. The
accounting policies of the reporting segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies as described in note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BEPHEMAE YIRS M & 3
Do REBZNI9% KEIIHEF

The geographical location of the Group's customers is based on
the location at which the goods are delivered. Over 99% of the

ZWEBFRRAEBEREEE-AAN
EFENER - B NEEMFR
BRFREDEE - BREEDIRFVPLAY
T R E E MR EFVOCI Z SME R0

i -

WER G E—IFEF WAL AR
EFEWE10% A F o

FVOCI, are located in the PRC.

more of the Group’s revenue.

revenues from external customers of the Group are attributable to
customers located in the PRC, the place of domicile of the Group's
operating entities. Meanwhile, all of the Group’s non-current
assets, other than certain financial assets at FVPL and Designated

No revenue from a single external customer amounted to 10% or

DEEE Segment results:
2019
Inter-
Instant segment
noodles  Beverages Others elimination Total
ARBFT ARETZ ARETT ARETH AREFR
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
I Revenue
BEPANEE N Revenue from contracts
with customers 25,295,434 35,580,490 1,016,062 — 61,891,986
Eneylpd =2 Timing of revenue
recognition:
EE R Recognised at a point in time 25,295,434 35,580,490 703,287 — 61,759,211
BE R 1335 Recognised over time = = 312,775 = 312,775
25,295,434 35,580,490 1,016,062 — 61,891,986
BEMIREE Z KA - Revenue from other sources:
REREURE Rental income from
ZHBWA investment properties = = 86,172 = 86,172
SRz e Inter-segment revenue 4,988 19,131 1515469  (1,539,588) —
7 EUEs Segment revenue 25,300,422 35,599,621 2,617,703  (1,539,588) 61,978,158
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DEHEE : (£) Segment results: (Continued)

2019
Inter-
Instant segment
noodles  Beverages Others  elimination Total
ABEFT ANREFT AREFT ARETFT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

PBEE(CNRBBEER)  Segment results after

finance costs 3,364,881 1,549,877 247,413 (6,202) 5,155,969
[EEBENAIRAEDNAIEE  Share of results of an associate

and joint ventures 483 242,752 (9,076) — 234,159
KAEZFWA Unallocated income, net = = 21,468 = 21,468
BB AR Profit before taxation 3,365,364 1,792,629 259,805 (6,202) 5,411,596
A Taxation (1,166,264) (453,607) (73,503) — (1,693,374)
A2 BR Profit for the year 2,199,100 1,339,022 186,302 (6,202) 3,718,222
BE Assets
DHEE Segment assets 22,790,688 29,095,483 4,010,878 (235,139) 55,661,910
BaNRER Interest in an associate = 139,537 — — 139,537
BERFER Interest in joint ventures 882 849,424 38,759 = 889,065
AOREE Unallocated assets 1,269,155
BEE Total assets 57,959,667
8 Liabilities
NHEE Segment liabilities 9,294,961 15805462 10,482,964 (826,893) 34,756,494
AAREE Unallocated liabilities 157,066
BEE Total liabilities 34,913,560
HtnER Other information
hEREH Depreciation and amortisation 777,990 2,324,077 211,848 (56,144) 3,257,771
BARY Capital expenditures 440,974 1,355,033 278,984 — 2,074,991
M Interest income 326,958 228,758 18,854 (33,348) 541,222
FESH Interest expenses 3,967 136,873 310,551 (37,739) 413,652
REEE Impairment loss of property,

plant and equipment 35,097 112,555 4,398 - 152,050
HEMBARFNE Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries 372,208 94,537 162,144 = 628,889
HEAERAFlE Gain on disposal of a joint venture = = 223,150 = 223,150
HERE DA FlE Gain on disposal of an associate 119,593 11,460 = = 131,053
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DEEE : (B) Segment results: (Continued)
2018
Inter-
Instant segment
noodles Beverages Others  elimination Total

ABHTT ARKMTET ARETT ARETT ARKTT
RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000

(4EE3)
(Restated)

= Revenue
REFPANEE W& Revenue from contracts

with customers 23,915,946 35,311,108 1,380,136 — 60,607,190
eyl =2 Timing of revenue

recognition:
TEE—EERD Recognised at a point in time 23,915,946 35,311,108 779,457 — 60,006,511
BEE 3251 Recognised over time — — 600,679 — 600,679

23,915,946 35,311,108 1,380,136 — 60,607,190
REMIREE ZWA Revenue from other sources:
REREHEEHE Rental income from
ZHEHA investment properties — — 78,455 — 78,455

S EE 2 W Inter-segment revenue 728 1,823 1,495,680  (1,498,231) —
aR= ity Segment revenue 23,916,674 35,312,931 2,954,271 (1,498,231) 60,685,645
PREE(CMIRMEER)  Segment results after

finance costs 2,505,302 1,124,905 326,919 1,497 3,958,623
BHEE AT NAENFIEE  Share of results of associates

and joint ventures 212 71,021 347 — 71,580
ARz FTH Unallocated expenses, net — — (50,869) — (50,869)
BB AR Profit before taxation 2,505,514 1,195,926 276,397 1497 3,979,334
HIE Taxation (800,387)  (398,051) (52,127) —  (1,250,565)
RH 2 A Profit for the year 1,705,127 797,875 224,270 1,497 2,728,769
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Segment results: (Continued)

2018
Inter-
Instant segment
noodles Beverages Others  elimination Total

ABHTT ARMTET ARETT ARETT ARKTZT
RMB000  RMBO00  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000

(4 E5)
(Restated)

BE Assets
THEE Segment assets 19,508,958 27,360,079 5,516,526 (771,501) 51,614,062
LNl Interest in associates — 127,725 — — 127,725
AELNARER Interest in joint ventures 399 650,509 47,835 — 698,743
AOEEE Unallocated assets 562,139
BEE Total assets 53,002,669
=4 Liabilities
AHEE Segment liabilities 8,181,378 14,704,521 7,749,539  (1,360,636) 29,274,802
*PE&aE Unallocated liabilities 115,436
BaE Total liabilities 29,390,238
Hipg Other information
MEREE Depreciation and amortisation 716,954 2,465,003 141,550 — 3,323,507
BERRZ Capital expenditures 370,086 978,848 96,858 — 1445792
FIBHA Interest income 201,172 158,004 19,590 (30,378) 348,388
FlEx Interest expenses — 180,131 271,929 (30,378) 421,682
REEE Impairment loss of property,

plant and equipment 280,274 340,672 4,900 — 625,846
HEMBRARFER)ME  Net (loss) gain on disposal

of subsidiaries — (3,225) 391,069 — 387,844
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2019 2018
AR¥FT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FBHA Interest income 541,222 348,388
2019 2018
k3 AR¥FT ARBFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
WA (ZH) : Income (Expenses):
& R mn 2 W as Gain on sales of scrapped materials 160,451 154,535
BRAREEYERE Change in fair value of financial
EnREEeRMEEL assets at FVPL, net
NABEZEFER 20,774 (49,675)
WEEFEHEAALBELEE Change in fair value of
investment properties 14 3,674 13,000
RARBEYERE Change in fair value of financial
BRERENS/MBE.  labilites at FVPL, net
NREEZEFHE 33 188 40,115
BRAREBEYERE Dividend income from financial
EmRRESRMEEY assets at FVPL
PR AU A 3,253 6,500
HEMEB AR FR S Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries 43 628,889 387,844
e A QBRI Gain on disposal of an associate 15(d) 131,053 —
HEaEARF A Gain on disposal of a joint venture 20(a) 223,150 —
B 76 Bh Government grants 314,116 166,140
MEMZE, e R HE R Loss on disposal of property,
CREEEZEE plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (92,900) (86,607)
fE 5 e (182K ) 558 Exchange gain (loss), net 15,511 (46,922)
Hith Others 136,064 219,044
1,544,223 803,974
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This is stated after charging (crediting):

2019 2018
AR¥FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B%E M Finance costs
AR S FNBHEE 2T Interest on bank and other borrowings wholly
REMERZFEZ T repayable within five years 363,850 392,570
AN 5 F DA _EBEEE 2 $R1T Interest on bank and other borrowings wholly
REMERZFEZ T repayable over five years 27,944 33,049
HEaBEEEZMEER  Finance costs on lease liabilities 24,625 —
416,419 425,619
B MESZHEARETIA  Less: Borrowing costs capitalised into
VIZ - R REE property, plant and equipment at
EFHER XS weighted average capitalisation
3.71% (2018: 3.89%) rate of 3.71% (2018: 3.89%) (2,767) (3,937)
413,652 421,682
2019 2018
AR¥FT ABR®FT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HihE H Other items
ETHRA(BIEEEMSE) ©  Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration):
e Ko Salaries and wages 6,347,895 6,026,909
R AE RGO I Equity-settled share-based
2 I8 payment expenses 24,504 32,799
RIRB A Pension costs:
REMKETE Defined contribution plans 648,730 686,986
AEBFIGTE Defined benefit plans 13,623 10,352
ZEEN £ - Auditor's remuneration:
=ZEH Audit fee 8,961 9,297
BEETFTEKRAN# Cost of inventories 42,218,703 41,958,429
E - Depreciation:
Wz - MR REE Property, plant and equipment 2,952,224 3,210,324
EAEEE Right-of-use assets 299,141 —
T AR A0 B 2 B Amortisation of prepaid lease payments — 103,693
B A E Amortisation of intangible assets
(BEBRFERDHEAA) (included in distribution costs) 6,406 9,490
M - WERRE Impairment loss of property, plant and
REEE(BIEREM equipment (included in other operating
SEEBRN) expenses) 152,050 625,846
# EEFERATEEHEE THA - # Cost of inventories includes RMB4,822,750,000 (2018:

Y E - BESRBEREHREEES
WE MBEHGHEE KEEE
EMEM Ra#H+ AR (2018
FHETHE  WE - #EERR
BEZHE LA RE B
REZYEEHLGEE)Z ANRE
4,822,750,0007T (20184 : A

RMB4,617,243,000) relating to staff costs and depreciation of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets and lease
expenses relating to short-term leases, low value assets and variable
lease payments (2018: staff costs, depreciation of property, plant
and equipment, amortisation of prepaid lease payments and
operating lease charges of premises), which amount is also included
in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above.

4,617,243,0007C) * Z & 2 B IrAT
AU LB T FFEZ S FIAEFET -
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ARARREZERTHRAHE TR The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable to the
[z BN BEEI T Company'’s directors and chief executive officer are as follows:
2019
BIREXHR
ExMhEke
4R DRGXA STEMR
Hitie Z5E  Retirement
Ezhg Salaries AL Share- payments and
Directors' and other  Discretionary based  contribution fit
fees  emoluments bonuses payments  to pension Total

ABRTE  ARRTZ  ARETr  ARRTZ  ARETZ  ARRTZ
RMBO00  RMB000  RMB0O0  RMBOO)  RMBUOO  RMBUO0

HIEZE: Executive directors:
BN Wei Ing-Chou = = = 473 23902 24,375
BEA Wei Hong-Ming 690 1,763 35 1,189 = 9,998
FRE—H Junichiro Ida 552 21 = = = m
REX Wei Hong-Chen 1,036 6,763 356 1,189 — 9,344
REER Koji Shinohara 345 m = = = 566
aERE Yuko Takahashi 144 138 — — — 282
REBIE Teruo Nagano 201 83 = = = 284
HEE Lin Chin-Tang 345 110 = = = 455
2 Tseng Chien - - - - = =
BUHHTEE Indeeoendent non-executive directors:
TRiER Hsu Shin-Chun 345 110 - = = 455
3 Lee Tiong-Hock 345 110 = = = 455
RER Hiromu Fukada 345 110 = = = 455
T4 - Chief executive officer;
B James Chun-Hsien Wei = 18,211 3,299 6,161 = 27,671

4,348 33,840 4011 9,012 23,902 5,113
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ZREM A R2019F1 A1 HE X
KRBITEEH -
b

JEIN %5 A A 201941 A1 B BHE
AEBEXE RB - BERBELLE
TEERNEEESF -

BEREEN2019FE1A1AES
TERABNITES °

MR2019F8H9H KRB EHLAE
HIARBNITEEMSBBEL
FTEZTAERRRRNTES -

MN2019F12 8318 KiFE L4
BIEARBRTESMEELLE
TEERATNITES -

HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

Mr. Wei Ing-Chou resigned as an executive director of the
Company on 1 January 2019.

Mr. Wei Ing-Chou resigned and Mr. Wei Hong-Ming was
appointed as the chairman of the Group on 1 January 2019.

Mr. Wei Hong-Chen was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 1 January 2019.

Mr. Teruo Nagano resigned and Mr. Yuko Takahashi was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 9 August
2019.

Mr. Lin Chin-Tang resigned and Ms. Tseng Chien was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 31 December 2019.
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2018

BREEHR

EEEREKS

H2R PG ST

e ZFIE Retirement

208 Salaries bzl Share-  payments and
Directors' ~and other  Discretionary based  contribution =
fees  emoluments bonuses payments  to pension Total

ANBRTT  ABETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETL
RMBO0O  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMB000

HITEE - Executive directors:
BN Wei Ing-Chou 1327 9,932 4,808 304 — 16,371
HBa— Junichiro Ida 531 M - - - 743
REELE Teruo Nagano 332 106 — — — 438
REA Wei Hong-Ming 332 1919 475 949 - 3,675
e Koji Shinohara 332 212 — — — 544
WEX Lin Chin-Tang 332 212 — — — 544
BUHHTEE - Independent non-executive directors:
rEE Hsu Shin-Chun 33 106 - — — 438
2RE Lee Tiong-Hock 332 80 — — — 412
REAE Hiromu Fukada 33 106 - - - 438
TR : Chief executive officer;
ZRE James Chun-Hsien Wej - 11,254 4,521 4,944 - 20,719
4,182 24139 9,804 6,197 — 44,322
FR20194F N 2018F 12 A31 HIEF No directors and five highest paid individuals have waived
EWEEERSUEmHALRES emoluments in respect of the years ended 31 December 2019 and
HE® o 2018.
REBREAYAESERSURSH No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors
ATMAXREEMNME S EES and five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
MAXREBEBN e AES K joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

ERLIFHERE -
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AEEBESMNESHFALTEE MR
2009F 1 ATHEBHANES W
UEEH2018F - 1 EF)RITH
BE - EMeFBER EXRIMIA
(20184 - 3fi7) - E#r141(2018
F:3M)NTZ2MeFHBHOT -

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the

Group for the year include one director who resigned on 1 January

2019, two directors (2018: one director) and the chief executive

officer whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented

above and one individual (2018 three). Details of the emoluments

of the remaining one individual (2078: three) are as follows:

2019 2018

AR¥FT AREFoT

RMB’000 RMB'000

FekEMNe Salaries and other emoluments 5,075 12,856

VAR5 32 1+ 2 5108 Share-based payments 1,850 7,766
BRI REESN Retirement payments and contribution

RIREET B to pension scheme — —

TE4L Discretionary bonuses 2,124 7,625

9,049 28,247

S (20184 < 317)ZEH AL
ZMSERIMT :

The emoluments were paid to the one (20178: three) highest paid

individuals as follows:

Number of individuals

£ 48 B Emoluments band 2019 2018
AR#7,051,201 TEARKE RMB7,051,201 to RMB7,491,900

7,491,900 7t.(8,000,001 % 7T (HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000)

Z 8,500,000 7T) = 1
AR#8,373,301 T2 AR RMB8,373,301 to RMB8,814,000

8,814,0007t(9,500,001 7T (HK$9,500,001 to HK$10,000,000)

210,000,000/ 7T) = 1
AR#8,814,001 TE AR RMBS8,814,001 to RMB9,254,700

9,254,7007t(10,000,001 #7T (HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000)

% 10,500,000/ 7T) 1 —
AR#11,898,901 TE AR RMB11,898,901 to RMB12,339,600

12,339,60075(13,500,00187c  (HK$13,500,001 to HK$14,000,000)

Z 14,000,000/ 7T) — 1

1 3
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HZE2019F12 A31 HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
AR¥FT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REEBIE— Current tax — PRC Enterprise income tax
PECEMER
REZE Current year 1,245,211 1,196,356
LARTF B Z 51 e Over provision in prior year (17,587) (74)
1,227,624 1,196,282
ERERLIE (M £ 36) Deferred taxation (Note 36)
EAERERE 2 Origination and reversal of temporary
R ERFHE differences, net (18,286) (92,656)
BRAEERPEZ Effect of withholding tax on the net
Bt & A R AT 55 AL R R distributable earnings of the Group's
FRRZ AR PRC subsidiaries 484,036 146,939
465,750 54,283
REETIABER Total tax charge for the year 1,693,374 1,250,565

MEeERBSY M ARARAERZ

WA BT BLIA -

HRAEEZARREZE2019F K&
2018 4 A AT (7] & 78 FI) 15 i FE 25
BAHE ARt RAEEEFSH

A -

hEKREZHEBARAENRED
EMIEMEAERE B25% (2018
F:25%)  RIBMEE - BHEEE
BB R BB S B HOCERIR
A E e 7 50 A B % BLRE A B UK R
FERER (B BL[2011]585%) -

and the Group.

The Cayman Islands levies no tax on the income of the Company

Hong Kong Profits Tax has not been provided as the Group’s
entities had no assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax
for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

The statutory PRC Enterprise income tax for the PRC subsidiaries
is 25% (20718: 25%). According to the Tax Relief Notice (Cai Shui
[2011] no. 58) on the Grand Development of Western Region
jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance, the State Administration
of Taxation and China Customs, foreign investment enterprises
located in the western region of the PRC (the “Western Region”)

iz pA R B K B 75 B b [ ([ 78 3P it
EDMBERSEEEENIFRE
T HBBEEXEFERAGR
HEBIWART0% A ER - FE20114F
E2020FFE - WIL15% HEED
EHREEMER - Bt - A& H
RS E 2 B AR RER15%
(2018%F : 15%) »

with over 70% of principal revenue generated from the
encouraged business activities are entitled to a preferential income
tax rate of 15% for 10 years from 1 January 2011 to 31 December
2020. Accordingly, certain subsidiaries located in the Western
Region are entitled to an income tax rate of 15% (2078 15%).

210 EEEZRRERAR
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HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

NE [ 2 B B AT m F B AN [ AR I8 The Group's profit before taxation is reconciled to the tax expense
HERNT - for the year as follows:
BlEB X 2 BIR Reconciliation of tax expense
2019 2018
AR#FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BB BRI Profit before taxation 5,411,596 3,979,334
RHBUEERE 25% 2 Income tax at statutory tax rate of 25%
FIE(20184F - 25%) in the PRC (2018: 25%) 1,352,899 994,834
JEIREE A EARIELS  Share of results of an associate
and joint ventures (58,540) (17,895)
NE[ B Non-deductible expenses 186,145 245,861
EERBBA Tax exempt revenue (101,253) (43,458)
RIERTIAEE Unrecognised tax losses 105,055 115,220
RERERER Unrecognised temporary differences (12,107) 8,936
MR BE I ARFERFEERE R  Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (179,407) (154,642)
WMAREERFREZHE AR Effect of withholding tax on the distributable
At BRI 2 TER profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
(Ki7#36) (note 36) 484,036 146,939
FA 78 B [ B R Effect of tax relief on PRC subsidiaries in
BB A B2 BUUR % Western Region (28,761) (19,542)
AR E %5t Over provision in prior year (17,587) (74)
Hith Others (37.106) (25,614)
REFERIA Tax expense for the year 1,693,374 1,250,565
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RRABRRERRAFERESEZ K
g8

(a)

Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable to
the year:

2019 2018
AR¥ T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEHAREIR 2 RARE Final dividend proposed after the end of
BRTEK4.24E the reporting period of US4.24 cents
(2018 : R EBK (2018: US3.20 cents) per ordinary share
3.20 M) 1,665,491 1,231,661
EHAREIR IR E Special dividend proposed after the end of
BRTEK4.24E the reporting period of US4.24 cents
(2018 : R EBEK (2018: 3.20 cents) per ordinary share
3.20 %)) 1,665,490 1,231,660
3,330,981 2,463,321

M2020F3 823 M & =
EERARRERIREERE
BRA24FZN R KRR BB
LR 424300 - LR
BEEMEBRNEERRERS
B53EA - BRI AEZE 2020
FI2ANBEFERRHER
oo WEERFRIR B MR
BRGEMBIRRATRFTRA
JERIAR B ©

RAFRIERKERBR
—HMRFETARABRR ZE

SRR

At meeting held on 23 March 2020, the directors
recommended the payment of a special dividend and a final
dividend of US4.24 cents and US4.24 cents per ordinary
share respectively. The proposed special and final dividend
will be accounted for as an appropriation of reserves in
the year ending 31 December 2020 if it is approved at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. The proposed
dividend have not been recognised as dividends payable in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Dividends payable to owners of the Company attributable
to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the
year:

2019 2018
AR¥FT AEBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
PARERUENIRZEBER  Final dividend in respect of the previous
AIFERARER financial year, approved and paid
FE®R3.20 =L during the year, of US3.20 cents
(2018 %F : R ZEK (2018: US2.49 cents) per ordinary share
2.49 %) 1,231,661 909,539
PAFERHE MREBR Special dividend in respect of the previous
AIFEERNRER financial year, approved and paid
T EER3.20 AL during the year, of US3.20 cents
(20184 : f%) (2018: Nil) per ordinary share 1,231,660 —
2,463,321 909,539
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T AEEREREF &GRS E S The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is as
Mzzt8 - follows:
(@) BREA&EF (a) Basic earnings per share
2019 2018
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
R RIRERF RIS Profit attributable to ordinary equity
HEH(ARETIT) shareholders (RMB’000) 3,330,981 2,463,321
EETE R Ik Weighted average number of
FERE (TR ordinary shares ('000) 5,622,019 5,617,202
FREEAH R (AR®ESD ) Basic earnings per share (RMB cents) 59.25 43.85
(b) BREHEF (b) Diluted earnings per share
2019 2018
ARMFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

RARBEFAEMSEF  Profit attributable to ordinary equity

(AR%FT) shareholders (RMB'000) 3,330,981 2,463,321
ZiE AR IR T2 Weighted average number of ordinary
(#58)(TH) shares (diluted) ('000)
BETEBERZ Weighted average number of ordinary
AN 15 2 shares 5,622,019 5,617,202
NAREREE ZFE  Effect of the Company's share option
scheme 4,831 10,129

BRTESR#E#EEF 2  Weighted average number of ordinary

TR N T 8 shares for the purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share 5,626,850 5,627,331
BRHESF(ARESD)  Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents) 59.20 43.77
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2019 2018
AR¥FT AREFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE At fair value
REH] At beginning of the year 1,119,000 1,106,000
RE-BEA Addition - purchases 24 648,826 —
NI = Change in fair value 3,674 13,000
REER At the end of the reporting period 1,771,500 1,119,000

(a)

REBZREEFRHERER
BEWEREHESBUEREZRL
HE AR RPEEETHEA
7RI 16785 K 1686 5F
LA Ko A B O 532 T A6 07 93¢ i R B
BB EHEFBARZIAAR
ﬁ o

AEENSEHELHEEST
REGFEME  FHEAR?2
E3F YEEREHEMRR
VARG AR TR 2 IR A o

XELEHEZHEWAFS
A M MmRMEE3(m)

HEAREBEHENREHERE
mEZRERE AKE-R
SRIVHEERE At T g
VEER - ERREREER
mRRRE - HARKIREZTEH
KRR EHEZ RAEET °
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(a)

The Group’s investment properties, which consist of
commercial properties and car parks together with their
respective prepaid lease payments, are situated in No. 1678
and No. 1686 Wuzhong Road, Minhang District, Shanghai,
the PRC and southwest corner of the intersection of Fada
Street and Xincheng West Road, Economic-Technological
Development Area, Tianjin, the PRC.

The Group leases out certain of its investment properties in
Shanghai under operating leases with average lease terms
of 2-3 years and with options to renew upon expiry at new
terms.

Accounting policy of the rental income from operating
leases are set out in note 3(m) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Although the Group is exposed to changes in the residual
value at the end of the current leases, the Group typically
enters into new operating leases and therefore will not
immediately realise and reduction in residual value at the
end of these leases. Expectations about the future residual
values are reflected in the fair value of the properties.
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(%) (@)  (Continued)
LT ABEREIREEREE Below is a maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments
ME 2 RTBRBEERN K2 to be received from the leasing of investment properties.
=Ea% T
AR¥FT
7"2019F12A31H8 At 31 December 2019 RMB’000
15R Within one year 38,875
F2F In the second year 18,939
F3IF In the third year 6,437
FEAF In the fourth year 1,436
F54F In the fifth year 718
66,405
AAEBEFTEMFTHRRE (b)  Fair value measurements and valuation processes
WEMEME 2 TR 2 The future aggregate minimum rental receivables under
HE IETZ*XE&EJEHNHi non-cancellable operating leases of investment properties
REBIT were as follows:
ARBTFr
A2018%12831H At 31 December 2018 RMB’000
—F R Within one year 47,365
ZEERFN(BIEERRSE) In the second to fifth years inclusive 54,812
102,177

HEREMEMENAAEBE
B - AREBMBREREE
AEBGHEMETHE - B12
BB IEEEERNIGERD
BYAE B EENGEER
MR AR g A SR - 1@
Az B ANMEEBH - RMEE
FEEDERBAMELEN
MTIBHEEH2E A E BN
ERWMAENA KT AUDE
BEMBERBERTERE - &
FETRAME RN R THE 2
HEMRZIEROBLUDES
RETBRWEEE - BERIERM
ERFTAB A FEY X B R
HERZARBEA - EFE
MEATEER  WENRS
MExERERAEBAAR -

In estimating the fair values of investment properties, it is
the Group's policy to engage an independent professional
qualified valuer to perform the valuation. The management
works closely with the independent professional qualified
valuer to establish the appropriate valuation technique
and inputs to the model. The valuations have been arrived
at using income capitalisation approach. In the valuation,
the market rentals of all lettable units of the commercial
properties are assessed by reference to the rentals achieved
in the lettable units as well as other lettings of similar
properties in the neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate
adopted is made by reference to the yield rates observed by
the valuer for similar properties in the locality and adjusted
based on the valuer’'s knowledge of the factors specific to
the respective properties. In estimating the fair value of the
properties, the highest and best use of the properties is their
current use.
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(b) AAEEFEMTHREZGE) (b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)

REEZEREMNFHMENRD The fair value measurements for the Group's investment

BEEFESHEEANEENSE properties are categorised into Level 3 in the fair value

3R RAFERNRBIEE hierarchy based on the inputs to valuation techniques used.

BEZEHRHSBRFI3EL - There was no transfer into or out of Level 3 during the year.

BREEEEwEBABATH The following table gives information on significant

BIRBAGSENT unobservable inputs to the valuation of investment
properties:

2019 2019

AUTENE L OB AR

DRBENEE

BEMEME HEFLTREEHA EXFTATHASHNEA Relationship of

Investment Valuation techniques Significant unobservable unobservable inputs to

properties and key input(s) input(s) fair value

R EERKZE WHENE

B ERYEM Income capitalisation

FE5 approach

Commercial

properties and ERBA

car parks The key inputs are:

i Shangha FR31 B 3R ERBBMERAEAL  BENE FAOERENEEEES

and Tianjin REESREENARMEER I S4RENREHREN
OB ARAVEREESNE QATVEBEABEATHK RZ
SUWREXE BRI AR5.00% K TR
450% @ ERFA DB A55%F
6% K3% °

Reversion yield Reversion yield, taking into account An increase in the reversion

the capitalisation of the rental yield used would result in
derived from the existing tenancies a decrease in the fair value
with due allowance for reversionary of the investment properties,
rental potential of the commercial and vice versa.

properties and car parks of 5.00%
and 4.50% respectively in Shanghai
and 5.5% to 6% and 3% in Tianjin
respectively.
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N EEEMFGRIZE)

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)

AABRE LB AR
DABENBE

REMEHE RERLDREEGA BERFABRAGHNEA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques Significant unobservable unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) input(s) fair value

[RE A=k BAEYE

Daily market rent

ZRIEMHE MBEREREAME
BYEAFZEANERNEE - wh
MEFPE - EBRXEEAVES
AmSES ARALERETE
FARDRABEARBTOOITEA
RENMNITRARBEIITTEA
R#4667T -

Commercial properties

Daily market rents, taking into
account the time, location, and
individual factors such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the commercial properties,
ranging from RMB7.07 to RMB11.16
per square meter per day on lettable
area basis in Shanghai and from
RMB3.17 to RMB4.66 per square
meter per day on lettable areas basis
in Tianjin.

FES
ZRIEME - B R ERYEEY
xR zHENENEE - WHRK
PR EBRREGEEEMNE
AmBEEEeD A AARE 2677
RARE16TT -

Car parks

Daily market rents, taking into
account of the time, location, and
individual factors, such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the properties of RMB26.77 per
unit for car park spaces in Shanghai
and RMB16 per unit for car park
spaces in Tianjin.

FrANEEmEEEEA L
gt REUREHENDR
FTEEFERLA RZT

R o

An increase in the daily market
rent used would result in an
increase in the fair value of the
investment properties, and vice

versa.
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(b) AARBEFFEMHEREGE)

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)
2018 2018
AABASE L@ AR
DREENERE
REMEWE EERGREIEHA ERFUBASHNEA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques Significant unobservable unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) input(s) fair value
R EENERY WaERE
ENFES Income capitalisation
Commercial approach
properties and
car parks EEHA
in Shanghai The key inputs are:
RHEmOERE ZRIBMAERL  BAVEREE HMANBRENEREEF LA

Reversion yield

5 B

Daily market rent

218 EEEZERERAR
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SRAERNSEMEEHSRR Hel
% A5.00% K4.50% ©

Reversion yield, taking into account
the capitalisation of the rental
derived from the existing tenancies
with due allowance for reversionary
rental potential of the commercial
properties and car parks of 5.00%
and 4.50% respectively.

BEYE

ZERIGE HHERERIANEENE
KgzROERNERZ NrmRkFE - §
A5 e AR HAERT 8T A RS
ARB6.63TEARK .06 °
Commercial properties

Daily market rents, taking into
account the time, location, and
individual factors such as frontage
and size, between the comparable
and the commercial properties,
ranging from RMB6.63 to

RMB11.06 per square meter

per day on lettable area basis.

&
eoRENEHENLTEEE
BT% R2FA -

An increase in the reversion
yield used would result in

a decrease in the fair value
of the investment properties,
and vice versa.

FRMERTSHEEERLI €
SRENFHENATEESEA
Et R

An increase in the daily
market rent used would
result in an increase in the
fair value of the investment
properties, and vice versa.
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HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

(b) RAAEEFEMTHREE) (b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes
(Continued)
RABRB L@ AR
DRAEENRE
REMEHE EERGREEHA EATABASHOEA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques Significant unobservable unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) input(s) fair value
FE5
ZRINRE HERURNFANELRY
ZENENRRZ  mAmRFPE  BRARF
BuMEATSHEEIAARK 24827 -
Car parks
Daily market rents, taking into account
of the time, location, and individual
factors, such as frontage and size,
between the comparable and the
properties of RMB24.82 per unit for
car park spaces.
H e
BERRE  Electrical
KAERLH Machinery ~ appliances ~ HERE  HEIR
Freehold B¥ and and Miscellaneous Construction gt
land  Buildings  equipment  equipment  equipment in progress Total
ABETE  AREFEZ  ARETT  ARETR  AREFL  AREFT  ARETR
RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000
(fiita) (fiith)
(Note a) (Note b)
BEERE- Reconciliation of carrying amount -
BZ20185128318  year ended 31 December 2018
LEE
RET At beginning of year 113987 8138049 17,451,705 70670 637,776 160259 28,014,779
HE Additions - 94,817 206,534 12,554 342,040 708,141 1,364,086
RESEWHE) Impairment loss (Vote ¢/ - —  (625846) - - —  (625846)
ERRER Transfer upon completion - 337489 1,009,709 641 285382 (1,633,221) -
e Disposals — (1,049) (37.369) (1.914) (87320) - (127,65)
HE-HEMBAT  Disposals - disposal of subsiclaries —  (40681)  (208,106) (2,990) (12,330) (26849  (490956)
ik Depreciation — (4994 (377091 (26293 (309986) - (321034)
EREE Exchange differences 22% 1,206 36 5 - - 3543
REER Atend of the reporting period 116,283 7832817 15419572 52,673 855,562 650,603 24,927,630
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HZE2019F12 A31 HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

HEE
WERRE  Electrical
KAKELH Machinery  appliances ~ HEHRE  ARIR
Freehold BF and and Miscellaneous Construction &3t
land  Buildings  equipment  equipment  equipment in progress Total
ABRTE  AREFL  ARETT  ARETR  AREFL  AREFT  ARRTZ
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
(fta)  (KZb)
(Note a) (Note b)
BEERE- Reconciliation of carrying amount -
HE2019%12A31R  yearended 31 December 2019
LEE
RED At beginning of year 116,283 7832877 15419572 52,673 855,562 650663 24,927,630
hE Additions - 49,469 134,497 11,806 617,665 977,434 1,790,871
HEBRMW:L) Impairment loss (Mote ¢) - = (152,050) - - — (152,050
EhA e Transfer upon completion = 816,780 210,279 6,814 108,115 (1,141,988) =
e o) Disposals (Note ¢ —  (110308)  (169750)  (13622)  (131599) —  (425219)
HE-HEMBAT  Disposals - disposal of subsidiaries
(hit43) (Note 43) —  (154851) (24,495 (134) (2.961) - (182441)
ik Depreciation - (491,007 (2,200,512) (16,031) (244,584) — (2952224
ERZE Exchange differences 4,948 2532 2 2 = = 7484
REER At end of the reporting period 121231 7945402 13217543 41508 1,202,198 486,109 23,013,991
R201951518 At 1 January 2019
R Cost 116,283 12,202,567 33,922,275 266,691 5,070,447 650663 52,228,926
ZEMERMBERE  Acumulated depreciation and
impairment losses —  (4369,690) (18502,703)  (214,018)  (4,214,885) —  (27,301,29)
RERE Net carrying amount 116,283 7,832877  15419,572 52,673 855,562 650,663 24,927,630
R201912A318 At 31 December 2019
R Cost 121231 12363247 32,108,916 208924 4,927,395 486,109 50,215,822
ZETEMAESE  Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses —  (4817885) (18891373)  (167416) (3,725,197 —  (27201831)
RERE Net carrying amount 271,31 1945402 13,217,543 41508 1,202,198 486,109 23,013,991
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Notes:

(a)

(b)

| Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
2 A31HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

The land represents the freehold land located outside Hong Kong.

At the end of the reporting period, the building ownership
certificates of the Group’s certain buildings with aggregate net
carrying amount of RMBRMB47,659,000 (2078: RMB50,064,000)
have not been obtained due to application for the changes of
granted land use purpose is still in process. In the opinion of
directors, the Group validly occupies and uses these buildings.

During the year, the Group continued to implement a new
rationalisation plan for both the instant noodle and beverage
segments under which the Group had devoted more efforts on
promoting asset-light through the optimisation of capacity allocation
so as to improve operational efficiency and reduce operational
costs. Accordingly, certain individual machinery and equipment with
carrying amount of RMB152,050,000 (2078: RMB625,846,000)
were fully impaired due to prolonged period of being idle and
technical obsolescence with comparably low production efficiency.
The Group decided not to re-use these machinery and equipment
and all those assets are prepared to be disposed of. The residual
values of these machinery and equipment were estimated to be
insignificant.

Among disposals during the year, pursuant to a contractual
agreement between the Group and another two investors, in July
2019, the Group injected certain property, plant and equipment and
land use right in respect of leasehold land in PRC with the carrying
amounts of RMB59,420,000 and RMB15,632,000 respectively at
their fair value as investment cost of paid-up capital of an associate
(the "Associate”) and the Group has 53.91% effective ownership
interest in the Associate. Subsequently, the Group disposed of
the entire equity interests of the Associate to an investor at a cash
consideration of RMB216,198,000. As a result, a gain on disposal of
an associate amounted to RMB131,053,000 was recorded in other
net income in the consolidated income statement.
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HZE2019F12 A31 HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

EREEE Right-of-use assets
BERUR
HEEEZ
T fE A
Land use AR
right in HiR 1
respect of Machinery
leasehold BF and other k]
land in PRC Properties  equipment Total

ARBTT AREFT ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

EREE SR — Reconciliation of carrying

HZE2019F amount - year ended

12A31BLEFE 31 December 2019
REY)—HRIRMEBFT At beginning of the year -

WELERE 165 upon adoption of HKFRS 16 3,657,657 535,161 6,905 4,199,723
NE Additions 42,386 214,368 6,865 263,619

B E155] Lease modification = (56,623) (185) (56,808)
H& (H5E 15(d)) Disposal (Note 15(d) (17,126) — — (17,126)
HEME AT Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 43)

(W1t 43) (65,143) — — (65,143)
e Depreciation (105,272) (190,507) (3.362) (299,141)
REEH At the end of the

reporting period 3,512,502 502,399 10,223 4,025,124
BEAMRK
HEEEZ
Tt R
Land use HEER
right in HitR1E
respect of Machinery
leasehold BF and other k|
land in PRC Properties  equipment Total

ARBTT AREFT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

20195128318 At 31 December 2019

D% Cost 4,280,469 686,625 13,562 4,980,656
ZAMERRERE  Accumulated depreciation

and impairment losses (767,967) (184,226) (3,339) (955,532)
REFE Net carrying amount 3,512,502 502,399 10,223 4,025,124
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FFRLEALE  BRIEAEEE
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HEREGHHREEE -

RYEHEHEMS AEEAKEH
MERFBETHRN - TREEE
WSS A R EAR KM ZE -

TEESAX

TR AR RLSAEE TR
AEGER - I EAEEEER
BAMREBIEN K -

ERRRILERERE

AEENIOEFZHEARES
REREIEEE - BERAER
EAREERBEIGITE Uik
FrEE LREM o

HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

The Group leases various buildings, machinery and other
equipment for its daily operations. Lease terms range from 1
month to 11 years.

Restrictions or covenants

Except for the land use right in respect of the leasehold land in the
PRC, most of the leases impose a restriction that, unless approval
is obtained from the lessor, the right-of-use asset can only be used
by the Group and the Group is prohibited from selling or pledging
the underlying assets.

For leases of properties, the Group is required to keep those
properties in a good state of repair and return the properties in
their original condition at the end of the lease.

Variable lease payments

Variable lease payments represent leases which contain variable
lease payments that are linked to the actual usage with no
minimum payments.

Extension and termination options

Some of the lease contracts of buildings contain an extension and
termination option, respectively. The extension and termination
option of the leases of office premises is not normally exercised in
order to keep the flexibility of operations.

HEAE Lease liabilities
2019 2018
ARET T AR T
RMB’000 RMB'000

HEEE Lease liabilities

mBNE Current portion 199,664 —
EREE D Non-current portion 287,892 —
487,556 —
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HZE2019F12 A31 HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

HEeaEE) Lease liabilities (Continued)
REFAREEDHERATHIA - The Group has recognised the following amounts for the year:
2019 2018
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MERK Lease payments:
REIRE Short-term leases 185,607 —
KEEHE Low-value assets 3,063 —
LIBME K Operating lease payments — 432,140
RIERERERR X Expenses recognised in profit or loss 188,670 432,140
W IR FHEEHFIR 2 a] &  Variable lease payments that do not depend
HEMREAEBEA) on an index or a rate (as lessee)
MEE under leases 31,783 —
N8 AR 2 BB FSZ Total expenses recognised in profit or loss 220,453 432,140
REEEEZEER Total cash outflow for leases 426,331 432,140
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HEARE

BR2019F 12 A31H » AEBEBE &
ERAMB s BRKSERBAE
XZHEGN - AT AERR
MREEERER Z2EEBEEN KA
AR¥8,011,0007T °

MR2019%F 12 A31H » N&EEB %
EARMEA2,448,000 T2 HATRE -

A2018%F 12 A31H

AEBEAAIMHEEHERTNZR
RREENHEENREENAT

HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

Commitments under leases

At 31 December 2019, the Group was committed to lease
contracts in relation to properties, machinery and other equipment
that have not yet commenced. The related lease payments that
were not paid and not reflected in the measurement of lease
liabilities were RMB8,011,000.

At 31 December 2019, the Group was committed to
RMB42,448,000 for short-term leases.

At 31 December 2018

The Group had total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases, which are payable as follows:

ARBTFr

RMB’000

—FR Within one year 307,558
FEEFAFN(PEEEME) In the second to fifth years inclusive 447,470
iszhic ks Over five years 86,782
841,810

TR EERCRPEIRANE
BTN o GRS B R R M
FE16PTE  BRIA A BN
e MERMTBYBRELRNF 16
SR - DA R (E 25 RE R E

Prepaid lease payments represent cost paid for leasehold land in
the PRC. The cost is amortised over the leasehold period. Upon the
adoption of HKFRS 16, the prepaid lease payments are presented
as land use right in respect of leasehold land in PRC under right-
of-use assets as set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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HZE2019F12 A31 HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

KERFAIE
BERERE Water
Concession resource @gt
right license Total
AREFr AR ARHETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
IREEYE Reconciliation of carrying amount
-8 Z2018%12A31H - Year ended 31 December 2018
tEE
READ At beginning of the year 162,936 — 162,936
NE Addition — 23,867 23,867
5 Amortisation (4,999) (4,491) (9,490)
BE 5 55 B Exchange realignment 9,145 — 9,145
REEH At end of the reporting period 167,082 19,376 186,458
REEY R Reconciliation of carrying amount
-#HZ2019%F12A31A - Year ended 31 December 2019
LEE
REY] At beginning of the year 167,082 19,376 186,458
NE Addition — 158 158
i Amortisation (5.201) (1,205) (6,406)
BE S0 B Exchange realignment 3,199 = 3,199
N&EER At end of the reporting period 165,080 18,329 183,409
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HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

KE R AT &
BHREE Water
Concession resource ,‘.%@E“f
right license Total
AR¥TFT AR¥FT AR¥FT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
®W2019F1H81H At 1 January 2019
AR Cost 202,062 23,867 225,929
2ty Accumulated amortisation (34,980) (4,491) (39,471)
167,082 19,376 186,458
201912 831H At 31 December 2019
D& Cost 206,030 24,025 230,056
REFTE Accumulated amortisation (40,950) (5,696) (46,647)
165,080 18,329 183,409

B EERRIEN2012F3 A%
BHREE 2T EE - 557
KERETAEENRE il
BE SERBEEABERBERL R
ERERBEER ARERFEK
BE 95 E PO AZ I U ER AR R - P AR
RIEEGHYIBZH39FH - AEE
SERTIREESE -
KERFTAFEREERRERAR
EESRMERNBERKOERN  Z
TEFE 20 F N A B 4R A 38 -

BVEERBRAEAGTELEZR
BIERHBRRETRENHR -

Concession right represents the concession right acquired as a
result of a business combination taken place in March 2012.
The concession right granted to the Group for manufacturing,
bottling, packaging, distributing and selling PepsiCo’s carbonated
soft drink and Gatorade branded products on a royalty fee basis
under a specific trademark in the Mainland China is amortised on
the straight-line basis over the contract period of approximately
39 years.

Water resource license represents a right to extract mineral water
for the production of beverage products in the PRC, which is
amortised on a straight-line basis over 20 years.

Intangible assets are measured using cost model and are tested
for impairment where an indicator of impairment appears.
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HZE2019F12 A31 HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

AR¥FT
RMB’000
AR REHE Cost and carrying amount
M2018F 12 A31HK At 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019
201912 A318 97,910

BEELANREAR  RKREBMNHH
REEFLERTHRRAEER K
KmEERMEBBEENAS S
BRI - EENE TR
BHRER BREMAITAARE
AEFLEENERTE - FBFAE
BT RSN

BAEREERBEXEBUEEIEER
SERELEN(REELE
2 DETRERR

Goodwill arose because the consideration paid for the acquisition
effectively included amount in relation to the benefits originated
from revenue growth, future market development and the
assembled workforce of the acquired business. These benefits
are not recognised separately from goodwill because they do not
meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the Group's
CGU identified according to the nature of business as follows for
impairment test:

2019 2018
AR¥FT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

R Beverages 97,910 97,910

HEnESEFIRE((ReRS
EAEMDIER 2017 FWERME
ErLHRERAR(HIIMEEA]
61)25% B BE - 2019412 A 31
H AEEZ2EMMNBEALHNIR
enE  BAFGERHBEREES
MR E SR - FTERAENE
e ENAFHYEEENES
METEA - BBESFHNReRECK
LA2% (2018 : 2% )W) R BRIE R i
HHK - GEEEREZENBBAN
TEERER  WHHBBAMBITE
BFHREIERE -

FmBReELEMREEMREET
BRI m e REeEREE
SEREEIBRE -
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Goodwill arising from the beverages business (the “Beverages
CGU") represented the acquisition of 25% equity interests in
Hangzhou Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Limited (“HZPS") in 2017. At
31 December 2019, the Group assessed the recoverable amount
of the Beverages CGU with reference to the cash flow projection
of HZPS. The calculation uses cash flow projection based on
financial budgets approved by the board of directors covering a
5-year period. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period have been
extrapolated using a 2% (2078: 2%) long-term growth rate. This
growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry.

The recoverable amount of the Beverages CGU based on the
value-in-use calculation exceeded its carrying amount. Accordingly,
goodwill was not impaired.
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S B HEERRMIZE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

Key assumptions and inputs used for the value-in-use calculation
are as follows:

2019 2018
ESHlES Gross profit margin 39% 38%
Fyig R & Average growth rate 8% 5%
RO RX Long-term growth rate 2% 2%
R x Discount rate 9% 9%

EEERBAEARANEETISH
EROEHETREENE  MEA
BT IR R AR - I SR B R 3R
TELBEMBBENSERR

BEaEERAReEEEM A
BBz BERIN RABEREY
TREBEMEMAIERTREE RE

BERZE

MR2019F 12 A31TH T EH B R A
2B A IR M40 o

BREEAMBRARRAFEHALE
HAREES -

BRI EMBER

R2017%F  ARRIF2ENMB R
AESE(FRE)EBREERAR(ES
BEDEEP—EMMNBEETLELN
BRR((EHF DI CEEHA(ESR
&l mMESRERMNE UL
25% AR HE o AN EH A B FE
ERNEEE(EES])  BEZ
BHEEZ OEREBREZRESE
F([Rr s E ) =Rk B EATA
HE AT Bt =EAEH A
BH 25 % AN B B AT R R R
— YA A - RREHEK &
BT AR BT I P B /) R
EEREDBRTIER 2021 KA
TDﬁXO

Management determined the budgeted gross profit margin based
on past performance and its expectation of market development.
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating
to the Beverages CGU.

Apart from the considerations described above in determining
the recoverable amount of the Beverages CGU, the Company’s
management is not aware of any other probable changes that
would necessitate changes in the key assumptions.

Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019 are shown in
note 49 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
during the year or at the end of the reporting period.

Significant judgements and assumptions

In 2017, PepsiCo Investment (China) Ltd. (“PICL"), a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the sale and
purchase agreement (the “SPA") with one of the shareholders (the
“Vendor") of HZPS to acquire 25% equity interest in HZPS from
the Vendor. In addition, the Vendor also issued an authorisation
letter (the “Authorisation Letter”) to PICL under which PICL shall
be entitled irrevocably all the rights and benefits of the aforesaid
25% equity interest in HZPS currently held by the Vendor for a
period up to the completion date of the registration of the equity
transfer (the “Equity Transfer”). At the end of the reporting
period, the management estimated that the registration of the
Equity Transfer with the relevant government authority will be
completed not later than the end of 2021.
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HZE2019F12 A31 HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

BRWABHNBR(E) Significant judgements and assumptions (Continued)
BRPTEERSINEEEZ K& Through the execution of the SPA and Authorisation Letter, the
EFAS0BMMBESI4RiE B Group holds 50% equity interest in HZPS and has more than a
AEEFEMINE FUTLM0ZHE majority of the voting rights of HZPS. Since the relevant activities
ZE -mREMMNBEETLERE which significantly affect HZPS's return are determined by the
BRZENMEBEHAMMBEEA board of directors of HZPS based on a simple majority vote, the
LEZGUHELZHERE Ak management concluded that the Group has control over HZPS
ERERR/NEEEMMBEEAE and HZPS is treated as a subsidiary of the Group.

BAESE . Bt MM B FA %
ERRAAEENMNB AR -

BEBERDHBRRESZ ZMEATN Financial information of subsidiaries with individually
g E R material non-controlling interest (“NCI")
TRINTAEEE —HEERIH The following table shows the information relating to KSF
REEZHOMEB AR - R ERRD Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. (“KSF Beverage”), the only subsidiary
ZERBRAFIHER « LMK ER of the Group which has material NCI. The summarised
MERRABLSRAIHKHEI 22 financial information represents amounts before inter-company
R eliminations.
R12A31H

At 31 December

2019 2018
DERETRR 2 AL Proportion of NCI's ownership interests 22.09% 27.09%
DEERI R 2 IR ZERE LB Proportion of NCI's voting rights 33% 33%

ARE T ABRWETFT

RMB’000 RMB’000
REEE Current assets 12,260,392 9,895,072
ERBEE Non-current assets 17,824,052 18,243,241
mEAE Current liabilities (14,719,312) (13,193,273)
EmBAEE Non-current liabilities (1,086,150) (1,511,249)
FEE Net assets 14,278,982 13,433,791
DEREFIR R REE Carrying amount of NC| 3,351,070 3,840,592
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HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually

MgEER (&) material NCI (Continued)
H#ZE12831H
At 31 December
2019 2018
ARETFTT ARBTF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
W= Revenue 35,599,621 35,312,931
RF S 5 A Profit for the year 1,339,022 797,875
Hih > mEE Other comprehensive loss (26,900) (119,422)
FHEWEBEE Total comprehensive income 1,312,122 678,453
DB R AE S R i A Profit attributable to NCI 393,083 249,160
LHRREREE 2@ Total comprehensive income attributable to
NCI 385,795 216,805
BT D ERE R E IR Dividends paid to NCI (115,918) (127,518)
E(A)ReREFH Net cash flows from (used in):
LETES) Operating activities 5,258,978 4,060,590
L& RS Investing activities (1,086,765) 576,121
BEEE Financing activities (2,546,361) (2,522,008)
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FEERBEZHBARRREZEIES

B
(a)

MR2018F11H AEB 2 &
BEMBRARI(I2EHWB AR
FEFEZEMBAR(HRBA
al])) - EI B AR M IEIERAR
RTIEERRR ) st B &
NEMEBEA(XBER])
sl EAmE(ERmBZE])

MEBARREMBAREZERN
EREVRRBES - EWE
B RIESEME RLA
BRA[EERRAD - HWBA
AR AEEFEHERA
HENRELEEREEERT
Hz - WiBEBHE A R100%
BE BEETWBRRREN
BATIERNIERDAMEALTT
XBPEBENMRRE - H
% MBRAAMNEZEWNEBRAG
RFERBRRDBE T EERT
Az AEBIFAEEE
NAEIHY50.01% HRER o

2019F 6 A+ BIEEARE -
2ENE AR T IEERRAR
BHEE RN B QR 49.99% &
B RPBREBHARYE
35,978,0007T - B4 E
M@ AR AR EER 2 EMH
BAR - Al HRWERF
THIERSEE MRELE S
B EEAEELHEREEE
T B4 AR % 40,180,000 7T -
HIHHEREZLANARE
4,202,000 7T Z FE a0 8% A B >
YRFEEIHHEEIA -
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Major changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries

(a

In November 2018, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group
(the "Wholly-owned Subsidiary") and its non-wholly owned
subsidiary (the "Subsidiary"), entered into an agreement
in respect of the restructuring (the “Restructuring”) of the
business of the Subsidiary (the “Restructuring Agreement”)
with the non-controlling shareholder of the Subsidiary (the
“Non-controlling Shareholder"”).

The Subsidiary and its subsidiaries are engaged in provision
for logistics services. During the reporting period, pursuant
to the Restructuring Agreement, a new joint venture
company (the “JV") was established, through 100% equity
interests held by the Subsidiary, between the shareholders
of the Subsidiary in the same proportion of equity interests
as they held in the Subsidiary and took over the logistics
services related to the then non-food and beverage
industry customers from the Subsidiary and its subsidiaries.
Subsequently, the Subsidiary distributed the entire equity
interests in the JV to the Wholly-owned Subsidiary and the
Non-controlling Shareholder and the Group held ownership
interests in the JV as to 50.01%.

In June 2019, pursuant to the Restructuring Agreement,
the Wholly-owned Subsidiary acquired the 49.99%
equity interests in the Subsidiary held by the Non-
controlling Shareholder at a consideration of approximately
RMB35,978,000. Upon the completion of the Restructuring,
the Subsidiary became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group. As a result, the NCI of the Group decreased by
approximately RMB40,180,000 in respective of the change
in ownership interest of the Subsidiary without change
in control together with the consideration received, the
difference of approximately RMB4,202,000 was recognised
in “Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve”
within equity in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
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FREFACHBLAREERZERE
(&)

(a)

(&)

e\ NN EMNCIT TS 2 i
ETHEMNEENRRS.01%
Mgz BREANARK
225,408,000T © E M & X
% AERRTBRAEE
MEEBERA -BHEERER
AlEEEENREHARE
223,150,000 jT &2 8 N 4R & UK
PR EMFWAR o

M2019F 124 KEE
mERMESRmERSG—
LPEBRRNUNREREET
203,000,000 7C(# & B 4 A
R #1,417,123,000 70 ) Y B8 BE
B R RIER 5% BB 1T
A&7+ {5 7N &% [ 7 B A 135 8K
EROEBEERNLN72.91%
BEMENTTIN% > Bt b
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128318 BaREE2EX
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Major changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries (Continued)

(a

(Continued)

The Wholly-owned Subsidiary disposed the 50.01% equity
interests in the JV to the Non-controlling Shareholder at a
consideration of approximately RMB225,408,000. Upon the
completion of the Restructuring, the JV ceased to be a joint
venture of the Group. A gain on disposal of a joint venture
of approximately RMB223,150,000 was recorded in other
net income in the consolidated income statement.

In December 2019, the Group acquired additional
approximately 5% of the issued capital in KSF Beverage
from a non-controlling shareholder of KSF Beverage at
a cash consideration of US$203,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB1,417,123,000), resulting in an increase
in the Group's effective equity interests in KSF Beverage
from approximately 72.91% to approximately 77.91%.
As a result, the NCI was decreased by approximately
RMB633,383,000 and the difference of approximately
RMB783,740,000 between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests have decreased and the cash
consideration paid was recorded in “Transactions with
non-controlling interests reserve” within equity in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The cash
consideration was fully settled as at 31 December 2019.
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2019 2018
AREFT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JE MRS, I AE Unlisted shares, at cost 70,678 70,678
JEIEW B A Share of post-acquisition results 73,028 61,216
B U BB 1% 1 B A% A Dividend received since acquisition (4,169) (4,169)
139,537 127,725
REE RIS R E) 2 RSN ¢ Details of the associate at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
ITBEE/
S
Principal rEEREZ
place of EREEERESLA
business HMBRA  Proportion of effective
YN and place of Registered ownership interest heldby FE#%
Name of associate incorporation capital the Group Principal activities
2019 2018
HRAENESHER LR HE US$16,000,000  38.96% 36.46%  HERHER®
Nanjing Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of
beverages
LA EBE & QB Ty IR RS BRTE 4R The above associate is accounted for using the equity method in
S BmES - the consolidated financial statements.
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ERIGFERBENR 2 HBER Financial information of individually immaterial associate
TRINTAE B IR EZRERY] 2@ The table below shows, in aggregate, the carrying amount and the
RIFEEREE N AN ST IREE K Group's share of results of an associate that are not individually
NEBBIEES - material and accounted for using the equity method.

M12A31H ®12A831H

At At

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

AR#FT AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

R AREE Carrying amount of interests 139,537 127,725

BZE12A31H #ZE12A31H
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2019 2018
AR¥TFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

REE I Group's share of:
NE i A Profit for the year 11,812 8,392
Hih 2 RS Other comprehensive income — —
EHER BT Total comprehensive income 11,812 8,392
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2019 2018

ARETT ARETF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

LMD - FERAE Unlisted shares, at cost 452,832 452,832
JEMEW B R A Share of post-acquisition results 706,134 483,787
B U BB 1% 1 B AR A Dividend received since acquisition (269,901) (237,876)
889,065 698,743

REEREERRAZAMFIIMT

Details of the joint ventures at the end of the reporting period are

as follows:
TEEE/
b
Principal AEERELZ
place of ERBREERLA
operation/ FMBA  Proportion of effective
RENFEE Place of Registered ownership interestheld FE#£%
Name of joint ventures incorporation capital by the Group Principal activities
2019 2018
BERYRmERLTA PE US$11,000000  31.82%  31.82% MIRKER%ERD
Fujian Weizhen Foods Co., Ltd. PRC Process and sale of
agricultural products
FEEN RBAERAR i US$24,000,000 60% 60% MIKHENEER
Kangpu (Suzhou) Food Co., Ltd. PRC Process and sale of meat
products
LEBETERHERAA i US$28,120,000  38.96%  3646% HERHERE
Shanghai Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of
beverages
ERAEUEHHBRAR(EREE)) " RMB150,000,000  6233%  5833% EUEREESRR
Jinan Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of
("INPS") beverages
ETREAESERAT hE RMB400,000 25% 5%  Rit BERREES
Beijing Zhengben Advertising Ltd. PRC Design, production and

agency of advertising

A EMABGERRNIRERETER
B PBRERT -
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All of the above joint ventures are accounted for using the equity

method in the consolidated financial statements.
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EANABRRBR

AEEEB-HE2ENBRARRHAE
FEEMRMAERAR60%H K
R RAM REZZEWBRA
HE-—REEZBNGaRBGE 8
WEELREERTENHEBED
BREFBREE —BURE - At
AEERSEZERTHARGE
1B %A FL RIS -

AEEEA—HEERSEERERS
80% A= 2 EHEEMB LR
BMBABEEAE62.33% 2B E
BREED - AT REBEZIE2EHR
EMBAREEMIEER ZHNE
i HIREEBREEATED
RGeS ER B B 28k
BERARZESEHIAS0% MR RE
RR—B - BIBEELOERN  AEH
EEEEENSREENENTImL
HEF BEAPRHEEEAES L
BEEBEENT SRS A& ERE
BRIBZZIE2EHANBE RGN
HIREEDMB —BURTE  AEA
SERAENENEETUEREGE
FI R A R HIE -

HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

Significant judgements and assumptions

The Group has 60% voting rights in Kangpu (Suzhou) Food Co.,
Ltd. through a wholly owned subsidiary. However, based on a
contractual agreement between the wholly owned subsidiary
and another investor, the relevant activities which significantly
affect the investee's return require the unanimous consent of all
investors. Therefore, the Group determined that it has no control
but joint control over this entity.

The Group has 62.33% effective ownership interest in JNPS
through a non-wholly owned subsidiary, which holds 80% direct
equity interests in JNPS. However, based on the contractual
agreement between the non-wholly owned subsidiary and other
investor of JNPS, the relevant activities which significantly affect
the JNPS's return require over 80% votes of the board of directors
of JNPS. By virtue of the Group’s contractual right to appoint 4
out of 5 directors to the board of directors of JNPS, the Group
has determined that it has no control but joint control over JNPS
as the strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the
economic activities of JNPS require the unanimous consent of the
non-wholly owned subsidiary and the other investor.
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BRFERSE DR ZHBER Financial information of individually immaterial joint
ventures

TRINAAE B IREREZ BRI The table below shows, in aggregate, the carrying amount and the

ERGEATMETEEERES Group's share of results of joint ventures that are not individually

B EREE - material and accounted for using the equity method.

Mm12H831H ®W12A31H

At At

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

ARETFT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

EHREE Carrying amount of interests 889,065 698,743

HZ12H318 #H=12A31H
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December

2019 2018
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REEFE Group's share of:
REZ W Profit for the year 222,347 63,188
Hh 2 Other comprehensive income — —
THENRETE Total comprehensive income 222,347 63,188
BEFERR AEEREEMNERD In the opinion of the directors, no joint ventures are individually
BENFE] e material to the Group.
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2019 2018
it ARETT ARE T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

BRFVPLEEWEBMEE Financial assets at FVPL
—RERES — Investment funds (a) 1,134,392 447,496
— L RAEES — Equity securities, listed (b) 282 625
—EETRAES — Equity securities, unlisted (0 18,867 —
1,153,541 448,121

5 FVOCI Designated FVOCI

—ELTRAES — Equity securities, unlisted (d) 115,614 114,018
1,269,155 562,139

KBiet - Note:

WEES BRNEC0ISFE - 1yfE])
BEezRE  DRAKIRFAES
WAERETEBLE BRI ER
WAERETEBEERKIARRE
BaES((EBREZES ) RMHE
R AR E AR RHERETA
Al LERERAEBEREESY
RAELERMEREN - REE
A BEESHANBERHERE
SIIBSEEBIRAME -

ETBRAEFN A EREREE
FRBFTNTISIMERETE -

ey

FETEARESZ AABETE

82
A RS 2 BEFEERETE ©

The investment funds represent investments in six (2018. four)
funds which were set up as limited partnerships in the Cayman
Islands, limited partnership in Jersey, a company with liability limited
by shares incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI") and
two companies limited by shares incorporated in the PRC, aiming at
allocating idle funds reasonably and increasing return on asset. The
fair values of the investment funds were valued by the respective
investment managers or trust administrators at the end of the
reporting period.

The fair value of the listed equity securities is determined based on
a quoted market bid price in a relevant stock exchange.

The fair value of unlisted equity securities is determined with
reference to the net assets value of the underlying equity securities.
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izt : (&) Note: (Continued)
(d)  AEESAEE K E I Tk (d)  The Group irrevocably designated certain investments in unlisted
BHFIREETE R/IEEFVOC] equity securities as Designated FVOCI because these equity
RZERTBFZAREBR R securities represents that the Group intends to hold for long
BREBENNIRE - FFLEMRA term for strategic purposes. The fair values of the unlisted equity
BENAARBEEZASENREKL investments were mainly valued by the respective investment
BIEMESRMGE - AREZHA managers at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value
R #3,199,0007T & ;8 AR & E of RMB3,199,000 were credited to investment revaluation reserve
BERFE(TAIEE) - HEHEEES (non-recycling). The valuation techniques and significant inputs used
NAENRERERERE AR in the measurement of the fair values of the investment funds are
BRER A ISR M5 46 © set out in note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.
CRVEETIATIERSE The financial assets are denominated in the following currencies:
2019 2018
ARMTF T ARBFoT
RMB’000 RMB'000
eV us$ 541,312 561,514
AR RMB 727,561 —
Hity Others 282 625
1,269,155 562,139
72017928 K2019F 108 © & In February 2017 and October 2019, the Group entered into
EEHEFEF=FFEFITIMHE" agreements with a third party vendor pursuant to which the
B AEERENUNARE Group agreed to purchase a property and car parks located in
660,699,000 T AR S REEE Tianjin for an aggregate cash consideration of RMB660,699,000.
MRREHN—EDEREES - R In October 2019, the construction works of the property and car
2019F 107 - W EREFEES 2 parks were completed and the Group obtained the control of the
BETREDTK MASBECDES property and car parks. The deposits paid of RMB629,570,000
MEZEHE  RNTHERARE - AR (2018: RMB375,964,000) was transferred to investment properties
¥ 629,570,000 7T(2018 F - AR upon the initial recognition. At the end of the reporting period,
375,964,0007T) 7 B E] & B R the remaining consideration payable of RMB31,129,000 included
ZEREMEME - REER - AR in other payables and will be paid upon the completion of the
#31,129,000 7L 09 T 2 B # 5% transfer of the legal title to the Group.
EXBEREAREE 2 FETHKE
XA e
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2019 2018
AR¥TFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JRH K} Raw materials 1,077,257 1,018,807
8 m Work in progress 82,355 75,762
2K Finished goods 2,285,463 1,557,171
3,445,075 2,651,740
2019 2018
AR¥TT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JE W BR =X Trade receivables
—%=% — From third parties 1,538,163 1,637,095
—ARRAFZEBREIES  — From companies controlled by
4L VNS a substantial shareholder of
the Company 40,230 12,302
—AEEEEN — From a company controlled by
KEERK B RSB the family members and relatives
7 —RIAa] of the Company'’s directors 1,684 —
- WNE] — From an associate 2,178 3,179
= E=WNC] — From joint ventures 87,270 62,895
1,669,525 1,715,471

AEBEZHERNBDREEIYER -
HRTHHEZEEHEEZR30E90
K o

BRAEBRRCNGR BIREE) N4
BAREZAHREZIRE DI

The majority of the Group’s sales are cash-on-delivery. The

remaining balances of sales are mainly at credit term ranging from

30 to 90 days.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of loss allowance),

based on invoice date, at the end of the reporting period is as

RIOR follows:
2019 2018
AR¥FT AR T
RMB’000 RMB'000
0-90Xk 0 - 90 days 1,568,425 1,584,771
90 KA+ Over 90 days 101,100 130,700
1,669,525 1,715,471
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PR A EZAAREIIE -

FRAEEREEREERRNE

RN AR B B ¥R RE 45 -

statements.

Information about the Group's exposure to credit risks of trade
receivables is included in note 45 to the consolidated financial

The trade receivables are mainly denominated in RMB.

2019 2018
baE ARETFT AREFITT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
FERER Prepayments to suppliers for
purchase of goods 124,283 115,440
ENEGES Prepayments for purchase of equipment 22,008 8,418
TETHEER Prepaid value-added taxes 773,728 799,895
R EERY Prepaid operating expenses 1,058,752 1,059,726
T FA AR ERE I Current portion of prepaid lease
payments 17 — 87,290
e E Loan receivables 27(a) 280,000 213,000
FEW T & R B K Other receivables from sales
of equipment 27(b) 149,842 —
"e Deposits 114,490 123,395
il Others 329,366 262,525
2,852,469 2,669,689
27(a) EWER 27(a) Loan receivables

EWERTEAEEZHMER
AERTEATEMBEER
REOHHEIEEERR X
Ho WERWERAEERR
AR —FRNEEENFEER
5.05% £ 6.15% (20718 % :
501%%26.15%)ME °

ARREEEHUZETHR
REBRT _EARZHEK
O tFEEREEEBZQR

EREEBREREERRN -

27(b) B HER B

FEd h & R BRI
REOEMEYK - L FEH
REEHF  TEMERARE
SKEFEE -
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Loan receivables represent the advances made by

subsidiaries of the Company to certain raw materials

suppliers and subcontractors of the Group for financing their

operations. The loan receivables are unsecured, repayable

within 12 months from the end of the reporting period and
bear interest ranging from 5.05% to 6.15% (2018. from

5.01% to 6.15%) per annum.

The directors expected the amounts will be realised in the

next twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

The fair value of the amounts as at the end of the reporting

period approximates their corresponding carrying amount.

27(b) Other receivables from sales of equipment

Other receivables from sales of equipment arose from the

sales of machineries and equipment which are unsecured,

interest-free and repayable on demand.
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2019 2018

ARETT ABREFr

RMB’000 RMB’000

R EAE BT K Long-term time deposits 725,000 —
RITHBR LIRS Bank balances and cash 17,397,557 13,807,963
EIRRITER Pledged bank deposits 32,830 32,458
RITEREEEER Total cash at bank and on hand 18,155,387 13,840,421

RHTHEHARA3IF » WKEHE
BIEEFRFAREDRFE  FEX
5A3.70% E4.10% 24 -

RITERETER - FREHRLSSE
B—RIRTREHRE (BRERTTA
HREZ)NRITREZER®D -

REEREXRBOME - RITERX
kR BB EEY 2 HFROT

The long-term time deposits are made for periods of three years
and earn interest at the respective time deposits interest rate
ranging from 3.70% to 4.10% per annum.

The pledged bank deposits are secured for general banking and
trade finance facilities, including the issuance of bank acceptance
bills, granted to the Group by banks.

A reconciliation of cash at bank and on hand to cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statements is as follow:

2019 2018

ARETT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

RITEREES Cash at bank and on hand 18,155,387 13,840,421
B REE AR Less: long-term time deposits (725,000) —
ReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 17,430,387 13,840,421

ST RI S A H AT 5 H 5

Total cash at bank and on hand are denominated in the following

g : currencies:
2019 2018
ARET T ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR RMB 17,818,874 13,438,077
ETT us$ 293,974 367,457
BT EUR 761 2,108
et NTD 25,309 23,562
H Others 16,469 9,217
18,155,387 13,840,421

BRAAKEZIVERR KEERRR
ERERE M IEIRARM 45 it -

Details of the Group's foreign currency risk and credit risk
discussion are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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2019 2018
RER RER
Equivalent to Equivalent to

vt € FEn  AREFx Rir%A AT ARETT

No. of shares Usso0 RMB000  No. of shares Us§ 000 AMB 000

R Authorised:
50005 Tz EEE  Ordinary shares of US$0.005 each 7,000,000,000 35,000 7,000,000,000 35,000
BETRAR Issued and fully paid:
REY At the beginning of the year 5,617,968,360 28,091 235,204 5,613,229,360 28,067 235,053
REERETE Shares issued under share option scheme
Epdivl 5,318,000 pL] 197 4,739,000 24 151
REER At the end of the reporting period 5,623,786,360 28,120 235401 5,617,968,360 28,091 235,204

PR R - 5,818,000 8 % & 17
& LA SR B8 KA A 5,818,000 T i A%
- BRERARY46,101,000
JC - Heh ARM 197,000 TEF A B 2
FTRR A - 45 88 A R & 45,904,000
T ABRMDGEER - 340 AR
14,080,000 THE R EFEERE
BRDBEER ZERERSHTEE
RERMNZEBRSEZ -

During the year, 5,818,000 options were exercised to subscribe
for 5,818,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a consideration
of RMB46,101,000, of which RMB197,000 was credited to issued
capital and the balance of RMB45,904,000 was credited to the
share premium account. In addition, RMB14,080,000 has been
transferred from the share-based payment reserve to the share
premium account. These shares rank pari passu with all existing
shares in all respects.

2019 2018

AR¥FTT AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

NG At beginning of the year 664,400 611,736
RIEEE IR £13877 Z %D  Shares issued under share option scheme 59,984 52,664
REER At the end of the reporting period 724,384 664,400

BERESESRAEN - ERFNE
F%ﬁhﬁ%’T%EMﬁ%TE
BT EEITROEMEN
EitaE ﬂL%iﬂXfﬂ/ﬁn{ﬁﬁg

BhaBERZERERERNSHS
NENRZITE e

E??E\’ATEE%EEZ’I%%T QN

TZH&T&??H&FT%&"M’E%H&%*
HEARR DIKRRAINBENEE
R %%WEP BB 2 (BT o
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Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, where a
company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or
otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the value
of the premiums on their shares shall be transferred to share
premium account.

The application of the share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Share premium of the Company is distributable to shareholders
subject to the provisions of the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately following
the distribution the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.
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E0Y REER

e 5 BEE

X7 (Ruggm)

Bin Transactions SME - hvestment  WEEM
BOHE ERERE  withnon-  BEEE  revaluation BEE BhREEE
Capital ~ Remeasur-  controling  Exchange reserve Property  —MEE  Sharebased  (REEF

redemption ement interests  translation (non- revaluation General payment Retained 28
reserve reserve reserve reserve recycling) reserve reserve reserve profits Total

NEETR  ARKTT  ARETR  ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
AMB000 AMB000 AMB000 AMB000 AMB000 AMB000 ANB000 AMB000 AMB000 AMB000

RWBE1A1E At 1 January 2018 400 89 (987,233) (171879 10458 9,869 4,159,527 o817 1415942 17,565,290

TERER Profit for the year - - - - - - - - 2463301 2463321

Et2ENE(FR)SE  Other comprehensive
(loss) income
AERAETZEE  Remeasurement of defined

benefits obligations - (37,562) - - - - - - - (37,562)
KENOULAE Fair value changes in Designated
Va Fvocl - - - - (16,265) - - — - (16,265)
EXER Exchange difference on
consolidation — — - (348,483) — — - — — (348,483)
ERIHEETAVOCE  Redassification adjustment
ERERE relating to Designated FVOCI
disposed of during the year - - - - (2397) - - - 2,397 -
EM2E(BE)RBEE  Total other comprehensive (loss)
income - (37,562) - (348,483) (18,662) - - - 2,397 (402,310)
KER2E(ER) Total comprehensive (loss)
W% income for the year - (37,562) - (348,483) (18,662) - - - 2465718 2,061,011
HALNARRZRS Transactions with owners of
the Company:
REEDT Contributions and dlstribution
EREEROIHZIE  Fouity settled share-based
transactions - - - - - - - 32,79 - 32,79
IRIEBRIETEETZRG  Shares issued under share option
scheme - — — - - — - (13,025) - (13,025)
BIRERT Shares option lapsed - - - - - - — (25,496) 254% -
BitEI7E 2017 final dividend
RERE approved - - - - - - - - (909,539) (909,539)
SRARBER Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - 142,836 - (142,836) -
- - - - - - 142,836 (5722) (1,026,879) (889,765)
BEEIRY Changes in onmership iterests
EERYRIED Changes in ownership interests in
HEARRERES asubsidiary without change in
control - - 17336 - - - - - — 17336
HANARRZRAAE  Total transactions with owners of
the Company - - 17336 - - - 142,836 (5722) (1,026,879) (872,429
R2018%12531R At 31 December 2018 400 (37473) (969,897) (520,362) (8,204) 9,869 4,302,363 422,395 15,554,781 18,753,872
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0% REEf

BRER Bk

ZHRE (FA/EE)

Bt Transactions M Investment  MIEEf
BEGE EfEEHRE  withnon-  BERE  revaluation BRE BRERE
Capital  Remeasur- controlling  Exchange reserve  Property  —MRE Sharebased  REER

redemption ement interests translation (non-  revaluation General payment Retained Eet
reserve reserve reserve reserve  recycling) reserve reserve reserve profits Total

ARBTL  AREFZ  ARETT  ARETT  ARRFA ARETT  ARETT ARRTA ARRTL ARETR
RMBO0  RMBYU0O  RMBUO)  RMBUM0  RMBYU0O  RMBUG)  RMBUW0  RMBYU00  RMBUR  RMBO0O

R019F1518 At 1 January 2019 400 (37413) (969,897) (520,362) (8,204) 9,869 4,302,363 42395 15554781 18753872

REEER Profitfor the year = = = = = = = = 3,330,981 3,330,981

Et2ERE(BB)RE  Other comprehensive
(loss) income
RERAETZEE  Remeasurement of defined

(Hi#35) benefits obligations (ote 35) = (65,490) = = = = = = = (65,490)
EENOCIARE Fair value changes in Designated
b 4l ) FVOCI tote 23(2) - - - - 3,199 - - - = 3,199
EXEE Exchange difference on
consolidation = = = (132,950) = = = - - (132,950)

b 2H (B18)WEAE  Total other comprehensive (loss)

income - (65,490) - (132,950) 3199 - - - - (195,241)
FEERE(ER) Total comprehensive (loss)
g 2] income for the year = (65,490) = (132,950) 3,199 = = — 3330981 3,135,740
ARDARFLZRS Transactions with owners of
the Company:
REESE Contributions and dlstribution
BREERNZAZIE  Fouity setled share-
based transactions - - - - - - - 24,504 - 24,504
REBRETEETZ  Sharesissued under
R ) share option scheme (Note 29) = = = = = = = (14,080) = (14,080)
BN Shares option lapsed = = = = = = = (40,574) 40,574 =
BHERRE 2018 2018 final and special dividend
REREAREWHE12)  approved and paid (Note 12) = = = = = = = — (2483321)  (2463321)
ERERBER Transfer from retained profits = = = = = — 359,976 — (359,976) —
- - - - - - 359,976 (30,150) (2782,13) (2,452,897
FEE2EY Changes in onnership iterests
BN EHIEY Changes in ownership interests
HEARERES in subsidiaries without change
(Wi 20) in control (Note 20) = = (817,926) = = = = = = (817,926)

ARDRAREZRSHEE  Total transactions with owners of

the Company = - ) = = — g GO D) (27083)
HO9E1A3NE A3 December 2019 0 02963 (1883 (653312) (5,005) 9869 4G 305 16103039 18618789
Ht2E(BE)KESHEKIER T No income tax effect arose from each component of other
20184 2019 98 E 5 & comprehensive (loss) income in 2018 and 2019.
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HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve has been set up in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on
repurchases and cancellations of the Company’s own shares.

Remeasurement reserve

Remeasurement reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for the
remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability as set out in
note 3(t) to the consolidated financial statements.

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for the changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary which do not result in change in control as set out in
note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Exchange translation reserve

Exchange translation reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for foreign
currency translation as set out in note 3(n) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Investment revaluation reserves

The investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling) has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for the cumulative net changes of the fair value of
Designated FVOCI since the date of initial application of HKFRS 9
as set out in note 3(k) to the consolidated financial statements.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve was set up to deal with the
surplus or deficit arising from the revaluation of properties and
prepaid lease payment in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for property, plant and equipment as set out in note 3(d)
to the consolidated financial statements.
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—RFRE General reserve

BIEFBIE@ABRG - FREMER R In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, the PRC
B —EPPORERBEENGZR subsidiaries are required to appropriate to the general reserve an
TEEHROGRERTBEMEL amount not less than 10% of the amount of profit after taxation
AIZETERBAZ)10% 2 5K IE (as reported in the respective statutory financial statements of the
T —MREE W RREECE PRC subsidiaries prepared in accordance with the PRC accounting
HEA@APEMNBRAFEMREZ regulations). If the accumulated general reserve reaches 50%
50% K FZ A B A BABEE A E of the registered capital of the respective PRC subsidiaries, the
o subsidiary may not be required to make any further appropriation.
BRERE Share-based payment reserve
BRERBREETAEEEER Share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value at the grant
MARTEBRENKEBSRZA date of unexercised share options granted to employees of the
REZES  WREGERFHE Group and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy
ARGt B ERRE 2 N REE - 7F18 75 adopted for share-based payments as set out in note 3(u) to the
TR G M mERMEE 3(u) © consolidated financial statements.

(a) 2008 FEEMRAEE (a) 2008 Share Option Scheme

B BB OfE B B BR R 5T & The Company'’s share option scheme (the “2008 Share

([2008 F&HEl ) ZARREE Option Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution

M 2008F3H20H BB - Z passed on 20 March 2008. The 2008 Share Option Scheme

20085t &Iz BEWy ek Eh 2 E is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise

(FEAAMT ) I0 7 R M09 5 36 7R and acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants

SEELEER © %2008 5 &l (as defined below) had or may have made to the Group. The

72019 F3A 198 F B F 2008 Share Option Scheme expired on 19 March 2019 and

BR 7 R TR HARR D AT 1T the outstanding share options are exercisable until the end

o of the respective exercisable period.

EEGARAZEERTUATA The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, grant an option

TREARHE - to:

(i)  ARESEAMRMNERF (i)  any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
REME2BEBES - officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;
TBRAESERES :

(i) AR FSHEAEMNE R (i any directors (including non-executive directors and
AR E E(BIEIERR independent non-executive directors) of the Company
TEERBIIERTE or any of its subsidiaries; and
B2): Rk

(i) ARFHEFMAMERF (i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and
B iE R - SEE - H agents of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

fER  BERARE -
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2008 FEE MR AERT 8l (&)

B 4 N A IR S B E - 522008
T8I R A AR R 2 H AR
B EIMBE T 2ERES R 2
f& 7 8 B TS BB A A R ER
#9 1tk 2008 5+ & & H(B12008
FI3IA20B) 2B BITRHOK
10% °

REER ERTHEEBRE
B LRER#E B 143,726,500
B (20184 : 143,726,500
B+ BB A RIRERMA AR
T 2008 5T EIE B 2 TR
#12.57% (20184 : 2.57%) °

BR2HEEEZ 20085185 E
ERESE TAIZENRS
BTRE(BEEITERKITE
ZHEIRE)  EERTRTARKRZ
1R2EARTEBRERTHH
REEITRMO1% - 2R 1%
BRAOETAEERRREMH
A o

TEEHEETIMNERRE
miTEE A DR ) R ERE
Pt T B OB R T E Y UL T
B () EBRERT B
513 & % B R B AR F UL
mE: RO EES 2

R=EE -

BRENTESNHESESR
o MBREZTERATZR
BT & Z10F o BE KRR
THSFRATAEEET 2008
IR E R F RS LR
B -FRREERRTZE
—HEREZREERBE
e B-BRERTRBRE
FERBARE —BOE AR E
o

(a)

2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders,
the maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2008 Share Option Scheme and
under any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
shares in issue at the time the 2008 Share Option Scheme
was adopted by the shareholders of the Company (i.e. 20
March 2008).

At the end of reporting period, the total number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted to its employees
and directors was 143,726,500 (2018 143,726,500),
representing 2.57% (2018: 2.57%) of the shares of the
Company in issue at the time the 2008 Share Option
Scheme is adopted by the shareholders of the Company.

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2008 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to an individual in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this
1% limit shall be subject to the shareholders" approval.

The exercise price is determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company's shares on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, save that
no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
been granted. The options will be vested either after five
years from the date of grant or immediate upon attainment
of the retirement age as specified in the 2008 Share Option
Scheme. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is paid by each
option holder for each lot of share option granted. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share of the Company.

BRAEER
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(a) 2008 FEEMEE(E) (a) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
#2008 BEREETEIN - BEET Details of share options granted by the Company to
KAl REMBARI < EE R the employees and directors of the Company and its
EEEBREFB LN 2019F subsidiaries pursuant to the 2008 Share Option Scheme
&2018F 12 A3THEERNZ and the share options outstanding as at 31 December
RITEBIAENT 2019 and 2018 are as follows:
B®¥
BREHE
Number of  RITHENBEREZE
®FAH share options Number of share TEE TEH
Grant date granted options outstanding  Exercise price  Exercisable period
2019 2018 HK$
200843 H20H 11,760,000 _ — 9.28 2013%F3AH21H=ZE
20 March 2008 201843 A20H

21 March 2013 to
20 March 2018

200944 A 22 H 26,688,000 — 5,244,000 938 20145 4H23AZ%
22 April 2009 201954 A 22 H
23 April 2014 to
22 April 2019
201064 A1H 15,044,000 8,637,000 9,328,000 18.57 20154 A1 AZE
1 April 2010 202063 H31H

1 April 2015 to
31 March 2020

20114 A12H 17,702,000 10,292,000 11,428,000 19.96 2016547 12H=
12 April 2011 2021 4H118

12 April 2016 to

11 April 2021
2012F 4 A26 H 9,700,000 6,666,000 7,236,000 2054 2017F4H26H0%
26 April 2012 2022F 4 A25H

26 April 2017 to

25 April 2022
20135 A 27 H 11,492,000 8,190,000 8,802,000 20.16 2018F5H27AZE
27 May 2013 202345 A 26 H

27 May 2018 to

26 May 2023
2014 4 17 H 12,718,500 9,455,000 11,212,000 2238 2019F4H178%
17 April 2014 202454 H16H

17 April 2019 to

16 April 2024
20156 A5H 17,054,000 14,692,000 14,981,000 16.22 20206 H5H =
5 June 2015 20256 A4HR

5 June 2020 to

4 June 2025
2016%F7 348 10,148,000 8,392,000 9,023,000 754 2021 7H48%
4 July 2016 20267 A3AR

4 July 2021 to

3 July 2026
201764 A21H 11,420,000 10,770,000 10,770,000 1020 20224 A21H=
21 April 2017 202744 H20H

21 April 2022 to

20 April 2027
A% 143,726,500 77,094,000 88,024,000
Total
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HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

(a) 2008 FEEMEFTEI(E) (a) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
1E 2008 5T &I M ARTTE 2 FE AR Movements in the number of options outstanding and their
EEREMEFHTERE L # weighted average exercise prices under the 2008 Share
wmr Option Schemes are as follows:
2019 2018
InREFES NS
TEE 17128
Weighted Weighted
average BREZE average FEAREZE
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
HKS$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
REH] At beginning of the year 16.45 88,024 16.20 96,885
RERTITEE Exercised during the year 9.21 (5,818) 10.26 (4,739)
R AE I Forfeited during the year 15.54 (436) 19.09 (279)
RERBUY, %k Cancelled / lapsed during
the year 20.78 (4,676) 17.42 (3,843)
REER At the end of the reporting
period 16.74 77,094 16.45 88,024

RITER FRITENBERERN
MEFE G E A12.208 L2018
F 15987 ) EEEHRA -
EREGEBRENERERSRE
13,161,000(2018 % : 5,066,000) °

20194128318 WAk HE
RENMEFTABRTELOHAF4.05
F(2018F 4.71F) - WEEER -
RT3 & M 4 19 AR BUE 52,728,000
(20184F : 50,521,000) - 1 # &
B+ AI1T{E & B8 AR 4 A AN F 19 1T
& /19.32%8 Jt(20184F : 18.49
JBEIT) °

The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise
of share options exercised during the year was HK$12.20
(2018: HK$15.98). The number of share options vested
during the reporting period was 13,161,000 (2078:
5,066,000).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2019 had a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 4.05 years
(2018: 4.71 years). At the end of the reporting period,
the number of exercisable options was 52,728,000 (2078:
50,521,000) with weighted average exercise price of
HK$19.32 (2018: HK$18.49).
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(b)

2018 FREIRBEST &

RNRAIREER2018F48
26 HERITHREFRI RS LB
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(b)

2018 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the new share option scheme (the
“2018 Share Option Scheme”) at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 26 April 2018, with a term of ten years
from the date of adoption. The 2018 Share Option Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants
(as defined below) had or may have made to the Group.

The Board of Directors may, at its discretion, grant an option
to:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives
(including executive, non-executive and independent
non-executive directors) or officers of the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries; and

(i) any suppliers, customers, consultants, agents and
advisors of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

Without prior approval from the Company's shareholders,
the maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2018 Share Option Scheme and
under any other share option schemes of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
in issue at the time the 2018 Share Option Scheme was
adopted by the shareholders of the Company (i.e. 26 April
2018). At the end of reporting period, the total number
of shares in respect of which options had been granted to
its employees and directors under the 2018 Share Option
Scheme was 8,104,000, representing 0.14% of the shares
of the Company in issue at the time the 2018 Share Option
Scheme is adopted by the shareholders of the Company.

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2018 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to an individual in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this
1% limit shall be subject to the shareholders’ approval.
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(b) 2018 FEEREEI(E) (b) 2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

TEEHEFTENEFRE
miTEE KA DR () R £
P AE R T AR B P E A
B (DO EBRERT B
516 & % A R B R 1 UL
mE: Rii)kOHOEES Z

REEE-

BERENTESHESER
E o MBREZITERIZR
BTRZ10F - BEESRE
THIFREE - HBRESE
WETF 2 HBREZRBE
BERE¥ 1T - B—BRER
THRBEREE LBARA K
EERRER] -

£20185TEIRE R TARF K
HMBRARZEEREEZE
P& 4 515 KA 2019 4F 522018
FI1I2ANBFEERNZ RITHE

The exercise price is determined by the Company’s Board
of Directors, and will not be less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of
grant; (i) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors, save that
no option may be exercised more than 10 years after it has
been granted. The options will be vested after three years
from the date of grant. A nominal consideration of HK$1
is paid by each option holder for each lot of share option
granted. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe
for one ordinary share of the Company.

Details of share options granted by the Company to the
employees and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
pursuant to the 2018 Share Option Scheme and the share
options outstanding as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are

HIERENT - as follows:
RTBREHE
Number of RITFENBRESE
®FAH share options Number of share TEE TFEH
Grant date granted options outstanding Exercise price Exercisable period
2019 2018 HK$

2018F4H27H 2,478,000 2,478,000 2,478,000 16.18 20219F4H30H=E

27 April 2018 2028%4H26H
30 April 2021 to
26 April 2028

2018F4H27H 5,626,000 3,785,000 5,590,000 16.18 2021F4H30H=

27 April 2018 20244 H26H
30 April 2021 to
26 April 2024

as 8,104,000 6,263,000 8,068,000

Total
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(b) 2018 FEERRAECHEI (&) (b) 2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
RHE 2018 5T &M ARTTIE 2 B Movements in the number of options outstanding and their
EEREMEFHTEREL# weighted average exercise prices under the 2018 Share
s Option Scheme are as follows:
2019 2018
InREF NS
TEE TEME
Weighted Weighted
average HBREHA average HEARIEENE
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
REH At beginning of the year 16.18 8,068 — —
REARAFL Granted during the year — — 16.18 8,104
RERNITE Exercised during the year — — — —
RERE I Forfeited during the year — 16.18 (36)
MEREUY, 43 Cancelled / lapsed during
the year 16.18 (1,805) — —
REER At the end of the
reporting period 16.18 6,263 16.18 8,068
RFERLEERIEREE RT None of the options are vested and exercised during the
i o year.
M2019F 124318 @ K The options outstanding at 31 December 2019 had a
TEERENINETFAHRT S weighted average remaining contractual life of 5.90 years
#)H) 5 5.904 (2018 4 - 6.55 (2018: 6.55 years). At the end of the reporting period, none
F) o NEER - R BIERRER of the options are exercisable.
178 -
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2018 FEEE R AERTBI ()

BRERTEBZANBETL
ERRZEFRMBNE - A=
BABRETEEAETE - B
SEFE R R ERRNRE M
KAGFEREAZRS - ARE
ZEATEREBEERTHETE -
HEBEREAAERERACE
BT

(b) 2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The fair value of the share options granted is measured at
the date of grant, using the binomial option pricing model,
taking into account the terms and conditions of the share-
based arrangement. The fair value calculated is inherently
subjective and uncertain due to the assumptions made and
the limitations of the model used. The inputs into the model
are as follows:

B¥HZ il =1
DR LG
sk/En SR/Br  OHEER SEARER
Fairvalue Sharepric ®K /B ZH% BHREE
at grant at grant Exercise  Risk-free ~ BHKIE FEHTHEH  Expected
RTAH date date price interest Expected Expected dividend
Grant date HK$/share  HKS$/share  HKS$/share rate volatility life yield
20184 A27H 4.50 15.02 16.18 4.09% 34.9% 106 2.3%
27 April 2018 10 years
20184 A27H 3.50 15.02 16.18 4.09% 34.9% 6F 2.3%
27 April 2018 6 years

TR B A < — 4 MO P
DA R B LR IE
SEL TS NN T LEL
BB R RE B E R b
ox

The expected volatility was determined by using the
historical volatility of the Company’s share price over the
last one year of share option granted. The variables and
assumptions used in computing the fair value of the share
options are based on the directors’ best estimate.
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2019 2018
AR FTT ABWEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
tHEE-ENHERE  Financial liabilities - contingent
consideration payable 9,674 9,862

ZEEIERENMNE B4R
EEMSIARE  FEHNE
EHBMEMT20- BB
BIORBEEBRAPRENE
ERFHARAN B B A 208 AT
FRENE—TFDETH - &
NEREBZARBEBARE
9,674,000 C(2018%F : A K
#9,862,000T ) - TEET K
EEETK BRI RE R
RIZFVPLETEN S RIBEZIE
RENEB D (20184F : FE B ES

) o

=
=

D

FR - HEREBEZAREE
Ik 5 B AR 188,000 L2 &f
AIBR(2018F « [FIEAN R
4,604,0007T) °
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The amount represents the contingent consideration payable
arose from the acquisition of HZPS as detailed in note 20 to
the consolidated financial statements which was determined
based on a certain portion of projected net profits of HZPS
for specified period as defined in the SPA. The fair value of
the contingent consideration payable was RMB9,674,000
(2018: RMB9,862,000), which was expected to be due on
after the completion date of the registration of the Equity
Transfer and recorded in the non-current portion (2078:
non-current portion) of financial liabilities at FVPL.

During the year, gain on change in fair value of the
contingent consideration of RMB188,000 (2078 loss of
RMBA4,604,000) was recognised in profit or loss.
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2019 2018
AR¥TFTT ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
IRITEK Bank loans:
1 17 Secured 532,528 650,525
IR Unsecured 11,841,931 10,183,983
12,374,459 10,834,508
BERE R BRI The maturity of the interest-bearing
HEZ EIHA DT borrowings and analysis of the amount
(I 72 B AT 4 22 K By due based on scheduled payment dates
EEBIOZE) set out in the loan agreements
(ignoring the effect of any repayment on
demand clause) are as follows:
1FER Within one year 7,454,381 6,461,785
F29F In the second year 2,104,687 2,726,578
FIFEFSF In the third to fifth years, inclusive
(BREER2F) 2,509,470 1,250,729
HFELALE Over five years 305,921 395,416
12,374,459 10,834,508
WoEARBABES Y Portion classified as current liabilities (7,454,381) (6,461,785)
EREE D Non-current portion 4,920,078 4,372,723
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B EEEH AR 1,880,000,000 Interest-bearing borrowings of RMB1,880,000,000 (20718
TL(20184F « A FE #1,294,898,000 RMB1,294,898,000), with a clause in their terms that gives the
T)BE—REERRGE TEEAR lender an overriding right to demand repayment without notice
MERBEIAAN DR+ A or with notice period of less than 12 months at its sole discretion,
BAHNBERT  ERKBERE- are classified as current liabilities even though the directors do
BEEEUTEBAEEASTFEL not expect that the lenders would exercise their rights to demand
BEFEZREE HBEEBENTCDHE repayment.

RRBAILE -

hnE T F R R /B3.71% (2018 The weighted average effective interest rate on the interest-
F:375%) - bearing borrowings is 3.71% (2018: 3.75%) per annum.
BEEEEREHEKATR - Interest-bearing borrowings are carried at amortised cost.
HROTEREBERIOERDLE The Group's secured bank loans are pledged by certain investment
KEUREME ME BER properties, property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
HERTREEE 28D 8 with net carrying amount of approximately RMB1,122,000,000,
B # A R %1,122,000,0007T RMB592,584,000 and RMB1,505,130,000 (2078: RMB1, 119,000,000,
A R #592,584,0000t & A R RMB625,770,000 and RMB1,549,398,000 respectively) respectively.
#1,505,130,0007t(2018 : % The unsecured bank loans are not pledged and certain of the
Bl B A K #1,119,000,0007T * unsecured bank loans are covered by several cross guarantee
A K& #625,770,000T &k A & arrangements amongst the Group's entities.

1,549,398,0007T ) » IR IR 1T &
A R IR 1T (5 R h
ZEAAEEER ZIXERLTHER

e
Z= o
==}

PRMENBEEERLHR - — & Some of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment of
WITEEEREAEBERETHRSE covenants relating to certain of the ratios of consolidated financial
BIFEAR L 3 o INRAREEFHE R P position, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with
S CEAMREBEREKEE financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants,
B o the drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.
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The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants
and the scheduled repayments of the term loans and does
not consider it probable that the relevant banks will exercise
its discretion to demand for repayment so long as the Group
continues to meet these requirements. Further details of the
Group's financial management of liquidity risk are set out in note
45 to the consolidated financial statements. Throughout the
reporting period, none of the covenants relating to drawn down
facilities had been breached (2078: None).

An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group’s total
borrowings by type is as follows:

2019 2018
ARETFT AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

[&] 7E A1) & At fixed rates 1,732,811 2,568,939
FENF & At floating rates 10,641,648 8,265,569
12,374,459 10,834,508

BRIEEUATIEESIE

The interest-bearing borrowings are denominated in the following
currencies:

2019 2018
ARETT ARETIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR RMB 2,915,340 3,013,652
E us$ 9,459,119 7,820,856
12,374,459 10,834,508

BEHEEBEINERR M AR E RS E
— B RERE B RERMFE4S
EES I

ﬁE{I\TA—f%

AEEBRETE  EEREERE
E2Mo5lmtE BERAES
o707 BT A e S L RET & o B
HASEFEAMEEFERES
HEBMZETAOELRHERK - K
SEBN LA EAOERN - T
BEEXNTE FELRAERET
RIRE R ER 2BH) o

Details of the Group’s foreign currency risk and interest rate risk
discussion are set out in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Defined contribution plans

The Group participates in defined contribution plans organised
by the relevant local government authorities in the PRC, Hong
Kong and Taiwan for its PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan employees
respectively, whereby the Group is required to make monthly
contributions to these plans at certain percentage of the relevant
portion of the payroll of these employees to the pension scheme
to fund the benefits. The Group has no obligation for the
payment of retirement and other post-retirement benefits for the
PRC, Hong Kong and Taiwan employees other than the monthly

contributions described above.
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HZE2019F12 A31 HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

Defined benefit plan

The Group has a defined benefit plan for its Taiwan employees.
The Group has not maintained any plan asset and bears the
full cost of all the plan benefits. During the year, the Group has
mutually agreed with all eligible employees that the defined
benefit obligation originally borne by the Company and certain
overseas subsidiaries would be borne by certain PRC subsidiaries
thereafter. The benefits are calculated based on the length of
service and average monthly salary for the final six months of
employment. The Group’s obligation in respect of the defined
benefit plan is calculated by an independent actuary, Messrs. Willis
Towers Watson, Taiwan Branch (“Willis Towers Watson”). The
latest actuarial valuation was performed by Willis Towers Watson
as at 31 December 2019 using the projected unit credit method.

The amounts included in the consolidated statement of financial
position arising from the obligation of the Group in respect of its

NMEBEZZHNT defined benefit plan and their movements in the present value of
defined benefit obligations are as follows:
2019 2018
ARETFT ABBFITT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REH] At beginning of the year 115,436 101,226
REE RIS A Current service cost 10,626 6,545
FLE A Interest expense 2,998 3,807
13,624 10,352
Bi4E Remeasurements:
MBREFAEREE S Actuarial loss arising from changes in
BEEE financial assumptions 2,679 3,643
KRRAREE Actuarial loss arising from experience
BEEE adjustments 72,198 36,360
74,877 40,003
EENEER Benefit payment (46,871) (34,660)
PE = %H Exchange differences = (1,485)
(46,871) (36,145)
REEHR At end of the reporting period 157,066 115,436
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REBFGE (&) Defined benefit plan (Continued)
BEAEENEERR/ The significant assumptions used for the actuarial valuation were:
2019 2018
% %
PrIRE Discount rate 2.80 3.10
T8 AR B - Expected rate of salary increases 3.00 3.00
REER  SBEXERERRENE The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to reasonable

=1 TER
B gEeER TR E T8

possible changes for each significant actuarial assumption as at
the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2019 2018
REBANELE REBMELE
Mt VEML
Change in Change in
R defined  REME/L defined
Change in benefit Change in benefit
assumption obligation assumption obligation
Frif Discount rate +/-0.5% -2.81%/ +/-0.5% -2.06%/
+2.98% +2.18%
T8 AR %7 B - 1@ Expected rate of salary +/-0.5% +3.13%/ +-0.5% +2.43%/
increases -2.98% -2.31%

tRBEESHERESEBEER
RNEEAIEEPRE  MEMR
RFRFAE - AIEERKR DA AL
BRI PR M - LR EY
AR ESEA - FBEHERA R
RAZRAREERERANIETLHR
BERAENE HIRE KA B ER
B AER) - BB HIENE
EBRRBLUEARNEEANE RATF
EV R E DA

AERAMNETHMEFHHRR
5.90F (20184 : 4.304) »

B It &
260 =

AEl aEEERERNE
BIRAEH) o

The above sensitivity analysis is prepared based on a reasonable
possible change in each actuarial assumption used, with other
assumptions held constant. Other actuarial assumptions may
also change with the above assumptions. Such change is not
accounted for in the above analyses. The projected unit credit
method is used to determine the present value of the defined
benefit obligations and the related current service cost and where
applicable the past service cost. The same method and the type
of actuarial assumptions were used in preparing the sensitivity
analysis for the current and previous year.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation
is 5.90 years (2018: 4.30 years).

Under the plan, the Taiwan employees are entitled to retirement
benefits on the attainment of a retirement age of 60.
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REBNE (&)

ARAERMABRERFAIE
EARETEIMNESTHERT
EHMHEZ A ER - B RITRME
RN IEA BB ST

Defined benefit plan (Continued)

The Group has no funding arrangement and expects no
contribution to be paid in respect of the defined benefit plan as
the defined benefit plan does not maintain any plan assets. The
expected maturity analysis of the undiscounted pension benefits is

as follows:
2019 2018
AREFT AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1FR Within 1 year 16,102 37,609
BB FER2FR More than 1 year but within 2 years 27,123 6,970
HBE3FERSFNR More than 2 years but within 5 years 52,582 36,017
HBiE 5 F Over 5 years 154,762 95,593
250,569 176,189

AEBFELEHAREZINT

The movements for the year in the Group’s net deferred tax
liabilities are as follows:

Htat 2019 2018

Note ARETTT ABREFIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

e =) At beginning of the year 538,420 762,016

HEMB AR Disposal of subsidiaries 43 154 —
WEBARFIESE 2 Withholding tax paid on distributions of

BT earnings by subsidiaries (220,073) (277,879)

FFALZRAEWERA  Charge to consolidated income statement 11 465,750 54,283

R&EER At end of the reporting period 784,251 538,420
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REEH EHRRZELCHEEE
JNE=KE N

Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the
reporting period represent the following:

2019 2018
BE afE BE =L
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
MERBITE Accelerated depreciation
allowance = (594,330) — (611,456)
WERTBINE Decelerated depreciation
allowance 2,052 — 2,052 —
DAEFE Fair value adjustment on:
—RAEEE — Right-of-use assets and
ME - BELERE property, plant and
equipment = (61,268) — (68,083)
—-EBREE — Intangible asset — (40,975) — (42,275)
—REUEHE — Investment properties — (21,242) — (20,323)
ﬁﬁﬁiﬂé Impairment losses 77,033 — 147,594 —
REGHREY Uninvoiced accrual
%Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ 226,134 — 176,527 —
HEME - HER Unrealised profit on property,
B RERFE plant and equipment 65,295 — 71,824 —
MEBARARDERNE  Withholding tax on undistributed
BRI earnings of subsidiaries — (440,200) — (176,237)
HIEE Tax losses 27,782 — 27,782 —
Htth Others 8,875 (33,407) 3,483 (49,308)
EEHBEEE(EMRE) Deferred tax assets (liabilities) 407,171 (1,191,422) 429,262 (967,682)

BIBECEMGRE  IEKREER
RPEMIINEREDEFESRSY
A& B EIE R 10% M) Bt & B 1R
Bio 5% EN200841 81 H#EAE
B WA 2007F12A31 8% 1A
ZF A S EFDE o WP B BT R
ZHNE IR A PR B SR oMb (& B
RN ZEE - ERABERE -

AR S [ B9 1 B B 8 B B 58 AR AR R

B10% - ARERBEREELQAE

HA7E m] 5 2R oh 0 0% A] (R o3 BC R B
Mt MELERIARE -

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends distributed to foreign
investors by the foreign investment enterprises established in
the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings accumulated after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and jurisdiction of the foreign investors.

For the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, the applicable rate is 10%.
Deferred tax liability is provided on the basis that the undistributed
earnings of the Group's entities are expected to be distributed in
the foreseeable future.
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fth 5 82 T F A OB T OF A The estimated withholding tax effects on the undistributed
HONERNEEZAORARE earnings (the “Remaining Net Earnings”) is approximately
1,728,487,000 T(20184%F : A K RMB1,728,487,000 (2018: RMB1,648,467,000) which would
#1,648,467,000T ) - & H 9 become payable when they are distributed. In the opinion of the
HABMIIE EFERABER AL directors, the Remaining Net Earnings, at the present time, are
ZERTEFFNBEABIESEERF required for financing the continuing operations of these entities
LEBE WA RERTES and no distribution would be made in the foreseeable future.
B - B 3F MR RE AN E R 4R o Accordingly, no provisions for additional deferred taxation have
been made.
REEHR AEEEHEARE Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of RMB111,128,000
111,128,000 0(20184%F : A K ¥ (2018: RMB111,128,000) were recognised as at the end of
111,128,000 ) Bi i B HER BIE reporting period. The tax losses can be carried forward for five
EHIBEE - BEERABEERT years from the year in which the losses arose for offsetting against
HZEEBEELARITAXRAFRZ future taxable income. The expiry years of tax losses with no
Mz REER - RERET deferred tax assets recognised at the end of the reporting date are
MIBEEHEBEIMFEHIT as follows:
2019 2018
BRI ARETFT ARBFIT
Tax loss expiring in: RMB’000 RMB’000
2019 — 522,641
2020 330,066 649,567
2021 431,724 573,409
2022 321,339 575,550
2023 238,015 460,878
2024 420,219 —
1,741,363 2,782,045
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2019 2018
AR¥FT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FE 1 BR X Trade payables
$£=h To third parties 6,258,861 5,626,698
R AT To related parties
—ARRAIZEE — A group of companies controlled by
SENZEI=PSE = the family members and relatives of
ZEHE—EAF] the Company'’s directors 1,402,880 —
—ARRRIZEEREHRE - Agroup of companies jointly controlled by
HEES 2 —4E 1A the Company’s directors and their
dependents — 1,092,308
VNI == — Companies jointly controlled by
HEES 2 A A the Company'’s directors — 226,199
i NE| To an associate 10,527 —
&N To joint ventures 5,767 8,756
7,678,035 6,953,961

ERNE=T BREBAL K

oy
RN

AMRARERAZENERSER
- 2B NMA30E 0 KERR -

period of 30 to 90 days.

The trade payables to third parties, related parties, an associate
and joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and with credit
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ENRANEERRERERREL

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date at

R DITAT the end of the reporting period is as follows:
2019 2018
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
0-90H 0 -90 days 6,789,795 6,075,099
90 HEA E Over 90 days 888,240 878,862
7,678,035 6,953,961

ERRFATIEESIE

The trade payables are denominated in the following currencies:

2019 2018
AR#¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR ¥ RMB 7,670,078 6,949,212
e us$ 7,783 4,513
Hit Others 174 236
7,678,035 6,953,961
2019 2018
ARH¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AU 5 Deposits received in advance 2,649,443 1,751,395
B EERESEAR Accruals for transportation, promoting and
2 TE1R advertising expenses 4,869,538 3,915,327
THRERREMGEER  Accruals for administrative expenses and other
ZTER operating expenses 667,631 496,952
BRI TEMENE Salaries and welfare payables 1,155,403 988,455
FET 3R A SR Payables for purchase of equipment 104,831 64,553
FEAS H A TR IR Other tax payables 708,616 738,043
JEA D BRI SRR F Dividends payable to non-controlling interests 33,678 25,859
JERTAIE, Interest payable 43,383 48,744
BAKREMRE Consideration payable for acquisition of
FERTEIE investment properties 31,129 —
Hity Others 497,798 493,668
10,761,450 8,522,996
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2019 2018
AR¥FT ARETFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BB B A Profit before taxation 5,411,596 3,979,334
FEER Interest expenses 413,652 421,682
B A Interest income (541,222) (348,388)
e Depreciation 3,251,365 3,210,324
WFVPLETEMEBEEZ  Dividend income from financial assets at FVPL
UL @N (3,253) (6,500)
T HE AR AR B 2 B Amortisation of prepaid lease payments — 103,693
B EE B Amortisation of intangible assets 6,406 9,490
HEWE  WENERER  Loss on disposal of property, plant and
ERAREEZBE equipment and right-of-use assets 92,900 86,607
YEE - R RERIERE  Impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment 152,050 625,846
BAREEYEREREEZER Change in fair value of financial liabilities at
RIENTHEE /&ﬁfﬁz FVPL, net
HE) (188) (40,115)
KEMEENEZEE Change in fair value of investment properties (3,674) (13,000)
LFVPLETEM S REE Change in fair value of financial assets at FVPL
NREZEE (20,774) 49,675
HEB 2 Rz zm Gain on disposal of an associate (131,053) —
HEAEEAR S Gain on disposal of a joint venture (223,150) —
HERBA 72%1@ Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (628,889) (387,844)
BERNAIMEER Gain on deregistration of associates and
FEEE 2z Was joint ventures — (436)
FEMME & N E) KA E /AR Share of results of an associate and
%Zi joint ventures (234,159) (71,580)
[EREE) 75 Effect on exchange rate changes (68,101) (23,842)
i §|J LM%&%%HXT% Recognition of equity-settled share-based
A 2 FIA payment 24,504 32,799
FE 28 Increase in inventories (793,335) (287,129)
JE AR TR 2 R > (3E0) Decrease (Increase) in trade receivables 45,946 (94,731)
BMFREREMEUTIE  Increase in prepayments and other receivables
Z 3B (210,977) (380,308)
FET BR 3R 2 38 00 Increase in trade payables 724,074 380,486
Hih et B KRB UWIFSE  Increase in other payables and deposits
Z 3B received 2,229,634 1,331,135
B P IR RIE 2 AN Increase in advance payments from customers 131,153 394,192
IEHFKE TRAME(MIRE 2 Decrease in present value of
RS unfunded employee benefit obligations (33,247) (24,307)
RELEFABRE Cash generated from operations 9,591,258 8,947,083
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39(a) MEEBELNABEHER

FRELARE RS BEED
MBERD  BERS RIS
2D WEFDELNAM
BREREARKRLTE -

activities

39(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

arising from financing activities, including both cash and

non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities

are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows

BEREEFERSRERT will be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of
DERMEETHEENRER cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.
E.
D
% R AR R
(Hat 38)
Dividend
HEas payable
(Bfst16) RITER to non-
Lease (Kfi#34)  controlling
liabilities  Banks loans interests Mt
(Note 16) (Note 34) (Note 38) Total
AREFT ANRETT AR¥TFT ARETT
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2019F181A At 1 January 2019 — 10,834,508 25,859 10,860,367
RMBAVBRE Upon adoption of HKFRS 16
HERIZE 1657 508,591 — — 508,591
FRE Net cash flows
(B2 ), (), (i) (Notes (i), (i), (iii)) (205,878) 1,426,712 (115,827) 1,105,007
B#g Other changes
BMER B Amortised interest expenses 24,625 — — 24,625
g New leases 212,480 — — 212,480
HEBII < FE Effect on lease modification (52,262) — — (52,262)
B E A Dividend declared = = 123,646 123,646
b HER Exchange realignment — 113,239 — 113,239
720195128318 At 31 December 2019 487,556 12,374,459 33,678 12,895,693
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39(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities (Continued)

JE D8

gl

(it 38)

Dividend

BEFRE payable

(Wit 34) RITER to non-

Unsecured (Ktit34)  controlling
notes  Banks loans interests st
(Note 34) (Note 34) (Note 38) Total
ARETFIT ARETFT AREFT ARETFT
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
7A2018F181H At 1 January 2018 1,193,724 13,190,549 — 14,384,273
FRER Net cash flows (1,206,628)  (2,780,467) (141,619)  (4,128,714)

Bt 25 Other changes:

BIER B Amortised interest expenses 1,756 — — 1,756
B EMRA Dividend declared — — 167,478 167,478
b 3 ZE 5 Exchange realignment 11,148 424,426 — 435,574
742018512 A31H At 31 December 2018 — 10,834,508 25,859 10,860,367

() HEHEMNIFHEEIREEFA
THHEEEE A RFEF

RITERABRIA - RITRHE
B8RS R A5 B S
RFREE  BREERRE
RIRITEFHFRERE ©

(i)

%

N D BRROBRENFRE
m B F AN D BUBCRE B

B o
N

(iii)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The net cash flows from lease liabilities represent the

payment of capital element and interest of lease liabilities.

The net cash flows from bank loans make up the net

amount of proceeds from bank borrowings, repayments

of bank and other borrowings and net movement of other

short-term borrowings.

The net cash flows from dividend payable to non-controlling

interests represent dividends paid to non-controlling

interests during the year.
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BRARGERE HMEMIRE 2R In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
SNBEEAIN LR AEEBEAE the consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into the
BEATETZEARZME It following material related party transactions in the ordinary course
ERXRGDIRARBZ AFEBTHE of the Group's business.
17 e
2019 2018
Hisz AR® T ANEEFT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
(@) FBBALZXZ (@) Related party transactions
mNHAREESR Sales of goods to:
ARE 2 EERE S Companies controlled by
A4 VNC] a substantial shareholder
of the Company (i) 174,809 146,761
N An associate 45,939 56,295
BERT Joint ventures 613,801 406,258
BTrIARBESR Purchases of goods from:
ARACEERERE A group of companies jointly
HEES 2 —BATF controlled by the Company's
directors and their dependents (i) = 5,065,192
iN/NG o4 A group of companies controlled by
RERKE RBEBEH the family members and relatives of
2 — 4N the Company's directors (i) 5,236,010 —
NG An associate 62,326 71,666
AERH Joint ventures 63,003 65,478
BTRAARZFRHEER Promotional expenses paid to:
ARRZ FERRIERZ Companies controlled by
E4dOVNG] a substantial shareholder
of the Company (i) 41,197 50,624
m A ARKBRKER Administrative expenses paid
THER: on behalf and received from:
CX=VN Joint ventures 2,935 5,230
@ 52 R R & 1 Rental income from investment
FEHERNE  BER properties and property, plant and
FE2HE equipment
AREZEFERRES 2 Companies controlled by
E4dOVNG] a substantial shareholder
of the Company 44,222 43,034
Zl»‘”ﬁZ%%&E%E% A company jointly controlled
HEES B2 by the Company's directors and
their dependents — 2,891
ARRIZEERY A company controlled by the family
FEER B AR IR members and relatives of the
—fEAA Company's directors 3,089 —
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BaE) WIBETRAE14AE - ZEH Note (i) These related party transactions also constitute continuing
BHEAT 2 XS RFHERE connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
25 e Rules.

(b) BEREBEAESZHE (b) Key management personnel remuneration
REBHBHBEEABZHME Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
(BREGEMBERERME10F including amounts paid to the Company’s directors, chief
BEMARARES  THAHK executive officer and certain of the highest paid employees
XfNzHBERAETESHE as disclosed in note 10 to the consolidated financial
BX R zgm)wmT statements, is as follows:

2019 2018

AR¥FT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB'000

EEWe Directors’ fees 4,348 4,182

e hEMmIHE Salaries and other emoluments 83,138 48,341

VARR AR 2+ 2 k08 Share-based payments 22,266 15,284

TE4L Discretionary bonuses 16,048 22,538
BRE T RIEFEHR  Retirement payments and contributions to

RS FT SR pension scheme 23,902 —

149,702 90,345

ZEEER 2017 FREMMNEEN The amount represents the remaining portion of the cash

RERReUBENGRLY 5FEH consideration in acquiring HZPS's equity interest in 2017 as

RERE B R M 3520 - FBEAB R detailed in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements

TEER2021FFRLELSF AR which is expected to be settled not later than the end of 2021

2019F 12 A31 HRA BEAMIER and is therefore recognised in other non-current liabilities at 31

FAE - December 2019.
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FRRFERBMBEHREEAFE 155 The movements (excluding those arising from increases and
MNEFPAEVNBE(TEERRFNIE decreases both occurred within the same year) of contract
MEBPEENES) AT - liabilities from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 during

the year are as follows:

2019 2018
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REH] At beginning of the year 1,678,782 1,284,590
R AW A Recognised as revenue (1,678,782) (1,284,590)
WRIRZHEWHFENF Receipt of advances of undelivered goods 1,809,935 1,678,782
REER At end of the reporting period 1,809,935 1,678,782
2019912 A31H k2018412 A At 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the advance
318 KPBENFIBESER —FRE payments from customers are expected to be recognised as
RN o revenue within one year.
FAN - AEBEHE=FBFIE=FF During the year, the Group entered into six sales and purchase
YAMEERE HEMEZEN agreements with three independent third parties for the disposal
BRARAEWHEIEZEMNBRAAZ of the entire equity interests in two wholly-owned subsidiaries
EPHBREARTERE2ENBE R and two non-wholly owned subsidiaries and partial disposal of the
RAlzBoBE HEFTHERF equity interests of two wholly-owned subsidiaries. These disposals
W e TR ERTHER - were completed during the year. Upon the completion of the
HEMBRARIFREZLEARE above six disposals, total net gain on the disposal of subsidiaries
615,309,000 L EfF AB&E K » K of RMB615,309,000 was recognised in profit or loss, and a gain
SEEZ AR EERERS% RELH of RMB13,580,000 was resulted from recognition of 5% equity
BAIME R Az EmmERARE interests retained in two former subsidiaries at their fair value at
13,580,000t 2 Wz - BN =D the date when control are loss from the two partial disposal of
HARFEHEEEARGRR CHM subsidiaries. The retained interests were recognised as financial
FUWAAN - MRBERDHWERE assets at FVPL as set out in note 23 of the consolidated financial
B 75 SRR MY sk 23 ATl 2 FVPLRE R & statements.
CRVEE °
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BATR Bt 78 s B (B e A 6 B AP The following summarises the aggregate consideration received
BERBENR@DAESR and the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities at the
respective date of disposal:
g
Total
AREFT
RMB’000
FHENREE(8E) Net assets (liabilities) disposed of
M - e G Property, plant and equipment 182,441
FREEE Right-of-use asets 65,143
BLETIBEE Deferred tax assets 154
A BB I8 Tax recoverable 23,223
TS FRIE B B fh e M R IR Prepayments and other receivables 1,747
RITEHR MRS Bank balance and cash 23,548
H eI sERE KRS Other payables and deposit received (9,887)
Bi1E Taxation (347)
286,022
HEMBARMKR Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 628,889
DERR R R Non-controlling interest (8,601)
REBERZAAEE Fair value on retained interests (18,867)
887,443
2R E Consideration received
RERE Cash consideration 860,129
FEURE K Consideration receivables 27,314
887,443
HEMBARZESRARE ! Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries
RERE Cash consideration 860,129
EHECHEeRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (23,548)
BELRSEEYZRATE Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents 836,581
HEHNB AT WS ZHER: Reconciliation of net gain on
disposal of subsidiaries:
IREBHER 2= Gain on retained interests 13,580
HERBARF S Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries 615,309
628,889
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AEENEAEEIRRHELAE
BEELENED  RRRREHEE

BRAEMBHEIRER % -

AEEFERREEHFEARAES

EReEBEBMNEEE)R

Hena

ERBLE(WERARAHR ARNE
BamitR)AEREEAR(BIEHR
BRI ) - MEMREHIAEL

The Group's objectives on managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group monitors its capital, which comprises all equity
components, using a gearing ratio which is calculated on the basis
of net debt (interest-bearing borrowings net of cash and cash
equivalents) as a ratio of the equity attributable to owners of the
Company. The debt-to-equity ratio at the end of the reporting

flamT period was as follows:
2019 2018
AR¥TFTT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 12,374,459 10,834,508
B BReMEeEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents (17,430,387) (13,840,421)
FIRE Net cash (5,055,928) (3,005,913)

AN B R AL B 2 Total equity attributable to owners

of the Company 19,578,574 19,653,476
FEREBRERLE Gearing ratio -25.82% -15.29 %

REBEBELEHME

\e o4y
A R

BERTEHREIMERBERERE I
REBEEERANECHBE NG

B ABKRERE

EERAE

B BITHEBARKRERN L
MPEMLE  ZRMEEEMNX
B RRERHMLERS -

PR2019F « REEME

% 822018

FHR BEEKFEERETHE -
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The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance and makes adjustments to capital structure according
to changes in economic conditions for achieving its objectives
through payment of dividends, retire of existing debts, issue of
new debts and sales of lands and properties not in use. Changing
of borrowing rate in the market, future capital expenditures and
investment opportunities are taken into consideration.

During 2019, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from
2018, aims at minimising the net debt approximately to nil
balance.
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HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

The Group’s financial instruments expose it to foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board
of Directors generally adopts conservative strategies on its risk
management and limits the Group's exposure to these risks to a
minimum. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:

Foreign currency risk

The majority of the subsidiaries of the Group are operated in the
PRC and most of their transactions are denominated in RMB.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
payable on capital expenditures, purchases, bank balances,
interest-bearing borrowings, financial assets at FVPL, financial
liabilities at FVPL and related party balances that are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the Company
or its subsidiaries.

The exchange rate of RMB against US$ is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government. The Group did not have significant exposure
to foreign exchange risk arising from daily operating activities of
the subsidiaries because their main operations are conducted in
their functional currency. Considered the diverged trends of the
exchange rates between RMB and the US dollars and the Group
itself, the Group has adopted a financing strategy to increase the
PRC subsidiaries proportion of on shore financing and to reduce
their foreign currencies financing. During the year, the Group has
not entered into significant hedging activities to hedge against the
exposure to foreign currency risk.

Details of the Group’s financial assets at FVPL, cash and cash
equivalents, interest-bearing borrowings and trade payables
denominated in currencies other than RMB as at 31 December
2019 and 2018 are set out in notes 23, 28, 34 and 37 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
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Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, if the exchange rates of RMB/
US$, RMB/NTD and RMB/EUR had strengthened/weakened by
2.4%, 1.3% and 2.3% respectively (20718: 5.5%, 3.4% and
5.3% respectively) with all other variables held constant, the
Group's profit for the year and retained profits would have been
RMB2,357,000 (2018: RMB3,745,000) higher/lower.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the
change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to Group's exposure
to currency risk for all financial instruments in existence at that
date, and that all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant. The stated changes in foreign currency represent
management’s assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until the next annual end
of the reporting period. The analysis was performed on the same
basis for 2018.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank balances and interest-
bearing borrowings. Bank balances and interest-bearing
borrowings with floating interest rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. For interest-bearing borrowings, the
Group's policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed
and floating rate debts, monitor closely its interest rate exposure
and the level of fixed rate and floating rate borrowings in
consideration of economic atmosphere and the strategies of the
Group.

During the year, the Group has not entered into significant
hedging activities to hedge against the exposure to cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group's borrowings at fixed rate of interest was 14% (2018:
24%).
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Interest rate risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates of bank
balances and interest-bearing borrowings denominated in US$
and RMB had been 75 (2078: 100) and 30 (2018: 50) basis
point higher/lower respectively and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit for the year and retained profits
would decrease/increase by RMB20,897,000 (2018. decrease/
increase by RMB8,538,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred throughout the
year and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk
for bank balances and interest-bearing borrowings in existence
during the year. The 75 (2018: 100) and 30 (2018: 50) basis point
increase or decrease on the bank balances and interest-bearing
borrowings denominated in US$ and RMB respectively represent
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rates over the period until the next annual end of the
reporting period. The analysis was performed on the same basis
for 2018.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to long-term
time deposits, cash and cash equivalent and trade and other
receivables. Substantially all of the Group’s long-term time
deposits, pledged bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents
were deposited in the creditworthy global financial institutions
and state-controlled financial institutions in the PRC, which
management considers they are without significant credit risk.
The carrying amount of financial assets recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position, which is net of loss
allowance, represents the Group’s exposure to credit risk without
taking into account the value of any collateral held or other credit
enhancements.
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FERK (&) Credit risk (Continued)

FEW IR Trade receivables

REBZHERBOARSHEE - The majority of the Group's sales are conducted on a cash
AEBEBREBRUAEEHECZE basis. The Group has implemented policies to ensure that sales
EEERMAERINEELSRIIES of products are made to direct retailers, who wish to trade on
HEd ERPERZEASER credit terms, with an appropriate credit history which is subject to
B—MIEER  AETBUEERT periodic reviews. Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
fth © customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
AEEMEERRIEXGRERP The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
BRFENTE FEPEENITE individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
MERAE LR b ERRR the industry and country in which customers operate also has an
EEFE AFEREER) - influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.
AEENEFPEBBZERANX The Group's customer base consists of a wide range of clients
EREFZARBREESE R and the trade receivables are categorised by common risk
KEPBREBEAENBERIZNME IS characteristics that are representative of the customers’ abilities to
RIEWEL ) - AEBERABGI A E pay all amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms. The
STEEWRANECL - WIRIESER Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL for trade
EHEHMEETEBECLEREER receivables and recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
B WELTEREELERERX ECL at each reporting date and has established a provision matrix
KB BERR - WIREBH ALK that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
ERBEARAZRETTHAE  AE forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
EHEHEEBSENGEEARAD environment. The expected loss rate used in the Group's
TEHEAERBRBEARE=FHER estimation on ECL is calculated for each category based on actual
ERBXERFTERN  WIRIEER credit loss experience over the past three years and adjusted for
MATEEZETRHE  URBRBE K current and forward-looking factors to reflect differences between
SR BB BB 2 economic conditions during the period over which the historical
FOER BEGRGREAEEYE data has been collected, current conditions and the Group's
W B 3k T8 HA 45 BA 9 R SR ASOE AR R B9 estimate on future economic conditions over the expected lives of
et - ERBERR  BEERRIR the receivables. The management considered that these factors
BRERERNEERBRRER2019F do not indicate any significant credit risk and additional loss
} 20184 12 B 31 H &9 FE U BR 5k &Y allowance for provision for trade receivables as at 1 January and
BINEBEBREBEALTEKR - FRME 31 December 2019 and 2018 to be insignificant. There was no
Tk E R RER W EED) o change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions

made during the year.
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EERK(E) Credit risk (Continued)
FEW R (2) Trade receivables (Continued)
R2019F % 2018412 A31H " A The information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for
B8 E 7 2 B iR L 0 IR R SR 12 trade receivables based on past due status as at 31 December
ERREECLHERMANT o 2019 and 2018 is summarised below.
7201912 831H As at 31 December 2019
HBERTEE EEEEE
Gross carrying
amount Credit-impaired
AR¥ T
RMB’000
REIH Not past due 1,447,557 No
BRI ERERE Past due but not impaired
30 R Within 30 days 85,398 No
31-90 X 31 -90 days 64,885 No
im0k Over 90 days 71,685 No
1,669,525
M20184 12 A31H As at 31 December 2018
BEREE EEEXE
Gross carrying
amount  Credit-impaired
AREFT
RMB'000
REH Not past due 1,461,566 No
SR HERERE Past due but not impaired
30 KA Within 30 days 94,915 No
31-90 K 31 - 90 days 107,352 No
#8318 90 X Over 90 days 51,638 No
1,715,471
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Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The trade receivables as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 that were
past due but not impaired related to a number of independent
customers that had a good track record with the Group. The
Group had not impaired these debtors as there had not been a
significant change in credit quality and the directors believed that
the amounts would be fully receivable.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade receivables as at
31 December 2019 (20178: Nil).

Amounts due from an associate, joint venture and related
parties

The Group considers that the amounts due from an associate,
joint ventures and related parties, no matter it is trade receivable
or non-trade receivable, have low credit risk based on the
counterparties’ strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and low risk of default. Impairment
on amounts due from these parties is measured on 12-month ECL
and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. At 31 December
2019, the additional loss allowance for provision for amounts due
from these parties was insignificant.
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Credit risk (Continued)
Loan and other receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment on loan and other
receivables from various parties based on 12-month ECL. The
credit risk of the Group's loan and other receivables arises from
default of the counterparties, with maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these receivables. Individual credit limits
are set based on the assessments of the credit quality.

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into account
the historical actual credit loss experience and the financial
position of the counterparties, past collection history, current
creditworthiness, adjusted for forward-looking factors that are
specific to the debtors and general economic conditions of the
industry in which the counterparties operate, in estimating the
probability of default of these financial assets, as well as the
loss upon default in each case. The management of the Group
considers the ECL of these financial assets to be insignificant after
taking into account the financial position, credit quality of the
counterparties and past settlement records. There was no change
in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made
during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a concentration
of credit risk as 89.29% (2018: 85.92%) of loan receivables which
was due from the Group's largest debtor, and 100% of loan
receivables (2018: 100%) was due from the Group's five largest
debtors.
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REESRR Liquidity risk

REBHEHRRDECRRER 2 The Group's objectives when managing liquidity risk are to
BEZRBEETHR S MBI NRER maintain sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
A D ARFBEEREREE - I credit facilities. Also, the Group's policy is to regularly monitor
B AEBFEHERAEREHR current and expected liquidity requirements, in particular those
mMEBELTR  THEERHAZ R relating to capital expenditure and repayments of debts. At the
BEFREZITENEST R RN end of the reporting period, the Board of Directors expected
HEARAERAKRR  EFEHE that the Group had no significant liquidity risk in the near future.
SEITEABSESER - BRBIES Details of the preparation of consolidated financial statements on
BreE C EARUEE «FBER a going concern basis are set out in note 2 to the consolidated
fRE BT ERMTEE2 o financial statements.

TEBZERBEREEREEY The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the end of
2 H THRAZGORTRER the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted payments
EMEBIRAT - is summarised below:

180 L 260 E

1A% BE2EFA BESER

BREREX  Morethan  More than

Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but S5ELME

1 year or within less than Over CH)
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
ARBFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

M2019%12A318 At 31 December 2019

JET R R Trade payables 7,678,035 = = — 7,678,035
Hin B K Other payables and
[REveia deposits received 8,897,431 — — — 8,897,431
HEBR Lease liabilities 219,102 137,580 149,999 27,453 534,134
BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 7,699,649 2,219,797 2,615,706 355,329 12,890,481
HinEnByam Other non-current liabilities = 40,000 = = 40,000
FENSARE Contingent consideration payable = 9,674 = = 9,674

24,494,217 2,407,051 2,765,705 382,782 30,049,755
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REBELRARE) Liquidity risk (Continued)
More than More than
Within 1 year 2 years
1 year or but within - but less than
on demand 2 years 5years  Over 5 years Total
ARETFT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB000
#2018%12A31H  At31December 2018
FEITEER Trade payables 6,953,961 — — — 6,953,961
Hit R 5K Other payables and
[l etk deposits received 6,796,498 — — — 6,796,498
BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 6,760,386 2,881,353 1,373,027 470,088 11,484,854
HihIERBERE Other non-current liabilities — — 40,000 — 40,000
JERSARE Contingent consideration
payable — — 9,862 — 9,862
20,510,845 2,881,353 1,422,889 470,088 25,285,175

EXmEeE —BE TERALE
BEER T EEAREREE R EE
HEER - HEAEEBRE LB ®
RHEAIRERENRIER -REE
EWTEHEEASITEAZRE
REEF) - AR 1,880,000,0007T
(2018 + NER¥1,294,8980007T )
REERER LR AANBE 25
BENKBRERBZERKERD
™~

The amounts repayable under loan agreements that include a

clause that gives the lenders the unconditional right to call the

loan at any time are classified under the “on demand” bracket.
In this regard, interest-bearing borrowings of RMB1,880,000,000
(2018: RMB1,294,898,000) as at the end of the financial period
have been so classified even though the directors do not expect

that the lenders would exercise their rights to demand repayment

and thus these borrowings would be repaid according to the

following schedule as set out in the loan agreements:

2019 2018
AR F T ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEREE Interest-bearing borrowings
1FR Within 1 year 1,911,216 1,311,553
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(@) UDABEIRNEMEERER (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value

T % 2 % R2019F 12 A 31 The following table presents the financial assets and

A EAEeYBmELE liabilities measured at fair value or required to disclose their

BI)E 13RI AR BERZEIF fair value in these consolidated financial statements on a

ETNAABESHHEN= recurring basis at 31 December 2019 across the three levels

BAERTP > LMARBETTEN of the fair value hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value

BTN B HREEBLANE Measurement, with the fair value measurement categorised

EBEMeREERAE  ANE in its entirety based on the lowest level of input that is

STENSREETIERNE R significant to the entire measurement. The levels are defined

FERERAFEZH ANSK as follows:

ER - BERSHFHBOT -

— AN (&EEAH) K& - Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in
BRI 5T 2 B IR R active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
MG EHEREEREEN Group can access at the measurement date;
MEBEOCRKEAE)

- B2 BREEEE—R —  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
RIERESN - AT E B ok within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
BR2EERBENRE liability, either directly or indirectly;

A

- A3 (HERR) - X —  Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset
BEvEERABENR or liability.

Ao
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(a) UAAEEIIENEBMEERAE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(%) (Continued)
2019 2018
i fian K At iGN g5l #Al3 Aif
Level1 Level2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ABETL ARETL AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFr AREFT ARETL
RMBU0O  RMBDOO  RMBUOO  RMBOOO  RMBOD  RMBOOO  AMBUD  RMBOOO
BE Assets
FPLEESABEE  Fiancal assets at FUPL
-REES - Investment funds 708,694 — 5698 113439 - — MIM% 474%
-BxE%5 - k0 - Equity securitie, lsted 8 = = yif) 625 - - 625
ANl - Equity securites unlited — 1887 - 1887 - - - -
EER00 Desipnated FUOC
-BEE%5 Lw - Equity securites, unlited = — 15814 115614 - — 1408 114078
108,976 18,867 541,312 1,269,155 625 - 51,514 562,139
8 Liabilities
FALEEAER RS Fiancal labilties at FYPL
FEENZREE
- ENEERE - Contingent consideration payable = = 9674 9,674 - - 9,862 9,862
- - 9,674 9,674 - - 9,862 9,862

R2019F K 2018FEE R - 38
FHEHEERA1EFR2 2 M
% NS BEEREERT
3SR -

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value

measurements and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair

value measurements.
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HZE2019F12 A31 HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

(@) UDABEIRNEMEERER (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(&) (Continued)
20194 & 2018 4F N T 7 & The details of the movements of the recurring fair value
EAREFENEREAN3IH measurements categorised as Level 3 of the fair value
SEMEEN N - hierarchy for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018
are shown as follows:
2019 2018
§E af BE aE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BFPLEE HRFVPLER
MemEE  REFVOC MeREE  EERod
Designated Designated
FVPL Fvocl FVPL FVoCl
A FEft L fEfy
REES RxES AERE RERES hEE% FERE
Equity  Contingent Equity Contingent
Investment securities,  consideration Investment securities,  consideration
funds unlisted payable funds unlisted payable
ARBFE  ARETR  AREFT ARSI ARETT  AEETT
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
REA) At beginning of the year 447,49 114,018 (9,862) - - (5,.258)
RAEATHAREEN  Redassification upon
FIRENE adoption of HKFRS 9 = = = 504,359 132,693 —
BA Purchases/additions 20,033 - — 48735 — —
mE Disposal (76,762) (3,578) — (79,443) (8,521) -
BRI 28T (B%B)  Total gains or (losses)
recognised:
- - in profit or loss 26,938 — 188 (48,772) — (4,604)
-An2ElE ~ in other comprehensive
income - 3,199 - - (16,265) -
ERES Exchange difference 7,993 1,975 — 2617 6,111 —
REER At the end of the
reporting period 425,698 115,614 (9,674) 447 4% 114,018 (9,862)
REEAKEZEER  Change in unreliased
BEFABENES gain or (losses) for
FRANEY (BR) the year included
228 in profit or loss for
assets and liabilities
held at the end of
the reporting period 19,864 - 188 (50,601) - (4,604)
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E)RB 140682 1.621F
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LA BTTEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques and significant inputs used in Level 2
and Level 3 fair value measurement

()

Financial assets at FVPL: Investment funds

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s financial assets
at FVPL mainly comprise four investment funds which
are categorised as Level 3 (2018: four Level 3) of the
fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of one of the investment funds in
Level 3 is estimated based on the net asset value
of the investment fund reported to the investors
by the investment manager as at the end of the
reporting period. For the remaining three (2078:
three) investment funds in Level 3, their fair values are
estimated based on the fair values of the companies
invested by the funds. All of the investment funds in
Level 3 included both listed investments and unlisted
investments. The fair values of listed investments are
estimated with reference to quoted market price,
while the fair values of unlisted investments are
estimated by the respective investment managers
using valuation techniques including mainly average
earnings before interest, tax and amortisation (EBITDA)
multiple model and price/sales (P/S) multiple model.
In determining the fair value of unlisted investments,
it includes assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates. The expected
annual growth rates of unquoted companies invested
by the funds ranging from -9% to 8% (2018 -8%
to 2%), average EBIDTA multiple and average price/
sales (P/S) multiples of comparable companies of the
corresponding industries ranging from 5 to 22 times
(2018: from 4.1 to 21.7 times) and ranging from 1.40
to 1.62 times (2018: 1.18 to 1.35 times) respectively.
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HZE2019F12 A31 HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

(@) HUAREEIIRNEREERER

(&)
(i)

(i)

(iv)
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

(ir)

(iir)

(iv)

Financial assets at FVPL: Unlisted equity securities

The fair value of unlisted equity securities is
determined with reference to the net assets value of
the underlying equity securities.

Designated FVOCI: Unlisted equity securities

The fair value of the unlisted equity securities in Level
3 are mainly determined by the investment manager
using price/sales (P/S) multiple model. In determining
the fair value of the unlisted equity securities, it
includes assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates, including expected
annual growth rates of 0% (20718: -1%) and
comparable companies’ average P/S multiples of 1.40
times (2018 1.18 times).

Financial liabilities at FVPL: Contingent consideration
payable

The fair value of contingent consideration payable in
Level 3 is determined by using the income approach
based on the expected payment amounts and their
associated probabilities. When appropriate, it is
discounted to present value. In the opinion of the
directors, changing one or more of the inputs to
reasonably possible alternative assumptions would not
change the fair value significantly.



LA BTTEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

(@) U2ABEEFIENERMEERAE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(&) (Continued)
TEFTBEERAHREZEH Sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable
inputs
BRIBAREFEZETERT The sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable inputs
R ABREZEZHNT : for Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:
MEERAEE
REEEMRE
haEng
Impact on fair
20198 value and
1283182 the Group's
ME total
Fair value FIRREARRRHLARENGAR comprehensive
at31 Decemher (ﬁﬁﬁfﬂ!i{%ﬁ$ﬁ) income for
w1y ERE Sensitvity of fair value to changes ABNTHER the year
i Aggrr  Vauation  FAEZHA in unobservable inputs (assuming other Reasonably NEETT
Description AUBO00 techniques  Unobservable input factors remain unchanged) possible range AB 000
BRPLRENEREER
Financial assets at FVPL
RERS 125698 EBTDABY EEEHERX FERMARELR +-10% 49,084
EDMAEER R
Investrment funds EBITDA Expected annual growth rates  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
multiple the fair value and vice versa;
HBRA TETRE  AHBARTYTARER  ARARAER R +-8% +/-7,884
b8
Average EBITDA of comparable - The higher average EBITDA of comparable companies,
companies the higher the fair value and vice versg;
mEREY  EiERE ENABEER R H5% 42,528
PISmultiple  Expected annual growth rates  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
the fair value and vice versa;
eEAT HATEE  AHBAAZTETEE ERNAAEE RN +31% +-15,579
?)\i\ .
Average P/S ratio of The higher average PIS ratio of comparable companies,
comparable companies the higher the fair value and vice versg;
fEE ol
Designated FVOCI
RAZE %5 115614 THERY ERREERE BEEENSRRPERTMS - +5% 44,362
ERABEES RN
Equity securites, unlisted PIS multiple  Expected annual growth rates  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
the fair value and vice versa;
BRI HamHE +-36% +31,158

Average PIS ratio of
comparable companies

THRAFZ TETHE  ERNALEE R
The higher average P/S ratio of comparable companies,
the higher the fair value and vice verss;
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HZE2019F12 A31 HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

(@) HUAREEIIRNEREERER

(a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value

(&) (Continued)
TEFTBEERAHREZLH Sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable
(&) inputs (Continued)
MEERERE
REEEMRE
hanyE
Impact on fair
R2018E value and the
1283182 Group's total
ME TUBRBANESELAEENGRE comprehensive
Fair value at (BREMRZRETE) income for
31 December 2018 f5fE5 Sensitivity of fair value to changes in ABNTHER the year
it AFEFT  Valuation  FAEZEA unobservable inputs (assuming other factors Reasonably NEETT
Description RIBO0  techniques  Unobservable input remain unchanged) possible range RUB 000
BRPLRBNEREE
Financial assets at FVPL
BEES 4% TRERE  ERRHERE EEREMARELR +-10% 41,259
EDAEES R2HA:
Investrent funds PEEmultiple  Expected annual growth rates  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
the fair value and vice versa;
TERTZTmER  ARALAZTETRRER ALABEMR R +4% 4512
T
Average PIE ratio of The higher average P/E ratio of comparable companies,
comparable companies the higher the fair value and vice verss;
TEREY  EAFERX ERABEER RS +5% +1,676
PISmultiple  Expected annual growth rates  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
the fair value and vice versa;
eEAA HamEE  AHBAAZTOREE EROAAEE RN +37% +-11,004
i
Average PIS ratio of The higher average P/S ratio of comparable companies,
comparable companies the higher the fair value and vice verss;
R ROC
Designated FVOCI
BEES 114018 TREEEY FREDERE BEEENERRRLRZER +1-5% 414,865
EDAEEAS R
Equity securites, unlisted PISmultiple  Expected annual growth rates  The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
the fair value and vice versa;
eEAT TATEE BRI TETEE ERNAAEE k2K +42% 436,678
Average P/S ratio of The higher average PIS ratio of comparable companies,
comparable companies the higher the fair value and vice versg;
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S B HEERRMIZE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

(a)

(b)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation processes used in Level 3 fair value measurement

In estimating the fair value of investment fund and unlisted
equity securities within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy,
the Group uses market observable-data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
obtains the valuations provided by the respective investment
managers or trust administrator for the investment funds.

The Group’s finance department includes a team that
reviews the valuations performed by the investment
managers or trust administrator of the investment funds for
financial reporting purposes. The team reports directly to
the senior management. Discussions of valuation processes
and results are held between the management, investment
managers or trust administrator of the investment funds at
least once every year. At each financial year end, the finance
department works closely with the investment managers or
trust administrator of the investment funds to establish the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the valuation
models, verifies all major unobservable inputs in the
valuations, assesses valuations movements when compared
to the prior year valuation report and holds discussions
with the investment managers or trust administrator of the
investment funds.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at
other than fair value

In the opinion of the directors, no other financial assets
and liabilities of the Group are carried at amount materially
different from their fair values as at 31 December 2019.
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FEBTBIREAMIEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2019F12 A31 HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

BRRAARGETERREMIBOEE In addition to the commitments disclosure elsewhere in
ZEGE - RNEBEE THEE the consolidated financial statements, the Group has the

commitments as follow:

BT HAE Capital expenditure commitments
2019 2018
AR¥FT AREFT
BRI AV B REHE Contracted but not provided for: RMB'000 RMB'000

EEYHE  HER Expenditures on property, plant and

B3 equipment 650,104 1,052,032
"EHS Investment funds 12,296 30,212
662,400 1,082,244
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LA BTTEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

Pursuant to the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the statement of financial position of the

LU Company and the movements in its reserves are set out below:
2019 2018
btaz ARMTFT ARETFT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
VI - IR REE Property, plant and equipment 415 94
EREEE Right-of-use assets 530 —
M B A A RERS Interest in subsidiaries 12,691,224 11,505,969
RFVPLERIEN S RLE E Financial assets at FVPL 425,980 448,121
$ETE FVOCI Equity instruments designated
as at FVOCI 7,428 6,876
13,125,577 11,961,060
RBEE Current assets
TENFIEREMBEIGIE  Prepayments and other receivables 10,868 18,901
HI /8~ 7l 2 FE WK IR Amount due from a subsidiary 3,037,521 2,949,907
RITEHR MRS Bank balances and cash 154,929 98,312
3,203,318 3,067,120
WEE Total assets 16,328,895 15,028,180
REREZREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
RA R #E Capital and reserves
BEARRAR Issued capital 235,401 235,204
Ptn s (8 Share premium 724,384 664,400
fE#m Reserves 48(a) 5,681,607 7,928,540
RERERAE Total equity 6,641,392 8,828,144
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SEIIEIRERMEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2019F12 A31 HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
et ARETFT ABREFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
RHPBEEEE Long-term interest-bearing borrowings 4,363,063 3,224,388
HEAE Lease liabilities 213 —
BTEFEME Employee benefit obligations — 64,691
4,363,276 3,289,079
RENEE Current liabilities
H A fE K Other payables 78,929 72,609
BEEEEZRESIS Current portion of
interest-bearing borrowings 5,244,973 2,838,348
HEAE Lease liabilities 325 —
5,324,227 2,910,957
wnaE Total liabilities 9,687,503 6,200,036
REERMEREBHE  Total equity and liabilities 16,328,895 15,028,180
REEAR M KRN 2020F 3 A23 & The statement of financial position was approved and authorised
ZEHERKEREE YHATA for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 March 2020 and signed
TREEE on its behalf by
% & Wei Hong-Ming FH H#i—EB Junichiro Ida
E HEDirector ZE HEDjrector
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REBTTEIRERMIET | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

(a) MHHEZED (a) Movements of the reserves
e}
EfiERE
ROBERE EfERE MCRERE (TTEE) EBRERE RO g
Investment
revaluation
Capital ~ Remeasur-  Exchange reserve Share-based
redemption ement translation (Non-  payment  Retained
reserve reserve reserve  recycing)  reserve Profits Total
AREFR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETL AREFZ AREFZ
RMB000  RMBU00  RMBU00  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMB0OO  RMB000
R2018F1A1H At 1 January 2018 400 (3899 177178 — 428117 5936646 6,538,442
RERER Profit for the year - - - - — 2051116 2,257,116
AEEEM2A(ER) Ya Other comprehensive (oss) income for the year — (32,635) 57,215 (4.230) - 2397 2,747
ERGERNN TR Equity settled share-based transactions - - - - N - W
REBRET SR BR Shares issuied under share option scheme — - — — (13,09 — (13,09
BREXN Shares option lapsed - - - —  (549%)  254% -
BRERRE 2017 EX SRS 2017 final dividend approved and paid - - - - —  (909539)  (909,539)
R2018% 128318 At 31 December 2018 400 (36,534) 234393 (4,230) 422395 7312116 7,928540
R2019%1518 At 1 January 2019 400 (36,534) 234,393 42300 422395 7312116 7,928,540
RERER Profitfor the year - - - - — 17849 178494
TEEEMZANE(BR) Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year = 36534 (18,054) 4,037 - (36534)  (14017)
EREERHTI A Equity settled share-based transactions = = = = 24,504 = 24,504
SIRMEMREHRE Employee benefits obligations borne
WBRRARHZ35) by subsidiaries (7ote 35) - — - - 41,487 41,487
REBRET 2R RH Shares issuied under share option scheme = = = —  (14,080) —  (14,080)
EREXK Shares option lapsed = = = — (40578 4057 -
BHEREE018ERE 2018 final and special dividend
RERIRS approved and paid - - - - = (2463321) (2463321
#2019%128318 At 31 December 2019 400 - 216,339 (193) 392245 5072816 5,681,607
MR2019F 12 4318 AAF A5 At 31 December 2019, the Company’s distributable reserves
B 2 & BB RE & T &Hﬂﬁ/ﬁﬁ{% including retained profits and share premium amounted to

2 & %A ANRKS5797,200,0007C
(20184 : A K #7976,516,000

JL)°

RMB5,797,200,000 (2018: RMB7,976,516,000).

EAEER 295
2019 Annual Report ¥



296

~
%/j_\ PAN

75 ER R MIEE | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2019F12 A31 HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

TIEREHARRERLEERSE
ZEEMBRAR EERE
ABAFEREEEANER - A
RAEEREENERED -EF
RRFINEMHMBRARNER S
RIETEK -

TN

The following included the principal subsidiaries directly or
indirectly held by the Company and, in the opinion of directors,
are significant to the revenue for the year or form a substantial
portion of total assets of the Group. The directors consider that
giving details of other subsidiaries would result in particulars of
excess length.

e,/
£ EXuE &R/ ERfTRE FEfEREL Al TEXK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# 3
Directly Indirectly
RAEARRGEVARAE ABRRES Uss2 100% —  REER
Master Kong Instant Foods (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
REERRRARAF P US$72,000,000 - 100% BERHESEE
Tianjin Tingyi Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
BNEERRARLA i US$31,000,000 - 100% HERHENRE
Guangzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* MEERMARAR HE US$151,500,000 - 100% RERHEHEE
* Hangzhou Tingyi Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
EBRERMARAA PE US$17,000,000 - 100% SHERHETEE
Shenyang Tingyi Food Co., Ltd.* PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RERRRMARAT HE US$17,800,000 - 100% RERHEHEE
Wuhan TingYi Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
BXERRRERAT R US$44,300,000 - 100% RERHEHER
Xian Tingyi Food Co,, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
REERERARARAR HE US$14,200,000 - 100% RERHEHEE
Harbin Ting Yi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
EREERMERAR G US$4,500,000 - 100% BERHENEE
Fujian Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* BREERBARLA hH US$14,000,000 - 100% SEREEHRE
* Nanling Tingyi Food Co., Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* EBEA N ERRERAT ilei US$32,500,000 - 100% HERHENRE
* Master Kong (Kunming) PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
Convenient Food Co,, Ltd. * noodles
* REE(ER) hRRAARAA G US$6,000,000 - 100% SEREEHRE
* Master Kong (Shenyang) PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
Convenient Food Co,, Ltd.* noodles
BRMEERERAT
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HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

L/
£ EXHE ifEs/ BRTRA JEfE RAELL Bl TERK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# A&
Directly Indirectly
TFRERRARLA PE US$29,000,000 - 100% BERHENRE
Jiangmen Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RAEERRARAR HE US$17,000,000 - 100% BERHENRE
Cheng Du Tingyi Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* FERRRRARLA HE US$3,000,000 - 100% BERHEHFE
* XinJiang Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
* RHBER) N RRRERAT HE US$5,000,000 - 100% BERHEHFE
* Master Kong (Chongging) PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
Convenient Food Co., Ltd. noodles
* BARERMERAA PE US$50,000,000 - 100% SHERHERE
* Zhengzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
ERRERRARLA & US$22,000,000 - 100% SHERHERE
Chongging Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
OB RERAFEERAT G US$227,500,000 - 100% REZR
Master Kong Instant Noodle Investment PRC Investment holding
(China) Co., Ltd.
RAEESBVIERAR ABRAEE Us$1 100% — REBR
Master Kong Bakery (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
BREFERARREAGE)ERAT % U5$98,900,000 — 100% REAER
Master Kong Instant Foods Investment PRC Investment holding
(China) Co., Ltd.
REEERMARATF ilei US$37,000,000 - 100% BERHEHFE
Tianjin Tingyuan Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of instant food
REERRBVERAR RERLIES US$55,263 90.50% —  REZR
Master Kong Beverages (BVI) Co., Ltd. BVI Investment holding
RABRGARERAT RERS US$10,527.37 30.4% 4751%  RERR
KSF Beverage Holding Co,, ltd. Cayman Islands Investment holding
* RERRARARA e US$60,840,000 - T191% RERHEERD
* Tianjin Tingjin Food Co Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
BMERRRAD G US$20,000,000 - 7191% SERHEELR
Guangzhou ngun Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* MERR AN P US$38,100,000 - T191% HEREESRR
* Hangzhou Tingjin Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
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HZE2019F12 A31 HIEEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

L/
£ EXHE ihEk/ ERfTRE JEft IR iELL IERK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# [}:3
Directly Indirectly
* REBHNERERAR G US$28,350,000 7191% BERHERR
* Master Kong (Hangzhou) Beverage Co,, Ltd * PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* RERRRRAN G US$73,500,000 71.91% SERHEESM
* Wuhan T|ngJ|n Food Co, Ltd? PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
RZEZRRAN EF US$5,000,000 77191% BEREERD
Xi'an Tingjin Food Co,, Ltd* PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EFFR2RmARAT i US$24,000,000 7191% RERHEERM
Chongging Ting‘in Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
EBRRRMARD G US$15,000,000 7191% RERHEERM
Qingdao Tingjin Food Co,, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
ERIEZARAD hE US$13,700,000 7191% BEREERR
Fujian Tingjin Food (o, Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* RRERERGARAT PE US$33,000,000 7191% SERHEERR
* Harbin Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* aEERRRAD G US$10,000,000 7191% BERHEESM
* Hefei Tingjin Food (o, Ltd. i PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* EREZRMAD EF US$12,000,000 77191% BEREERD
* Kunming Tingjin Food Co, Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BNERRMARAT i US$24,000,000 7191% RERHEERR
* Zhengzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BAERRMARAR HE US$16,000,000 7191% RERHEERM
* Lanzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* EBERSGERAR HE US$41,000,000 7191% BEREERD
* Master Kong (Shenyang) Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* ROBERHRERAT EF US$48,500,000 T191% BERHEERR
* Master Kong (Xi'an) Beverage Co., Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* RIBRRHRERAT EP US$31,800,000 T191% BERHEERR
* Master Kong (Tianjin) Beverage Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BHERRRAD G US$36,500,000 71.91% RERHEERR
* Yangzhou Tingjin Food Co, Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* EAERARARAR G US$59,300,000 7191% BEREERD
* Guangzhou Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd. # PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* REE (SEAESmERAT i US$12,000,000 7191% BEREERR
* Master Kong (Wulumugj) Beverage Co., Ltd. * PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages

EEERRARAE
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HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

Rl iAN
£ EXE ihER/ERfTRE L el IERK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# 3
Directly Indirectly
* BYRRRRAD PE US$28,500,000 7191% SERHEELR
* Langfang ng in Food Co, Ltd PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
BMEZRRAD e US$41,500,000 7191% SERHEELR
¥ Suzhou Ting Jin Food Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
FOBRRRAGRBRLF P US$196,677,000 77191%  %ERR
Master Kong Beverage Investment (China) Co., Ltd. ~ PRC Investment holding
hEER L (B BRLT Bk Us$2 7191%  REEK
China Bottlers (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding
BE(PE)REARAT PE US$358,216,517 7191%  RERR
PepsiCo Investment (China) Ltd. PRC Investment holding
BEHH (EM) BRA hE US$197,800,000 7191% BEREERS
PepsiCo Beverages (Guangzhou) Limited # PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
BNBEARIRARLA e US$66,650,000 7191% SERHEERR
Guangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited ~ PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
*ARAETERHARLA PE US$14,119,449 50.64% BERHELM
* Beijing Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* RERZTEHHARLA HE US$20,000,000 67.63% BEREERD
* Changchun Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* REBENEHFHARLA HE RMB100,000,000 6856% BEREERD
* Tianjin Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
RBBERHARAR PE US$6,600,000 7191% BEREERE
Chengdu PepsiCo Beverages Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
RMESHAARAA HE US$1,350,000 7191% BEREERS
Lanzhou PepsiCo Beverages Company Limited * PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BEREARHBHARLA e US$17,845,000 1354% BHERHEELM
* Chongaing Pepsi-Tianfu Beverage Company Limited  PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
M BETRFHARLA) PE US$12,250,000 7191% SERHEESR
Shenzhen Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
N BETERHARLAE P US$10,400,000 3896% BEREERD
* Hangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
RYBETEAHERAA HE US$28,000,000 7191% BEREERD
Changsha Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited #  PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
ENEEDES Aer] N ke RMB19,764,000 7191% BEREERE
Fuzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
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BaliAY
£ EXHH ifEx/ BRiTRE 3 Al IERHK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# A&
Directly Indirectly
* BEHE (M8 ARLA G US$9,000,000 - 5454% RERHEERM
* Pepsi Beverage (Nanchang) Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
* BEAEURHHARLA i US$5,000,000 - 6233% BEREERD
* Xi'an Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
M EEHAARAA i US$21,000,000 - 7191% BEREERS
Zhengzhou PepsiCo Beverage Co., Ltd f PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
REERETRRHARLA HE US$35,000,000 - 77191% BEREERS
Harbin Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd.* PRC Manufacture and sale of beverages
JEAEVIERAT RERLES US$1,000 100% —  REER
Tingtong (BVI) Limited BVI Investment holding
R(RES)ERERAR REES US$2,118,334 - 100%  BARR
Tingtong (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. Cayman Islands Investment holding
EREVIERERAT RERLES US$50,000 100% —  AREZRERE
Tingyi (BVI) Int'l Co,, Ltd. BVI Purchasing and sales agent for
the Group
EHRERRAA ARRAES US$147,232,000 - 100%  BARR
Wealth City Investment Limited BVI Investment holding
PERRERERAA REBRAES US§1 100% — REER
China Dingya Holding Limited BVI Investment holding
LEERARLRREARAT i US$135,000,000 - 100% REWFEERS
Shanghai Jingiu Minghao Enterprise Elaboration PRC Provision of properties management
Co, ltd. * service
REREAAARLA G US$200,000 100% —  RUEERH
Tianjin Tingyu Consulting Co., Ltd. PRC Provision of management services
* SEWBARSEMATRIINEE A * These subsidiaries are registered as Sino-foreign equity joint venture
{’ETE% companies.
# Eg g =t # English translation for identification purposes only.
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The other subsidiaries in the PRC are established and registered as

wholly-owned foreign enterprises.
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HZE 201912 A31 HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2019

Since the outbreak of the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) disease
in China in early 2020, ongoing prevention and control measures
have been carried out by the Chinese government. The epidemic
will impact the overall economy in China as well as the Group, the
instant noodles and beverage sector will be affected to different
extent. The Group will pay close attention to the development of
the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its impact on the financial
position and operating results of the Group.
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To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tingyi (Cayman
Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the "Group"”) set out on pages 132 to 301, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019,
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matter
Impairment of machinery and equipment

The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
amounted to RMB23,014 million at 31 December 2019. Of which,
the carrying amount of the Group’s machinery and equipment as at
31 December 2019 was RMB13,218 million. Any impairment of those
assets identified may have material impact on the consolidated financial
statements. An impairment loss of RMB152 million has been recognised
for certain machinery and equipment for the year ended 31 December
2019.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviewed internal and
external sources of information, including but not limited to technical
obsolescence to usage, significant change in use of assets with adverse
effect on the Group, prolonged period of time being idle and economic
performance of an asset was expected to be worse than expected, to
assess whether there is any indication that machinery and equipment
may be impaired.

If any such indication exists, an impairment test will be conducted. The
carrying amounts of the assets will be written down to their recoverable
amounts which are the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. The Group shall perform impairment assessment on
machinery and equipment by estimating the recoverable amounts of the
cash generating units ("CGUs") to which the assets belong principally
based on their value in use or, if applicable, to measure the recoverable
amount of certain individual assets with reference to their fair value less
costs of disposal.

We identified the carrying amount of machinery and equipment as a
key audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated financial
statements and the judgment and estimation involved in the impairment
review and test of machinery and equipment including the consideration
of the indicators of impairment and the determination of the key
assumptions applied in the impairment model.

Related disclosures are included in notes 5(ii) and 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment

of property, plant and equipment included:

a)

d)

Discussing the process and basis used to identify indicators of
impairment of machinery and equipment with management
and reviewing utilisation records and profitability of machinery
and equipment, where such indicators were identified, assessing
whether management had performed impairment testing in
accordance with the requirements of HKFRSs;

Assessing the appropriateness of the impairment model applied by
the management in calculating the impairment charges and the
judgments applied in determining the CGUs to which the assets
belong;

Verifying the mathematical accuracy of the discounted cash flow
model used in the value in use calculation;

Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the food and beverage industry and market;

Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as future
production plans and approved budgets and assessing the
reasonableness and feasibility of such plans and budgets;

Verifying the estimated fair value less costs of disposal by making
reference to the market price of an active market, if applicable;
and

Considering the adequacy of the Group’s disclosure in respect of
the impairment assessment.
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Key Audit Matter

Control over Hangzhou Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd (“HZPS”) and
impairment assessment of goodwill

HZPS became a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group through an
execution of sale and purchase agreement (the “SPA") and a contractual
arrangement in September 2017. The Group currently holds 50% equity
interest in HZPS and has a majority of the voting rights of HZPS.

The consolidation of HZPS required a significant amount of judgement
and estimations, including the determination of control over HZPS. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group re-assessed whether any
facts and circumstances indicate there are changes of its control over
HZPS. Based on the results of the re-assessment, the management
concluded that the Group has power over HZPS; has exposure to
variable returns from its involvement with HZPS; and has the ability to
use its power over HZPS to affect its returns. Therefore, the financial
statements of HZPS continue to be consolidated in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019.

The Group recognised goodwill of RMB98 million from the acquisition
in September 2017. Management performs an annual impairment
test on goodwill. The goodwill was allocated to related CGU, and the
recoverable amount of CGU will be determined by management based
on value-in-use calculation using cash flow projection. The calculations
involved significant judgement and estimations, such as forecast cash
flows, discount rates and growth rates.

We identified the control over HZPS and carrying amount of goodwill
as key audit matters because of their significance to the consolidated
financial statements and the judgment and estimation involved in
determination of control over HZPS and accounting for any impairment
on goodwill which involves significant degree of management judgment
in determining key assumptions applied in estimating recoverable
amounts based on value in use model.

Related disclosures are included in notes 5(ii), 19 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
Our key procedures in relation to the control over HZPS included:

a)  Discussing with the management to identify any facts and
circumstances that indicate changes of the Group’s control over
HZPS;

b)  Evaluating the appropriateness of the Group’s re-assessment on
its control over HZPS;

¢)  Obtaining direct confirmation from the vendor to ascertain the
existence of rights and benefits the Group entitled to through the
execution of the SPA and the contractual arrangement;

d)  Obtaining legal opinion from an independent lawyer to ascertain
the legal enforceability of the contractual arrangement in the PRC;
and

e)  Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of the
lawyer.

Our key procedures in relation to the recoverability assessment of
goodwill included:

a)  Assessing the value-in-use calculation methodology;

b)  Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge and understanding of the business and market;

)  Verifying the mathematical accuracy of the cash flow model used,
and

d)  Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as approved
budgets and considering the reasonableness of the budgets.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information in the 2019 annual
report of the Company but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information, and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsibility for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities and business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.
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BMAZEEIERE | Independent Auditor’s Report

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law and regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 23 March 2020

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Chan Chi Ming Andy
Practising Certificate number: P05132
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the
“Company™) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group™) set out on pages 132 to 301, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
Jor the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements for the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Mazars CPA LIMITED

hERIR (HE) anassmanas

42ND FLOOR, CENTRAL PLAZA, 18 HARBOUR RoAD, WANCHAI, HONG KONG
EHEBIEBHEACHRIPREEG 2B

TeL : (852) 2909 5555 - FAX: (852) 2810 0032 - info@mazars.hk - www.mazars.hk



Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Impairment of machinery and equipment

The carrying: amount of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment amounted to RMB23,014 million at 31 December
2019. Of which, the carrying amount of the Group’s
machinery and equipment as at 31 December 2019 was
RMB13,218 million. Any impairment of those assets
identified may have material impact on the consolidated
financial statements. An impairment loss of RMB152 million
has been recognised for certain machinery and equipment for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviewed
internal and external sources of information, including but not
limited to technical obsolescence to usage, significant change
in use of assets with adverse effect on the Group, prolonged
period of time being idle and economic performance of an
asset was expected to be worse than expected, to assess
whether there is any indication that machinery and equipment
may be impaired.

If any such indication exists, an impairment test will be
conducted. The carrying amounts of the assets will be written
down to their recoverable amounts which are the higher of
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. The Group
shall perform impairment assessment on machinery and
equipment by estimating the recoverable amounts of the cash
generating units (“CGUs”) to which the assets belong
principally based on their value in use or, if applicable, to
measure the recoverable amount of certain individual assets
with reference to their fair value less costs of disposal.

We identified the carrying amount of machinery and
equipment as a key audit matter because of its significance to
the consolidated financial statements and the judgment and
estimation involved in the impairment review and test of
machinery and equipment including the consideration of the
indicators of impairment and the determination of the key
assumptions applied in the impairment model.

Related disclosures are included in notes 5(ii) and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Our key procedures in relation to management’s

impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment
included:

a)

b)

c)

d)

g

Discussing the process and basis used to identify
indicators of impairment of machinery and
equipment with management and reviewing
utilisation records and profitability of machinery and
equipment, where such indicators were identified,
assessing whether management had performed
impairment testing in accordance with the
requirements of HKFRSs;

Assessing the appropriateness of the impairment
model applied by the management in calculating the
impairment charges and the judgments applied in
determining the CGUs to which the assets belong;
Verifying ~the mathematical accuracy of = the
discounted cash flow model used in the value in use

. calculation; :

Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions
based on our knowledge of the food and beverage
industry and market;

Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such
as future production plans and approved budgets and
assessing the reasonableness and feasibility of such
plans and budgets;

Verifying the estimated fair value less costs of
disposai by making reference to the market price of
an active.market, if applicable; and

Considering the adequacy of the Group’s disclosure
in respect of the impairment assessment.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the shareholders of

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Control over Hangzhou Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd
(“HZPS”) and impairment assessment of goodwill

HZPS became a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group
through an execution of sale and purchase agreement (the
“SPA”) and a contractual arrangement in September 2017.
The Group currently holds 50% equity interest in HZPS and
has a majority of the voting rights of HZPS.

The consolidation of HZPS required a significant amount of
judgement and estimations, including the determination of
control over HZPS. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group re-assessed whether any facts and circumstances
indicate there are changes of its control over HZPS. Based on
the results of the re-assessment, the management concluded
that the Group has power over HZPS; has exposure to
variable returns from its involvement with HZPS; and has the
ability to use its power over HZPS to affect its returns.
Therefore, the financial statements of HZPS continue to be
consolidated in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Group recognised goodwill of RMB98 million from the
acquisition in September 2017. Management performs an
annual impairment test on goodwill. The goodwill was
allocated to related CGU, and the recoverable amount of CGU
will be determined by management based on value-in-use
calculation using cash flow projection. The calculations
involved significant judgement and estimations, such as
forecast cash flows, discount rates and growth rates,

We identified the control over HZPS and carrying amount of
goodwill as key audit matters because of their significance to
the consolidated financial statements and the judgment and
estimation involved in determination of control over HZPS
and accounting for any impairment on goodwill which
involves significant degree of management judgment in
determining key assumptions applied in estimating
recoverable amounts based on value in use model.

Related disclosures are included in notes 5(ii), 19 and 20 to
the consolidated financial statements,

Our key procedures in relation to the control over HZPS
included:

a)

b)

c)

d)

€)

Discussing with the management to identify any facts
and circumstances that indicate changes of the
Group’s control over HZPS;

Evaluating the appropriateness of the Group’s
re-assessment on its control over HZPS;

Obtaining direct confirmation from the vendor to
ascertain the existence of rights and benefits the
Group entitled to through the execution of the SPA
and the contractual arrangement;

Obtaining legal opinion from an independent lawyer
to ascertain the legal enforceability of the contractual
arrangement in the PRC; and
Evaluating the competence,
objectivity of the lawyer.

capabilities and

Our key procedures in relation to the recoverability
assessment of goodwill included:

a)
b)

c)
d)

Assessing the value-in-use calculation methodology;

Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions
based on our knowledge and understanding of the
business and market;

Verifying the mathematical accuracy of the cash
flow model used; and

Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such
as approved budgets and considering the
reasonableness of the budgets.




Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Other Information
The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the

information in the 2019 annual report of the Company but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information, and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material

misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary

to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsibility for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

¢  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities and
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We

are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.



Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law and regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 23 March 2020

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is:
Chan Chi Ming Andy
Practising Certificate number: P05132
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